Haringey Council

Corporate Committee

THURSDAY, 28TH JUNE, 2012 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Adje, Amin, Diakides, Griffith, Jenks, Khan, Meehan(Chair),
Whyte, Williams and Wilson

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES (IF ANY)
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (late items
will be considered under the agenda items where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item16 or 20.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.

4, DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS



10.

11.

12.

To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, section B, Paragraph
29 of the Council’s Constitution.

MINUTES (PAGES 1-12)

To consider and agree the minutes of the meeting held on the 15 May 2012.
PROTOCOLS COVERING THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE (PAGES 13 - 16)
To note and comment on the current Corporate Committee Protocols.
PENSION FUND:TRANSITION COST SUMMARY (PAGES 17 - 24)

The committee will consider information about the costs of the transition to the new
fund arrangements.

PENSION FUND:ASSET ALLOCATION ADVICE (PAGES 25 - 32)

The committee will consider the Pension Fund'’s current asset allocation and further
consider recommendations about the investment of cash currently managed in house.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2011/12 OUTTURN &QUARTER 1 2012/13 UPDATE
(PAGES 33 - 44)

This is a report to members on treasury management activity and performance during
2011/12 in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice. It is
a requirement of the Code for this to be reported on to Council once Corporate
Committee has considered it. In addition it provides an update for members on
treasury management activity during the first quarter of 2012/13.

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS UPDATE (PAGES 45 - 46)

To consider Grant Thornton’s Audit Progress report for June 2012.

FINANCIAL RESILIENCE (PAGES 47 - 90)

The committee will consider the follow up study completed by Grant Thornton on the

council’s financial resilience . The review will follow up on the recommendations made
in last year’s report.

ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT AND ASSURANCE STATEMENT 2011/12
(PAGES 91 - 104)



To inform the committee of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the system of
internal control and risk management operating throughout 2011/12 and present a
summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion, including reliance
placed on work by other bodies.

13. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2011/12 (PAGES 105 - 122)
To inform the Corporate Committee of the requirements of the Statutory Annual
Governance statement (AGS) and provide a draft statement relating to the 2011/12
financial year for review and approval.

14. CORPORATE RISK REGISTER (PAGES 123 - 134)
In accordance with recommended best practice, a copy of the current corporate risk
register is provided for review by Members. An update on the Corporate Risk

Management Policy and Strategy is also provided.

15. DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY, SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS
AND UNDER URGENCY (PAGES 135 - 148)

To inform the Corporate Committee of non executive delegated decisions, significant
actions taken by Directors and any urgency decisions taken by the Chair.
16. ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN URGENT NATURE

To consider any items admitted at item 2 above.

17. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for consideration of the
following items as they contain exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the
Local Government Act 1972( as amended by Section 12A of the Local Government

Act 1985): paras 1&2:namely information relating to any individual , and information
likely to reveal the identity of an individual.

18. EXEMPT MINUTES (PAGES 149 - 150)
To consider the exempt minutes of the Corporate Committee held on 15 May 2012.
19. EARLY RETIREMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Exempt Report from the Assistant Chief Executive — Report to follow



20. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT BUSINESS

To consider any items admitted at item 2 above.

David McNulty

Head of Local Democracy
and Member Services
Level 5

River Park House

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Ayshe Simsek

Principal Committee Coordinator
Level 5

River Park House

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Tel: 020 8489 2929
Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk



Page 1 Agenda Item 5

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 15 MAY 2012

Councillors Amin, McNamara, Whyte, Williams, Griffith, Watson

Apologies

Councillor Meehan, Khan, Gorrie, Jenks

Also Present: Councillor Strang, Egan, Waters, Wilson, Roger Melling, Michael Jones

Kevin Bartle, Nicola Webb, Anne Woods, Stuart Young, Debbie Haith,
Wendy Tomlinson, Colin Cartwright, Emily McGuire, Hanisha Solanki,
Liz Sandford

MINUTE ACTION

NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

CC118 | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE(IF ANY)
Apologies for absence were received from councillor: Meehan, Khan,
Jenks, Gorrie and Keith Brown. In accordance with committee standing
order 52 and 53 councillors Egan, Waters, Strang and Wilson
substituted.
In the absence of the chair and vice chair, Clir Amin was elected to chair
the meeting.

CC119 | URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of urgent business to consider.

CC120 | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Cllr Wilson declared a personal interest as an employee of the National
Association of Pension Funds.

CC121 | DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS
The committee received a deputation from Sean Fox, Employeeside
Secretary on Agenda item 15, and Shared Services: Employment
Protocols and Flora Onwukwe from UNISON on Agenda Item 12, Staff
Changes Associated with the Closure of the Council’'s Two Residential
Children’s Homes.
Details of their comments and representations are recorded under the
relevant minute below.

CC122 | MINUTES
The minutes of the Corporate Committee held on the 23 January 2012
and 20" March 2012 were agreed as a correct record of the meeting.




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 15 MAY 2012

On page 6 of the minutes of the 23 January 2012, CC97, the figure
obtained from the Proceeds of Crime Act, should have read £4k and it
was agreed that this be rectified.

At the end of the previous meeting in March, members of the committee
had reviewed the operation of the committee and put forward comments
to the governance evaluation survey on the areas for change. These
issues appeared not to have been addressed in the subsequent
governance review paper. The clerk agreed to consult with the chair
about adding an item to the next committee meeting on how the
committee’s comments to the governance evaluation survey had been
taken forward.

Clerk

Clerk

cC123

PENSIONS QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE UPDATE

The committee considered an update on the performance of the Pension
Fund for the date ending the 31 March 2012 and were asked to consider
relevant pension fund issues. They noted that the transfer of fund
managers from Capital and Fidelity was ongoing. The underperformance
of CBRE with the European portfolio had been discussed with them
and they were to provide regular updates on their performance to the
interim Chief Financial Officer.

The committee noted that the recommendation to appoint John Raisin,
who had significant local government experience, was a pragmatic
suggestion to the committee. Waltham Forest had completed the
procurement process to appoint him and had saved Haringey the time
and resource required to source an Independent Pension Advisor.

RESOLVED

i.  That the information provided in respect of the activity in the last
six months to 31% March 2012 be noted.

i. That the appointment of John Raisin as the Independent Pension
Fund adviser be approved.

Ho
TM&P

CC124

PENSION FUND EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2011/12

The committee received the audit plan introduced by the external
auditors from Grant Thornton; Subarna Banerjee. They were obliged to
ask the committee whether they had received any reports of fraudulent
activity in relation to the pension’s accounts and the committee
confirmed that none had been reported to them.

They confirmed that they were an independent organisation that did not
make any political donations.

RESOLVED

That the 2011/12 Audit Plan prepared by Grant Thornton be agreed.




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 15 MAY 2012

CC125

PENSION FUND: INVESTMENT STRATEGY UPDATE

The report provided a summary of the decisions taken in the investment
strategy review (this was requested by committee members at the
previous meeting) and further included an update on the implementation
process. The committee were also asked to consider and approve a
revised statement of investment principles attached at appendix 2.

Following questions from members the following information was
provided:

e The difference between active and passive fund management
was that passive fund managers would hold investments in an
index. They could not select investments that perform better than
average but the pension fund can expect to get same proportion
index rate of return in investments as indicated by the index e.g.
FTSE All Share. Therefore there was a degree of certainty around
returns to the pension fund. Alternatively an Active Fund Manager
will select investments that they believe will perform better than
the whole market. It was learnt by the previous pensions
committee that due to the time needed to make and implement
these types of investment decisions in a local authority, Active
fund managers were unlikely to be able to achieve performance
on an ongoing basis. This had assisted the decision in changing
from active to passive fund management also the ongoing cost
of Passive fund managers was lower than Active fund
managers.

e There was a small amount of risk associated with investments in
overseas assets from movements in exchange rates, however the
larger source of risk was the selection of equities over bonds.
However it was prudent to hold onto outside UK companies as the
returns were dependent on sterling which was still a strong
currency.

e The cash flow position in the pension fund had changed over the
year from surplus to breakeven point and the pensions working
group would be considering this position and its impact on the
pension fund strategy going forward.

RESOLVED

i.  That the draft revised Statement of Investment Principles set out
in Appendix 2 be approved.

i. That the second stage of the investment strategy review
considering non equity and bond asset classes be commenced
with detailed work being carried out by the working group before
recommendations are presented to the Corporate Committee.

Ho
TM&P

Ho
TM&P




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 15 MAY 2012

CC126

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 2011/12 - QUARTER 4 UPDATE AND
USE OF COUNTERPARTIES

The committee considered the quarterly update on the Council’s treasury
management activities and performance in the fourth quarter of 2011/12
and the council’s use of counterparties during 2011/12. It was noted that
there had been repayment of a proportion of the Council’'s PWLB loans
and of additional payments from Landsbanki and Glitnir banks. The
council had now recovered £18.3m from Icelandic banks; this was
around 50% of the money originally invested.

Although there was some initial information enclosed on activities with
counterparties over the last financial year, the position would continue to
be monitored and reported to the Committee.

It was noted that many of the UK banks were on negative rating watch
pending possible downgrade, therefore the only funds being placed with
UK banks was on an instant access basis, so that funds can be
withdrawn if the banks were to be downgraded. In addition the council is
investing in Money Market Funds and the Debt Management Office. In
response to this, the committee questioned if this action was sustainable
or whether there was a review in mind? The interim CFO explained that
the council were following a deliberate policy of keeping cash balances
low and investing as little as possible because of the high borrowing
costs currently being experienced. By keeping balances in money
market accounts and call accounts and through effective debt
management the council had saved £3m and this sum would contribute
to the financial planning for 2013/14.

The Interim Chief Financial Officer advised members that the council
had already anticipated potential financial issues with Santander UK
Bank and had removed them from the council’s lending list in December.
The Interim CFO gave assurance to the committee that the council did
not lend or invest money with this bank.

RESOLVED

That the Treasury Management activity undertaken during the fourth
quarter of 2011/12 and the performance achieved be noted.

Clerk

CC127

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS UPDATE

The committee received the progress report from the external auditor,
Grant Thornton, on their work for the Council. The terms of reference for
the external auditors follow up study of financial resilience had been
agreed with the council and this together with the procurement review
would inform the value for money assessment of the council.

Grant Thornton would be publishing their Local Government Governance
review in June 2012 and would make this available to members of the




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 15 MAY 2012

committee.
RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

cC128

AUDIT APPROACH MEMORANDUM

The memorandum provided additional detail regarding Grant Thornton’s
audit approach, as set out in the audit plan 2011/12 issued in January
2012 to Committee, as well as an update on responses to key risks from
the results of interim audit work carried out to date. The committee were
pointed to pages 83-89 of the report pack which contained a list of
financial and accounting risks that would be explored and reported upon
in ISA 260 in September.

RESOLVED

That the committee receive the report

CC129

STAFF CHANGES ASSOCIATED WITH THE CABINET DECISION TO
CLOSE TWO RESIDENTIAL CHILDREN'S HOMES

Members of the committee were asked to approve the deletion of 28
posts based in two council residential children’s homes which following
Cabinet and Cabinet member decision would close in July. Flora
Onwukwe, of UNISON had asked to speak against the closure of the
homes and subsequent staff deletions and was invited by the chair to
address the committee.

Ms Onwukwe began by reiterating the union’s and affected staff’s
opposition to the closure of the homes and continued to affirm that the
strategy to close the homes and accommodate young people instead
in foster care placements, private and voluntary sector homes was
flawed . She believed, along with staff that the quality of the homes, had
been allowed to lapse by management and that not enough
consideration had been given to the Ofsted comment, on both homes,
that “the quality of care received by the young people was good as were
their outcomes”.

The unions and staff were sceptical that the 6 other private children’s
homes in the borough would be able to provide a service to a young
person for which an appropriate foster care placement could not be
found. Ms Onwukwe contended that private homes may even be
selective in offering placements if they believed that the young person
had too many difficulties for them to deal with. Ms Onwukwe further
questioned whether the pool of specialist foster carers trained to deal
with behavioural issues could be compiled as there were existing
problems with recruiting foster carers. The staff in the homes had been
trained to deal with behavioural problems and this resource would be
lost following the closure of the homes.

Ms Onwukwe continued to inform the committee about the specialist




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 15 MAY 2012

skills of the staff at the homes and the need to ensure that there were
redeployment opportunities available. She further  sought assurance
that staff at Home A would have their job descriptions evaluated under
single status to ensure that they received their correct entittlement of

pay.

Following the deputation, members raised further questions about how
much knowledge there was of the care provided by the private care
homes , the prospects of staff for redeployment, the process followed
for the closure of the homes and whether keeping vacant posts had
had an impact in the overall rating of the children’s homes. Members
were informed that:

e Only children’s homes with a ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ Ofsted rating
would be used and there was no evidence to suggest that young
people would be turned away from these homes if there were
places available.

e There were some vacancies available in the short break units
which displaced staff from the homes would be eligible to apply
for. The Children’'s service would support staff seeking
employment opportunities.

e The decision to freeze the vacancies at the homes had only been
implemented when the service had learned that there was a
potential for the homes to close and there had not been an
underhand strategy to allow the homes to deteriorate.

The Chair thanked Flora Onwukwe for her presentation.

Members of the committee considered the union’s arguments against
the closure of the homes but were clear that the policy decision to close
the children’s homes had already been made by the Cabinet and it was
not within the remit of the Corporate Committee to undo this decision.
The Corporate Committee was responsible for agreeing the staffing
deletions arising from this decision and asked that the appropriate
employment procedures be followed to assist staff displaced from the
closure of the homes.

RESOLVED

That the deletion of all posts based in two residential children’s homes
as summarised in section 6 and 7 of the attached report be approved .
This decision was taken as a consequence of the Cabinet and Cabinet
Member decision to close the two children’s homes which were taken on
the 07" February 2012 and the 27" April 2012.

DDC&F

DD C&F

CC130

QUARTER 4 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

The committee received information on the internal audits completed in
the third quarter of the current financial year together with information on
the Council’'s fraud investigation work, housing benefit fraud




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 15 MAY 2012

investigations and progress on the Council’s disciplinary actions. The
committee were advised that, to date, 77 out of 95 audits had been
completed by Deloitte and Touche. Following successful fraud
investigations 11 Haringey council properties had been retrieved
including 2 fraudulent tenancy succession claims. The committee further
noted that the housing benefit reclaims team had exceeded their target
for this year and that the council wide disciplinary statistic showed the
lowest average of days for suspensions(less than 2 months per case).

Recommendations outstanding from audits undertaken in 2010/11 were
considered and the committee noted that those relating to accounts
receivable and health and safety had been negotiated and revised
deadlines set for completion. The recommendations concerning
Treasury Management had been implemented. The committee were
concerned that the actions relating to the monitoring of certificates of
lawfulness had not been completed and wanted an understanding of
when the original recommendation had been made to understand how
long the delay had been. The Head of Audit and Risk management
agreed to provide this information to the committee along with an
indication of when the recommendation was likely to be completed by
the service in question.

Members were reminded that a summary of audits completed by Deloitte
and Touché were emailed to members on a monthly basis .In keeping
with their Corporate Committee responsibilities they were able to request
full reports from considering these summaries. The Head of Audit and
Risk management agreed to forward members a copy of the audit report
into certificates of lawfulness.

The committee noted that if an employee had resigned due to proven
fraudulent financial activities they would still be pursued by the council
to repay in full any funds owed to the council.

RESOLVED

i.  That the audit coverage and counter-fraud work completed during
the fourth quarter, 2011/12, be noted.

i. That the management responses received for those audit
recommendations not fully implemented be noted. That the
manager’s actions taken during the third quarter to address the
outstanding recommendations be deemed appropriate.

Ho
A&RM

Ho
A&RM

Ho
A&RM

CC131

NATIONAL FRAUD INITIATIVE - UPDATE REPORT ON 2011
INVESTIGATIONS

The Corporate Committee considered the outcomes from the work
undertaken on the Audit Commission’s National Fraud Initiative exercise
during 2011/12 and the outcomes of the exercise to date

Joint activity between the National Fraud office and the council had
resulted in the location and retrieval of 110 blue badges. These had not
been returned after the user had been deceased. Members commented




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 15 MAY 2012

on the opportunities to learn from this exercise. For example considering
the information resources at the council’s disposal and how they can be
cross referenced to detect fraud. The Head of Audit and Risk
Management assured members that although the resources of the
council fraud team were limited they were targeted to identify fraudulent
activity.

In relation to investigating tenancy fraud, there were existing briefing
sessions held with tenancy managers and they would be encouraged at
the next meeting to report any suspected or reported fraudulent activity
to internal audit.

RESOLVED

That the work undertaken by the council to comply with the requirements
of the NFI and investigate potential data matches be noted.

CC132

SHARED SERVICES - EMPLOYMENT PROTOCOLS

The committee were asked to consider the set of shared service
Employment protocols developed jointly with the London Borough of
Waltham Forest and the unions to provide a framework for managing the
employment issues that will arise from providing services jointly by two
or more London boroughs.

Sean Fox, Employeeside Secretary, addressed the meeting and
explained that the dialogue between the council and the unions about
the employment protocols had been helpful and constructive. There
were concerns about the proposed secondment agreement by the
unions and these were detailed at appendix D (page 187-189 of the
report pack). In summary these were:

e The language and format of the secondment agreement which
would not be accessible to a majority of employees.

e The length of the secondment agreement of 10 months as often
arrangements would last longer than this period. The union’s
proposed their involvement in deciding future arrangements once
the secondment period was nearing completion.

o |If there was a termination of the secondment agreement, concern
about the safeguards in place for the post holders i.e. if they
cannot return to their original post because it had been deleted.

e That if there were a change from service to service provider an
options appraisal should be completed and agreement to this
sought from the Corporate Committee.

The Assistant Chief Executive responded to the concerns raised and
agreed that they would be considered and taken forward by Human




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 15 MAY 2012

Resources. Although a legally compiled document maybe required for
signing by the employee when agreeing to the secondment
arrangement, this did not preclude attaching an additional document for
the employee to read which set out in plain English its terms and
implications.

In relation to the concern raised about the timescales around the
secondment agreement, it was expected that over time and as the
number of shared service agreements increased the council would
inevitably consider the model for employing staff in a shared service.
Therefore this was an evolving area subject to change. In terms of
recent secondment agreements which were expected to last 12 months
or more the ACE agreed to consider these cases, seek legal advice and
complete a risk assessment on their current position.

Although the secondment agreement was an industry standard
document, the committee commented that this should not preclude it
from being understandable and more openly written.

RESOLVED

i. That the attached Employment Protocols framework included at
appendix A be approved.

i. That the framework and operating principles be agreed by all
parties.

iii. That the Head of Human Resources be delegated authority to
make any further changes to the terms of the secondment
agreement template following discussion with Legal and union
colleagues from both boroughs.

iv.  That the points of concern made by the Employeeside Secretary
and members of the committee be taken into account by the Head
of HR when finalising the secondment agreement and that the
committee receive a progress report on this at a later meeting.

ACE

ACE

ACE

ACE

ACE

ACE

CC133

UPDATE REPORT ON NEGOTIATIONS WITH TRADE UNIONS ON
STAFF TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The committee considered an update on current discussions with the
unions to change employment terms and procedures relating to car
allowance .The key changes being taken forward in negotiations were
changes in the number of miles that an employee could claim for in the
car allowance scheme and limiting member involvement in disciplinary
hearings to dismissal appeals only. Instead of a complete re hearing
of the case (as the current situation with dismissal, grievances and
relegation hearings) there would instead be a review of the officer case
which would considerably shorten the length of the hearing.

There was some disappointment that the member involvement in
disciplinary hearings had not been withdrawn completely however it was




Page 10

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 15 MAY 2012

accepted that the outcome from the negotiations with the unions was a
key step forward.

A member commented that the reduction of staff working for council
should equate to a reduction in the number of essential user permits
issued and held by staff resulting in a saving for services. The ACE

agreed to check that savings made by each service in the reduction of | ACE
permits and email this information to committee members.
RESOLVED
That progress be noted

CC134 | DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER URGENCY &SIGNIFICANT DELEGATED
DECISIONS
That the delegated decisions and significant actions taken by Directors
since January 2012 be noted.

CC135 | ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS
TO BE URGENT
None

CC136 | EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
The following part of the minutes were exempt as they contained
information as defined in Section 100a of the Local Government Act
1972; Para 3 - information relating to the business or financial affairs of
any particular person (including the authority holding that information.

CC137 | EXEMPT MINUTES
The exempt minutes of the Corporate Committee held on 23 January
2012 and 20 March 2012 were agreed as an accurate record of the
meeting.
The Assistant Chief Executive agreed to check the progress on
establishment of the Pay Policy working group. A report back was | ACE
expected to the next meeting in June.
The Committee received the minutes of the Special Committee held on
07 November 2012.

CC138 | INVESTMENT STRATEGY

Colin Cartwright of Aon Hewitt reported back on the transfer of existing
actively managed equity and bond investments from Capital and Fidelity
to passive fund managers Legal & General and Blackrock. The majority
of the assets had been moved in specie (this is where an asset is moved




Page 11

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 15 MAY 2012

without the need to sell it and buy it back) minimising the cost of the
transfer.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted.

CC139 | STAFF CHANGES ASSOCIATED WITH THE CABINET DECISION
TO CLOSE TWO RESIDENTIAL CHILDREN'S HOMES

Please refer to CC129.

CC140 | ANY OTHER EXEMPT BUSINESS

NONE

Cllr Amin

Chair




Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13 Agenda ltem 6

HARINGEY GOVERNANCE REVIEW

PROTOCOL COVERING CORPORATE COMMITTEE

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 A key objective of Haringey’s Governance Review 2010/11 was to reduce the
number of Council Committees, and to develop a more streamlined, focused
and transparent decision-making structure. A single Corporate Committee was
therefore established, to undertake the remit previously covered by the Audit,
General Purposes, Pensions and Remuneration Committees.

1.2 The Terms of Reference for the Corporate Committee is stated in the Council’s
Constitution (Part 3 Section C). The purpose of this protocol is to set out in
detail the process by which the Corporate Committee will function.

1.3 This document will be subject to regular review along with other governance
arrangements, to ensure that it remains updated in the light of experience.

2 MEMBERSHIP AND CHAIR

2.1 The Corporate Committee shall consist of 10 members. The members and
chair of the Corporate Committee shall be elected and ratified each year at the
Annual Council Meeting.

2.2 The membership of the Committee shall include non-voting co-optees for
Pensions matters, when the Committee is acting as “Administering Authority”.

2.3 Members of the Committee shall be trained with regard to their statutory roles
on Pensions, Audit and Treasury Management.

2.4 The Committee may select a lead member for each of the Committee’ s key
responsibilities.

3 RESPONSIBILITIES

The responsibilities of the Corporate Committee are fully detailed in Part 3 Section C
of the Council’s Constitution. An overview of those responsibilities is given below:

3.1 Pensions

3.1.1  “Employing Authority”

The Committee shall act as “Employing Authority” to determine the Council’s policies
on pensions.

3.1.2 “Administering Authority”

The Committee shall also undertake the Council’'s functions as “Administering

Authority”, being responsible for the management and monitoring of the Council’s

Pension Fund:

e To be responsible for the management of the Pension Fund’s investments
including the setting of investment strategy, selection and monitoring of fund
managers, and publication and maintenance of statutory policy statements;

e To receive triennial actuarial valuations, publish and maintain a Funding Strategy
Statement and monitor the funding level of the Pension Fund;



Page 14

To be responsible for approving the Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts,
receiving the external auditor’s annual report and regular reports on matters
relating to administration.

3.1.3 Pensions Working Group
Members of the Corporate Committee may meet informally with officers as a
pensions working group, with recommendations being made to the Corporate
Committee on pensions matters.

3.2 The Committee shall approve and monitor the following,

3.3

3.4

e o o o o o o

The Council’s Risk Management Framework and Policy;

The Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance;

Council policies on “Whistleblowing” and Anti-Fraud and Corruption;

The Council’s Annual Governance Statement;

The Annual Internal Audit Plan and the Strategic Audit Plan;

The Annual Audit Plan and the Annual Audit Letter from the external auditor;
The Head of Audit's Annual Report.

The Committee shall undertake the following:

Functions relating to public rights of way, except those which are delegated to
the Planning Sub-Committee;

Making arrangements for proper administration of financial affairs;
Formulating the Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS);
Approving statements under The Accounts and Audit Regulations;

Agreeing the terms and conditions of major service restructures;

Functions relating to Health and Safety at work;

Authorising the making payments in cases of maladministration;

Functions relating to Elections.

The Committee shall be responsible for:

Agreeing the terms and conditions of employment, the pay structure and the
remuneration for senior posts;

Monitoring the operation and effectiveness of the scheme for the performance
appraisal and remuneration of the Council’'s senior managers and chief
officers;

Agreeing the terms and conditions of employment of those staff below Senior
Management grades, including procedures for dismissal.

4 MEETING FREQUENCY AND FORMAT

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

It is intended that the Corporate Committee shall normally hold four scheduled
meetings each year. If required, an additional two meetings per year may be
scheduled.

The Chair of the Corporate Committee may call a special meeting in
accordance with the process in the Council’s Constitution (Part 4 Section B).

The work programme for the Corporate Committee shall be agreed between
the Chair of the Committee and senior officers, at the beginning of the civic
year.

It is intended that agendas for meetings will include items related to the
Committee’s main responsibilities as outlined above.



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Page 15

It is intended that all audit matters will be covered during the original four
scheduled meetings of the year.

Each Corporate Committee meeting may have a focus on one of the
Committee’s main responsibilities, with items on that theme being taken first
on the agenda.

A short training session may be held before each Corporate Committee
meeting, on the relevant theme for that meeting.

For items related to pensions, the chair shall announce whether the Committee
is acting as “Employing Authority” or “Administering Authority”. When acting as
“Administering Authority”, non-voting co-optees for Pensions shall be invited to
attend. These items shall be placed first on the meeting agenda.

Where the Committee needs to take decisions between scheduled meetings,
these shall be the responsibility of the Committee Chair in liaison with senior
officers.



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17 Agenda ltem 7

X

*

/? .

Haringey Counci

ltem
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
28" June 2012
Title: Pension Fund: Transition cost summary

—

Interim Chief Financial Offiger
Report authorised
by :

— 1

Nicola Webb, Head of Finance - Treasury & Pensions
I_ead Officer: nicola.webb@haringey.gov.uk
020 8489 3726

—
Ward(s) affected: N/A Report for Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 This report provides the Committee with information about the
costs of the transition to the new fund management arrangements.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the report is noted.

4. Other options considered

4.1 None.

5. Background information

5.1 A review of the Pension Fund’s investment strategy took place in

response to concerns about the poor performance compared to
target of the existing strategy.

Page 1 of 3



-*—-

Page 18

Haringey Council

5.2

It was reported to the Committee on 15" May 2012 that the majority
of the movements from the active fund managers to the passive
fund managers had taken place and that the expected cost of the
transition would be around £700k.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and financial implications

6.1

The cost of the transition increased to £842k from the estimate in
May as the costs incurred are levied as a percentage of the value of
holdings and the value increased in the period. The cost of the
transition needs to be viewed in the context of the on-going saving
in investment management fees of £1m per annum.

7. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications

7.1

The Head of Legal Services provided comments in the reports when
the Committee approved the appointment of the passive investment
managers. This report sets out the costs incurred in transferring the
assets from Capital International and Fidelity under that process.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1

Not applicable.

9. Head of Procurement Comments

9.1

Not applicable.

10. Policy Implications

10.1

None.

11. Use of Appendices

11.1

Appendix 1: Aon Hewitt — Transition report

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

12.1 Not applicable.

Page 2 of 3



Page 19

Haringey ( cunci;
13. Transition costs

13.1 In order to put in place the Committee’s decision to move the

Fund’s equity and bond assets from active management to passive
management, it was necessary to move assets from the accounts
previously run by Capital International and Fidelity to Legal &
General and BlackRock.

13.2 The previous investment managers were active managers who only

held a subset of each market and held stocks in different weights to
the benchmark as they sought to outperform it. This meant that a
number of transactions were required to move the equity and bond
holdings from an active to a passive basis, where stocks are held in
line with benchmarks. These costs include commission charges
paid to brokers and taxes such as stamp duty paid to governments
when transactions are undertaken.

13.3 Aon Hewitt have prepared a report on the final costs of the

Page 3 of 3

transition and this is attached at Appendix 1. This report shows the
total cost of the transition was £842,153. Two key factors ensured
that it was possible to keep the cost to 0.12% of the Fund, rather
than the 0.4-0.5% estimate for transitions Aon Hewitt usually see.
These are firstly that the majority of the assets held by the previous
fund managers were moved to the new managers “in-specie” i.e.
the stocks moved instead of them having to be sold for cash and
purchased again. The second key factor is that in re-arranging the
portfolios from active to passive both BlackRock and Legal &
General were able to “cross holdings” with other clients. This
means they could match a client who wanted to sell a stock the
Fund needed with the Fund to avoid brokerage costs.



| Page 20



@

Page 21

AON Hovite

London Borough of Haringey
Date: 14 June 2012
Prepared for. Corporate Committee
Prepared by:  Colin Cartwright

Transition Report

Introduction

Pre-Trade position

At the Corporate Committee meeting on 23 January 2012 the Committee
approved the transfer of the active equity and bond assets to two passive
managers, Legal & General and BlackRock. The transition of the assets
took place between 9 and 18 May 2012. This report gives details of the
transition process and a summary of the costs incurred.

The table below summarises the pre-trade asset allocation, as at 4 May
2012.

Manager

Captal Fidality CBRE L&G FPantheon
Asset Dlass fm £ < %, i £m
UK Equity 358 18.2 38.9 15.8 119.7 65,
Overseas Equity 107.9 547 1099 4486 61.9 34.1
Index-linked Gilts 53.6 271 68.6 27.8
Corporate Bonds 29.2 11.9
Property 53.0 1000

Private Equity

290 1000

Total 197.4

1000 2466 100.0 53.0 100.0 1816 100.0 290 1000 707.5 1000

Source: Northern Trust

Transition Summary

The Officers, Aon Hewitt and the fund managers involved undertook
extensive planning of the transition exercise. In the process it was
possible to indentify a number of areas where we could reduce the cost of
the transfer, this included: arranging in-specie transfers of stock between
the managers to avoid the cost of buying and selling stock, exiting the
Fidelity pooled funds at zero cost, utilising LGIM and BlackRock passive
funds to reduce restructuring costs and arranging for assets to be
transferred in a tax efficient way to avoid stamp duty on UK equities.

10 Devonshire Square | London EC2M 4YP

t +44 (0) 20 7086 8000 | f +44 (0) 20 7086 1878 | acnhewitt.co.uk

Aon Hewitt Limited | Registered in England & Wales No. 4396810 | Registered office: 8 Devonshire Square London EC2M 4PL
Authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority.

This report and any enciosures or attachments are prepared on the understanding that it is solely for the benefit of the addressee(s). Unless we
provide express prior written consent no part of this report should be reproduced. distrbuted or commtinicated to anyone else and. in providing
this report. we do not accept or assume any responsitility for any other purpose or to anyone other than the addressee(s) of this report.

S Copyright © 2012 Acn Hewitt Limted. All rights reserved.



Page 22

AAON Hewitt

Costs Of transactions There were no costs incurred exiting Fidelity and Capital. The following
table summarises the costs incurred into for the trades into BlackRock:

Cost of transfer in-specie transfers into the fund £146,114
Costs of trading non-index stocks £68,220
Costs of cash purchases £229,315
Stamp duty (Hong Kong) £7,298
Costs of transfer from L&G 3,360
Total Costs £454 307

The table below summariseé the costs which were incurred for the
transitions into L&G

Charge of transfer into fund for non-index stocks £54,855
Costs of cash transactions £145,072
Costs of rebalance £178,043
Stamp duty £7,373
Interest charge for prefunding £2,502
Total Costs £387,846

Source: Managers

The two tables are slightly different due to the different processes which
BlackRock and L&G have for implementing the transfers. The
restructuring costs are net of crossing (matching buyers and sellers to
avoid spreads).

The total cost of the transition was £842,153 or 0.12% of the Fund. This is
slightly above the estimate of £695,869 from our estimate dated 3 May
2012 (part of this is increase is due to the increase in asset values from
market movements), although it is well below our original estimate of 0.4-
0.5% of the Fund.

Savings

The fact that the managers were able to make in-specie transfers rather
than cash subscriptions saved large amounts of trading costs which would
have been incurred. The table below summarises the costs saved by
using in-specie compared to cash transfers. The numbers below do not
include the savings from the in-specie transfers out of Fidelity and Capital
which did not incur the cost of sales.

continued on next page



Page 23

End Position

Manager Saving
BlackRock £1,746,841
Trading £1,018 097
UK Stamp Duty £728,744
L&G £262,260
Trading £258,456
UK Stamp Duty £3714
Total £2,009,101

Source: Managers

The table below shows the asset allocation as at 31 May 2012. At the

time of writing these figures were unaudited and

are therefore subject to

change.
Manager
. CBRE L&G BlackRock FPantheon Total
Asset Class £m Y% £m s £m % £m 3 £Em
UK Equity 27.7 140 1602 393 1875 27.3
Overseas Equity 1195 613 1529 375 272.4 397
Index-linked Gilts 20.8 10.7 9438 233 1157 168
Corporate Bonds 27 .4 14.0 27.4 4.0
Property 534 100.0 53.4 7.8
Private Equity 29.8 1000 298 4.3
Total 53.4 100.0 1950 100.0 407.9 1000 29.8 1000 686.6 100.0

Source: Northern Trust

Conclusion

The assets have been successfully transferred and

costs were at the bottom of the anticipated range.

accounted fon The




Page 24

AAON Hewit

Disclaimer

This document and any enclosures or attachments are prepared on the understanding that it is solely
for the benefit of the addressee(s). Unless we provide express prior written consent, no part of this
document should be reproduced, distributed or communicated to anyone else and, in providing this
document, we do not accept or assume any responsibility for any other purpose or to anyone other
than the addressee(s) of this document.

Notwithstanding the level of skill and care used in conducting due diligence into any organisation that
is the subject of a rating in this document, it is not always possible to detect the negligence, fraud, or
other misconduct of the organisation being assessed or any weaknesses in that organisation's
systems and controls or operations.

This document and any due diligence conducted is based upon information available to us at the date
of this document and takes no account of subsequent developments. In preparing this document we
may have relied upon data supplied to us by third parties (including those that are the subject of due
diligence) and therefore no warranty or guarantee of accuracy or completeness is provided. We
cannot be held accountable for any error, omission or misrepresentation of any data provided to us by
third parties (including those that are the subject of due diligence). This document is not intended by
us to form a basis of any decision by any third party to do or omit to do anything.

Any opinions or assumptions in this document have peen derived by us through a blend of economic
theory, historical analysis and/or other sources. Any opinion or assumption may contain elements of
subjective judgement and are not intended to imply, nor should be interpreted as conveying, any form
of guarantee or assurance by us of any future performance. Views are derived from our research
process and it should be noted in particular that we can not research legal, regulatory, administrative
or accounting procedures and accordingly make no warranty and accept no responsibility for
consequences arising from relying on this document in this regard.

Calculations may be derived from our proprietary models in use at that time. Models may be based on
historical analysis of data and other methodologies and we may have incorporated their subjective
judgement to complement such data as is available. It should be noted that models may change over
time and they should not be relied upon to capture future uncertainty or events.



Page 25 Agenda ltem 8

Haringey Council
ltem
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
28" June 2012
Title: Pension Fund: Asset Allocation advice

Interim Chief Financial Offjcer

Report authorised

-
Nicola Webb, Head of Finance — Treasury & Pensions
Lead Officer: nicola.webb@haringey.gov.uk
020 8489 3726
Ward(s) affected: N/A Report for Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 This report considers the Pension Fund’s current asset allocation
and recommends the investment of cash currently managed in
house.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That £25m of the Pension Fund cash currently managed in house is
allocated as part of the passively managed portfolio to overseas
equities with the decision on the precise regional allocation to be
taken by the Interim Chief Financial Officer in consultation with the
Chair, having taken into account the views of the Pensions Working
Group.

4. Other options considered

4.1 None.

Page 1 of 3



Page 26

Haringey Counci!

5. Background information

5.1

5.2

5.3

In April 2010 the Pensions Committee took the decision to sell
bonds and hold £60m in cash on the advice of the investment
adviser, Aon Hewitt. This cash has been managed in house and
invested since then in line with the Council’s Treasury Management
Strategy.

In August 2011 a decision was made under the urgency procedures
to invest £30m of this in overseas equities on the advice of the
investment adviser as the price of equities had fallen considerably
at that time.

The remaining £30m has been kept in cash pending the transition to
the new investment strategy.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and financial implications

6.1

Allocating cash to overseas equities will bring the Pension Fund
closer to the agreed benchmark. Over the long term, equities are
expected to provide a higher investment return than investing in
cash, although volatility in value is to be expected.

7. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications

7.1

The Council as administering authority has the authority to invest
the Pension Fund monies. Such investment will form part of the
passive investment portfolio previously approved by Committee and
the monies must be invested in accordance with the Local
Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of
Funds) Regulations 2009 and the Pension Fund Investment
Strategy.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1

Not applicable.

9. Head of Procurement Comments

9.1

Not applicable.

10. Policy Implications

10.1

Page 2 of 3

None.



Page 27

Haringey Council

11. Use of Appendices

11.1 Appendix 1: Aon Hewitt — Asset Allocation Update

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

12.1 Not applicable.

13. Asset Allocation

13.1 Aon Hewitt have prepared a report setting out their advice and this

is attached at Appendix 1. This shows that the Pension Fund is
currently 5.3% underweight against the benchmark allocation to
equities. The property and private equity allocations are also
underweight, but these are long term asset classes which cannot be
added to quickly. These asset classes will form part of the review
of alternative asset classes to be undertaken initially by the working

group.

13.2 The cashflow of the Pension Fund has changed significantly over

the last 12 months. During 2010/11 the Fund had a surplus of
around £1m per month of contributions over benefits. However
following the reduction in active members and increase in
pensioners during the early part of 2011/12, it is now in a situation
where the contributions coming into the Fund every month are
generally sufficient to cover benefits.

13.3 Allocating £25m to overseas equities will leave the Pension Fund

Page 3 of 3

with a balance of around £6-8m to meet benefit payments and to
honour drawdown requests from the private equity manager. The
balance will fluctuate during each month as contributions are
received before benefits are paid out. However it is expected that
this balance will be sufficient to manage the fluctuations.



Page 28



. Page 29

AAON Hewitt

London Borough of Haringey
Date: 14 June 2012
Prepared for: Corporate Committee
Prepared by:  Colin Cartwright

Asset Allocation Update

Introduction The reorganisation of the Fund's assets from active management to
passive management is now complete. As part of this reorganisation the
Corporate Committee decided to move the assets in their current regional
allocation to LGIM and BlackRock and take decisions at subsequent
meetings based on market conditions as to how to move to the long term
benchmark. In addition the Fund has around £25m in cash that is
available to invest. The purpose of this paper is to recommend whether
any movement to the long term benchmark is appropriate at the current
time and advise on how to invest the available cash.

31 May 2012 asset The table below shows the asset allocation as at 31 May 2012. At the time of
allocation writing these figures were unaudited and are therefore subject to change.
CBRE &G BlackRock Pantheon Total

Asset Class £m £m g £1 % £m i Y Benchimark
Equity 1472 753 3131 7638 459.9 647 70.0
UK Equity 277 140 1602 393 1875 264 17.25
Overseas Equity 1195 613 1529 375 2724 383 52.25
Index-linked Gilts 20.8 10.7 948 233 115.7 163 15.0
Caorporate Bonds 27.4 14.0 27.4 3.9 -
Property 53.4  100.0 53.4 7.5 10.0
Private Equity 29.8 100.0 298 4.2 5.0
Cash* 250 3.5
Total 53.4 100.0 1950 100.0 407.9 100.0 298 1000 711.1 100.0 100.0

* Cash available to invest. Source: Northermn Trust

Comments on asset * The Fund is underweight its strategic aflocation to equities by 5.3%

allocation (64.7% vs 70.0%)

- However, itis overweight UK equities by 8.9% and underweight
overseas equities by 14.2%

* Index-linked gilts are 1.3% overweight
* Overweight corporate bonds as a result of medium term view
» The Fund is underweight alternatives by 3.3% with

- Property underweight by 2.5% and

— Private equity underweight by 0.8%

Consulting | investment Consulting Practice

10 Devonshire Square | London EC2M 4YP

t +44 (0) 20 7086 8000 | f +44 (0} 20 7086 1878 | aonhewitt.co.uk

Aon Hewitt Limited | Registered in England & Wales No. 4396810 | Registered office: 8 Devonshire Square London EC2M 4PL
Authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority.

This report and any enclosures or attachments are prepared on the understanding that it is solely for the benefit of the addressee(s). Unless we
m provide express prior written consent o part of this report shiould be reproduced, distributed or communicated {o anyone eise and. n providing
0 this report, we do not accept or assume any responsibility for any other purpose or to anyone other than the addressee(s) of this report.
\*- K Copynght © 2012 Ao Hewitt Limtted. All nights reserved



Page 30

AAON Hewitt

Aon Hewitt Market
outlook

Provided below is summary of our views on the main markets at the
current time.

Equities

Global equities have been struggling for direction for over two years and
there are few hints that this is about to change. We see equities
continuing to be weighed down by Eurozone concerns and a looming
slowdown in corporate profits. Inthis environment we see equities

. remaining trendless and volatile. Therefore we are recommending clients

remain close to their strategic allocation to equities and use periods of
market strength / weakness to rebalance back to their strategic target.

Within equities, we are currently reviewing our position on the different
regions to consider the relative strength of the US and the ongoing
concerns in the Eurozone.

Bonds

The ongoing perceived safe haven characteristics of the UK gilt market
have kept UK gilts and index-linked gilt yields close to historic lows.
However, we feel this position is unsustainable as persistent inflationary
pressures and the government's large issuance needs mean gilt supply is
rising rapidly. It is our view that UK gilt yields are on long and bumpy road
to higher yields. In this sort of environment index-linked gilts should out
perform fixed interest gilts and we continue to recommending clients hold
index-linked over gilts.

Investment grade corporate bonds are well placed to outperform fixed
interest gilts with the current level of credit spread adequately ;
compensating investors for taking on the credit risk versus gilts. Even so,
it should be noted that in a period of rising gilt yields, corporate bond
returns would be dampened to some extent in absolute terms.

Alternative asset classes

With the conventional asset classes of equities and bonds facing their
particular challenges we continue to encourage clients to consider
alternative assets for diversification purposes and as a source of return.
No allocation to alternative assets should be made until the Working
Group has reviewed the Fund's current property and private equity
holdings and considered a wider allocation to alternatives, which is
scheduled for later this year.

Consulting | Investment Conisulting Practice



Page 31

Recommendations for
the Fund

So far we have discussed the position of the Fund as at 31 May and Aon
Hewitt's view of markets, we now need to consider the implications for the
Fund - especially as there is around £25m of cash available to invest.

The Fund is currently 5.3% underweight its equity allocation (around
£35m), therefore based on Aon Hewitt's market view that clients should
be close to their strategic weighting we recommend that this underweight
should be removed and ideally this should be following a period of market
weakness.

Within equities this money should be directed towards overseas rather
than UK to reduce the underweight allocation to overseas equities. The
region within overseas equities that this money shouid be directed will
depend on market conditions at the time. Aon Hewitt will provide a
recommendation on which region to invest at the Corporate Committee
meeting on 28 June which will also consider the merits of reducing the
overweight to the UK.

The medium term allocation to corporate bonds should be maintained.

It should be noted that given the ongoing situation in the Eurozone and its
impact on markets, Aon Hewitt will provide a verbal update on 28 June
that these recommendations are still valid.

Consulting | Investment Consuiting Practice



Page 32

AON tewit

Disclaimer

This document and any enclosures or attachments are prepared on the understanding that it is solely
for the benefit of the addressee(s). Unless we provide express prior written consent, no part of this
document should be reproduced, distributed or communicated to anyone else and, in providing this
document, we do not accept or assume any responsibility for any other purpose or to anyone other
than the addressee(s) of this document.

Notwithstanding the level of skill and care used in conducting due diligence into any organisation that
is the subject of a rating in this document, it is not always possible to detect the negligence, fraud, or
other misconduct of the organisation being assessed or any weaknesses in that organisation's
systems and controls or operations.

This document and any due diligence conducted is based upon information available to us at the date
of this document and takes no account of subsequent developments. In preparing this document we
may have relied upon data supplied to us by third parties (including those that are the subject of due
diligence) and therefore no warranty or guarantee of accuracy or completeness is provided. We
cannot be held accountable for any error, omission or misrepresentation of any data provided to us by
third parties (including those that are the subject of due diligence). This document is not intended by
us to form a basis of any decision by any third party to do or omit to do anything.

Any opinions or assumptions in this document have been derived by us through a blend of economic
theory, historical analysis and/or other sources. Any opinion or assumption may contain elements of
subjective judgement and are not intended to imply, nor should be interpreted as conveying, any form
of guarantee or assurance by us of any future performance. Views are derived from our research
process and it should be noted in particular that we can not research legal, regulatory, administrative
or accounting procedures and accordingly make no warranty and accept no responsibility for
consequences arising from relying on this document in this regard.

Calculations may be derived from our proprietary models in use at that time. Models may be based on
historical analysis of data and other methodologies and we may have incorporated their subjective
judgement to complement such data as is available. It should be noted that models may change over
time and they should not be relied upon to capture future uncertainty or events.

Consulting | [nvestment Consulung Practice



Page 33 Agenda ltem 9

Haringey Council

Item
Report for: Corporate Committee | number
28" June 2012
Title: Treasury Management 2011/12 Outturn & Quarter 1
2012/13 update

interim Chief Financial Officer
Report authorised
by :

Nicola Webb, Head of Finance — Treasury & Pensions
Lead Officer: nicola.webb@haringey.gov.uk
020 8489 3726

Ward(s) affected: N/A Report for Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 This is a report to members on treasury management activity and
performance during 2011/12 in accordance with the CIPFA Treasury
Management Code of Practice. It is a requirement of the Code for this
to be reported on to Council once Corporate Committee has
considered it. In addition it provides an update for members on
treasury management activity during the first quarter of 2012/13.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That Members note the Treasury Management activity and
performance during 2011/12 and the first quarter of 2012/13.

4. Other options considered

4.1 None.

Page 1 of 11



Page 34

Haringey Council
5. Background information

5.1

5.2

5.3

The Council approved the Treasury Management Strategy Statement
for 2011/12 on 24" February 2011. Corporate Committee is
responsible for monitoring treasury management activity during the
year and this was achieved through the receipt of quarterly reports.
This outturn report is a requirement of the CIPFA Treasury
Management Code of Practice and it summarises the activity during
2011/12.

Government guidance on local authority treasury management states
that local authorities should consider the following factors in the order
they are stated:

Security - Liquidity - Yield

The Treasury Management Strategy reflects these factors and is
explicit that the priority for the Council is the security of its funds.

Prudential Indicators for 2011/12 were set by Council on 24" February
2011 and two were revised on 21* November 2011. They have been
monitored on a quarterly basis during the year.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications

6.1

The treasury management strategy in 2011/12 was to continue to
maximise internal borrowing and, therefore, to minimise cash
balances. This policy not only reduced credit risk in the year but also
reduced the cost of borrowing. In addition the policy of taking short
term borrowing from other local authorities instead of long term also
saved interest costs during 2011/12. As reported to June Cabinet in
the Council’s outturn report, the net underspend on the interest
budget in 2011/12 as a result of these active management decisions
was £1.389m.

7. Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications

7.1

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this
report. Its content and recommendation are in accordance the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and consistent with
legislation governing the financial affairs of the Council.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1

Page 2 of 11

There are no equalities issues arising from this report.



~Y

Haringey Cournci

Page 35

9. Head of Procurement Comments

9.1

Not applicable.

10. Policy Implications

10.1

None applicable.

11. Use of Appendices

11.1

Appendix 1: Summary of Treasury Management activity & performance
Appendix 2: Prudential Indicators

12. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

12.1

13.

13.1

Not applicable.
Economic and treasury portfolio background in 2011/12

The UK Bank Rate remained at 0.5% throughout the financial year as
the UK economy struggled and then entered recession in the latter
part of the year. Issues in the Eurozone continued to dominate
markets throughout the year and the concerns around bank
exposures to the weaker economies led to a number of credit rating
downgrades for banks, as well as the countries themselves. This
background meant short term investment rates remained only
marginally above 0.5% during 2011/12.

13.2 The Localism Act passed into law in November 2011 which enabled

the reform of council housing finance. The Housing Revenue Account
subsidy system has now been abolished and replaced with self-
financing whereby authorities support their own housing stock from
their own income. This reform required a readjustment of each
authority’s housing-related debt based on a valuation of its council
housing stock. For the Council this meant that on 28" March 2012,
£233.85m of outstanding PWLB loans were repaid by the Department
for Communities and Local Government.

13.3 The position of the treasury portfolio at the end of the financial year

Page 3 of 11

compared to the previous financial year end is shown in the table
below. This shows the reduction in PWLB borrowing resulting from
the repayment of debt in respect of housing reform and a reduction in
the cash balances invested. The sections which follow describe the
activity in the borrowing and investment portfolios.



X

‘-*

‘Page 36

Haringey Courcil

14.

141

14.2

Page 4 of 11

Treasury Portfolio Position at |  Position at
31/03/11 31/03/12
£000 £000
Borrowing
PWLB Fixed Maturity 460,806 201,544
PWLB Fixed EIP 24,000 9,682
PWLB Variable EIP 18,000 7,746
Market loans 125,000 125,000
Other Local authorities 3,000 50,000
Total External Borrowing 630,806 393,972
Investments
Fixed Term Deposits 3,400 0
Call Accounts 10,400 0
Money Market Funds 14,235 5,470
Total Investments 28,035 5,470

Long Term Borrowing

In 2010/11 the Council undertook little external borrowing as it moved
towards maximising the use of internal balances in lieu of borrowing.
The reason for this was to minimise the “cost of carry” associated with
external borrowing. The cost of carry is the difference between the
interest rate paid for long term borrowing, and the rate of interest
which can be earned from temporarily investing the funds borrowed.
This has amounted to 3.5-4% in the last couple of years. In 2011/12
this policy continued, although there was a finite limit to the amount of
“internal borrowing” which could be done and so £50m of the £53m of
maturing loans was required to be refinanced.

On 28™ March 2012 £233.85m of PWLB debt was repaid by the
Department of Communities & Local Government as part of housing
reform. It was announced early in the financial year that the repayment
would be done by repaying a proportion of every loan the Council had
outstanding. Therefore in order to maximise the amount of higher rate
loans repaid, the refinancing was achieved by borrowing for periods of
1 year or less from other local authorities. Undertaking short term
borrowing from local authorities at an average rate of 0.83% also
ensured lower than anticipated expenditure on interest payments.



Page 37

Haringey Council
14.3 The table below summarises the transactions undertaken during the
financial year:

Repay-
Maturing | ments re New
01/4/11 loans HRA loans 31/3/12
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
PWLB
Fixed Maturity 460,806 (44,500) | (214,762) 0| 201,544
PWLB
PWLB
Variable EIP 18,000 | (1,484) (8,770) 0 7,746
Market loans 125,000 0 0 0| 125,000
Other Local
Authority 3,000 (3,000) 0| 50,000 50,000
Total borrowing 630,806 | (52,984)| (233,850)| 50,000 393,972

14.4 At the end of the financial year the average interest payable on the
borrowing portfolio had falien to 5.87% from 6.8% at 1° April 2011.

15. Investments — activity and performance in 2011/12

15.1 The Council held average cash balances of £41.6m during the vyear.
The balances represented working cash balances and the Council’s
reserves. The Council invested these funds in accordance with the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement agreed for 2011/12. Al
investments made during the year complied with the Council’s agreed
Treasury Management Strategy, Prudential Indicators, Treasury
Management Practices and prescribed limits. Maturing investments
were repaid to the Council in full and in a timely manner.

15.2 The Council’s investment priorities set out in the 2011/12 strategy
were:
1) Security of the invested capital;
2) Liquidity of the invested capital;
3) An optimum vyield which is commensurate with security and
liquidity.
The investments placed by the Council during 2011/12 reflected these
priorities.

Page 5 of 11



Page 38

Haringey Counci

15.3 Counterparty credit quality was assessed and monitored with
reference to credit ratings (the Counci’s minimum long term
counterparty rating of A+ across all three rating agencies - Fitch,
Standard & Poors and Moody’s); credit default swaps; any potential
support mechanisms from the UK government and share price. The
Council has sought to minimise its security risk by setting limits on
each institution on the lending list. The Council has complied with all
these limits during 2011/12.

15.4 In October 2011, many UK banks were downgraded to a level below
the minimum level acceptable for the Council’s lending list. In
anticipation of this happening, the Council had only been investing in
UK banks on an instant access basis for some time prior to the
announcement. All monies which were invested with these banks
were withdrawn immediately in full. The result of the downgrades was
that the Council only invested in instant access AAA rated Money
Market Funds and the government guaranteed Debt Management
Office for much of the second half of the financial year. The table
below shows the investments outstanding on 31% March 2012:

Institution Long Term Amount % of
Credit Rating (£Em) total

deposits

BlackRock MMF AAA 0.905 16.5
Deutsche MMF AAA 0.220 4.0
Goldman Sachs MMF AAA 0.400 7.3
Invesco MMF AAA 2.200 40.2
JP Morgan MMF AAA 0.375 6.9
RBS MMF AAA 1.370 25.1
Total 5.470 100.0

15.5 Throughout 2011/12 credit risk scores have been reported to
Corporate Committee, based on a methodology devised by
Arlingclose, the Council’s treasury management advisers. The scores
show credit risk on a scale of 0 to 10 on both a value weighted and a
time weighted basis and the table below demonstrates how to
interpret the scores:

Above target AAA to AA+ Score 0 -2
Target score AA to A+ Score 3 -5
Below target Below A+ Score over 5

15.6 The scores during 2011/12 are shown overleaf and show the impact
of moving to investing only in AAA rated money market funds and the
Debt Management Office:

Page 6 of 11



Haringey Council

Page 39

Quarter 1| Quarter2 | Quarter3| Quarter 4

2011/12 2011/12 2011/12 2011/12

Value weighted 2.6 2.5 1.0 1.0
Time weighted 1.8 1.8 1.0 1.0

15.7 Liquidity has been maintained throughout the year through the
extensive use of AAA rated money market funds, which operate on an
instant access basis. As all of the Council’s funds were invested in
money market funds on 31% March 2012, the weighted average
maturity of the investment portfolio was 1 day.

15.8 £251k of interest was earned on the Council’s investments during
2011/12 at an average rate of 0.60%, 0.10% above the Bank of
England base rate. '

16. Update on Icelandic deposits

16.1 In April 2011 the Icelandic District Court decided that local authority
deposits in Landsbanki and Glitnir had priority status. The decision
was subsequently upheld by the Icelandic Supreme Court following an
appeal in October 2011. This means the expected recovery rates are
now 100% for Glitnir and 98% for Landsbanki. Following these
announcements the first distributions from Glitnir and Landsbanki
were received. At the time of writing a total of £7.23m had been
received in respect of Glitnir and Landsbanki.

16.2 In addition to the distributions received, monies totalling around £1m
have been distributed in Icelandic krona. However due to exchange
rate controls, this cannot be removed from Iceland. It is therefore
being held in escrow and the legal advisers working on behalf of all
local authorities are liaising with Iceland and UK government officials
to investigate ways of getting the monies released.

16.3 The administrators of Heritable Bank continued to make distributions
during the year and their current base case is a recovery rate of 86-
90% of the amounts originally invested.

16.4 In total £21.5m has been returned to the Council to date which makes
up 58% of the total amount originally invested of £36.9m.

Page 7 of 11



4-

Page 40

Haringey Council

17.

17.1

17.2

Compliance with Prudential Code indicators

The Council set prudential indicators for 2011/12 in February 2011.
The set of indicators is made up of those which provided an indication
of the likely impact of the planned capital programme and those which
are limits set on treasury management activity. Updates to two of the
indicators were agreed by Council in November 2011. Appendix 2
sets out the approved indicators for 2011/12 and the final position for
each of the capital indicators and the year end position on each of the
treasury management limits.

None of the limits on treasury management have been breached in the
year to date. Borrowing is well within the operational and authorised
limits, as the peak of borrowing was £657.8m in September 2011.
The continued policy of using internal cash balances to fund the
capital programme ensured this was the case. The repayment of HRA
borrowing on 28" March 2012 has resulted in some of the figures
looking significantly lower than forecast, however it has been
necessary to have limits at the higher level to ensure there were no
breaches in the period up to 28" March 2012.

17.3 The budget outturn report to Cabinet on 12" June 2012 set out the

18.

18.1

18.2

Page 8 of i1

capital expenditure in 2011/12 and reasons for the movement from
the original indicator. The capital expenditure figure in this report
includes £4.28m capitalisation for redundancy costs. The impact on
Council Tax indicator measures the impact on Band D council tax of
the costs of borrowing to fund the capital programme. The
capitalisation of redundancy costs is classed as borrowing as it will be
funded over the long term. This was not taken into account at the
time the original council tax impact indicator was set, as the
capitalisation had not been agreed by central government. This is the
reason this indicator has increased so much since the original one
was set.

2012/13 quarter 1 update

During the quarter £20m of local authority borrowing has matured,
however due to the pattern of the Council’s cashflow where more
money comes in early in the financial year, it has only been necessary
to refinance £5m. This was borrowed again from Derbyshire County
Council at 0.70%, a lower rate than previously.

Moodys rating agency placed all UK banks on review for possible
downgrade in February 2012 with a view to announcing the results of
the review in May or June 2012. At the time of writing, the result of



/? A

Page 41

Haringey Council
the review has not been announced, but there remains a significant

risk that some or all of the banks on the Council’s lending list are
downgraded below the minimum criteria agreed in the Treasury
Management Strategy. For this reason the Council has been investing
in UK banks on an instant access basis only. Extensive use continues
to be made of AAA rated instant access money market funds and the

Debt Management Office.

18.3 The table below shows the Council’s investments as at 11" June
2012. At this point in time balances are relatively high pending large
payments and loan maturities expected later in the month.

Page 9 of 11

Counterparty Long Term | Period| Amount % of
Credit to (£K) total
Ratin maturity deposits
Debt Management Office AAA* 2 5,050 15.0%
Debt Management Office AAA* 9 3,700 11.0%
Debt Management Office AAA* 9 5,900 | 17.5%
Debt Management Office AAA* 11 3,150 9.3%
Nat West Call Account A 1 6,700 | 19.9%
BlackRock Money Market AAA 1 1,800 5.3%
Fund
Deutsche Money Market AAA 1 1,700 5.1%
Fund .
Goldman Sachs Money AAA 1 2,000 5.9%
Market Fund
JP Morgan Money Market AAA 1 2,000 5.9%
Fund
RBS Money Market Fund AAA 1 1,700 5.1%
Total 33,700

* The Debt Management Office does not have a credit rating, therefore
the UK sovereign rating is shown.



X

-*-

Page 42

Haringey Counci
Appendix 1: Summary of Treasury Management Activity & Performance

1.

2.

3.

4.

Treasury Portfolio

Position | Position Position Position
at Q4 at Q3 at Q2 at Q1
2011/12 | 2011/12 2011/12 2011/12
£000 £000 £000 £000
Long Term Borrowing PWLB 218,972 | 469,806 490,806 502,806
Long Term Borrowing Market | 125,000 | 125,000 125,000 125,000
Short Term Borrowing 50,000 43,000 13,000 3,000
Total Borrowing 393,972 | 637,806 628,806 630,806
Investments: Council 5,470 40,849 29,110 49,140
Investments: lcelandic 19,441 24,107 24,939 25,746
deposits in default
Total Investments 24,911 64,956 54,049 74,886
Net Borrowing position 369,061 | 572,850 574,757 555,920
Security measure
Quarter 4 | Quarter 3 | Quarter 2 | Quarter 1
2011/12 2011/12 2011/12 2011/12
Credit score - Value weighted 1.0 1.0 2.5 2.6
Credit score - Time weighted 1.0 1.0 1.8 1.8
Liquidity measure
Quarter 4 | Quarter 3 | Quarter 2 | Quarter 1
2011/12 2011/12 2011/12 2011/12
Weighted average maturity: 1 3.95 1 1
deposits (days)
Weighted average maturity: 24.80 21.83 22.18 22.35
borrowing (years)
Yield measure
Quarter 4 | Quarter 3 | Quarter 2 | Quarter 1
2011/12 2011/12 2011/12 | 2011/12
Interest rate earned 0.39% 0.67% 0.77% 0.70%
Interest rate payable 5.87% 6.05% 6.43% 6.49% |

Page 10 of 11




2

4

Page 43

Haringey Council
Appendix 2: Prudential Indicators

No. | Prudential Indicator 2011/12 2011/12
Approved Position/Actual
Indicator at 31/03/12
CAPITAL INDICATORS
1 Capital Expenditure £79,874k £89,340k
2 | Ratio of financing costs to net Sy meE e R
revenue stream = =
General Fund 4.95"% 4.49%
HRA 31.90% 26.65%
3 Capital Financing Requirement £773,366k £495,617k
4 Incremental impact of capital ETE e
investment decisions S Sk
Band D Council Tax - £1.00 | :5291—
Weekly Housing rents £0.02 £0.01
TREASURY MANAGEMENT LIMITS
5 Authorised Limit £946,879k £393,972k
Operational Boundary £818,434k £393,972k
6 Upper limit - fixed rate exposure 100% 95.85%
Upper limit — variable rate exposure 40% 4.15%
7 Maturity structure of borrowing (U: Rl
upper, L: lower) L U [oeiidftasaes
under 12 months 0% | 25% 17.98%
12 months & within 2 years 0% | 25% 6.23%
2 years & within 5 years 0% | 50% 9.64%
S years & within 10 years 0% | 60% 10.21%
10 yrs & within 20 yrs 0% | 60% 5.54%
20 yrs & within 30 yrs 0% | 60% 3.07%
30 yrs & within 40 yrs 0% | 60% 2.54%
40 yrs & within 50 yrs 0% | 60% 25.76%
50 yrs & above 0% | 60% 19.03%
8 g:;r;s invested for more than 364 £90,000k 0
9 Adoption of CIPFA Treasury
Management Code of Practice ¥ Vi

Page 11 of 11



Page 44



Page 45 Agenda ltem 10

o Grant Thornton

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY

EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - JUNE 2012

Work Progress

2011/12 The accounts will be with us by the 30 June 2012 and we will start the audit
Accounts audit | on 2 July. Our findings of the audit will be reported to those charged with
governance at the September Corporate Committee meeting.

2011/12 VFM Financial Resilience 2

We have completed our work on Financial Resilience and the report is being
presented at this meeting.

Procurement review

Work is underway on this review and we will report our findings to the
September Corporate Committee.

2011/12 Grants | The 2011/12 grants certification plan has been agreed with officers and is
available from Democratic Services as a background paper if required. Work
has started on the Housing and Council Tax Benefits grant claim.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
June 2012



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



panssal SIybU || "d T MN UOIUIOY L JUBID 2102 ©

Agenda ltem 11

Page 47

aoueINsSsY 1031995 21|qnd 4711 MN uoluioy] juels)

woo1byn@uoyloAnb 3
€06¢ 8¢/ 020 L
Jebeueyy Jolussg

uoyp Ang

woo i yn@uassop’ined 3
081L€ 824,020 1

Jauped

nessoq |ned

¢l0caunr 0c

IDUIISY

[BIOUBUL] SUINDIS JOJ SIUQWISUBITY S,[IOUNOT) 9Ul JO MITAY

ASBunIe[] Jo ysSnoiog UOPUOT]

uojuloy | Juels) o



paniasal sIyBL (I 'dTT YN Uoluioy] WeID 210z ©@

¢¢ obed aouewuopiad jeroueuly Jo siojedipul A9y - xipuaddy
(o0}
4
O 9z abed |oJjuo) [eloueUI{ G
(@]
Dnm Lz obed 9OUBUIDAOY) [BIOUBUIH T
G| obed Buiuue|d [e1oueulq a1b6ajens ¢
6 abed siojeaipu] Aoy g
¢ abed Arewwing annnoaxgy |
Nleeilifelg

aoualjisal [eloueuly Bulindas 10} sjuswabuele s,|1Iouno’) ay} jJo mainay — AsburieH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

aouewuopiad jeroueuly Jo siojedipul A3y - xipuaddy

|oJluod |eloueuly G

Page 49

92UBUIBAO0Y) [eloURUI] T
Buiuueld |eloueuly sibajens ¢

siojedipu] Aa)] ¢

Alewwing aannoaxg |

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (I “dT1 YN UOIIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

Page 50

“3urpa250ns 10U JO YSIF YSIY & 9ALY Aewy JO o1enbopeur
AJ[e3oua3 ore STUSWASULIFE S [IOUNOT) Y T, S[SHX YSTH

"PAUSTPSULIIS 9 O PIJU SIUSWISUEIIL IJIYM SEIFE PFEMIO]
Bum{el ST [PUNOY) 93 1BY) DUIPIAY [[E J0U Inq ‘s109dsox SNy

Qwos T 23¥[d UT 93¢ SONSTIAIDEIEYD PUE SIUOWIIULITE

91enbopy :s9ssoud[EOM JO / PUE SYSII [ENIUOJ

-00e[d Ut 2q 01 Jeadde oopoesd pood
JO SOMSIIANOLILYD A9Y PUE PIYNUIPI SIUdWRSUEITE 9Jenbopy
:sprepuels d1enbope pasodxd 10 199w SIUSWISULITY

"STONIUTOP SUIMOT[OF o3 IM Sunes (YY) U933 / Joquue / POF & PIsn 9ABY d A\

‘saduo[reyd

23mIng ssa3ppe 03 20e[d UT SWwAIsAS Sy [IPUNOT) Y} 0U P[NOM M YSnoyfe

‘syeo o3IMIng UT 9SUBYD AL JUIWSSISSE JN() ISIBLIDIEW O 194 JALY W) WNIPIW
oY) J9A0 SOZUD[[EYD pUE SYSIF [enuai0od o) Jo awos axoym ‘porrad ()1 YS FeaLk
-INOJ oY) JO JLdA PU0d3S oY SI €1 /710 YeYd IX9IUOD UI P’ 01 spaou 130dox siy T,

‘ovenbape 978 90UDI[ISAT [EDUBUL SUIAIIYDE
JOJ SIUOWDSUEIIE JUIKIND 1T ‘puoAaq pue ¢ /Z 10 SULNp saSud[eyd pue
SY[STF JULDTTUSTS SWOS $I0BJ [IOUNOT) Y IS[IYM 183} ST UOISI[OUO0D [[BIIA0 IN()

‘MOT[[O]
jeql uHOQQH 931 JO sUOnd9as oyl ur UDTTVOH& ST SB2J¥ 9893 JO [dEo UO [relap Joying

‘[ornuod [epUeuy 01 yorordde siy .

pue “ooueuroA0d [enueuly 03 yorordde sy .

Buruuerd [enurury oidaiens 03 yorordde 1 .

©2ourwIogrod [BDULUL JO STOJEDIPUT £33

:7e SU{OO[ Aq [IPUNO7) SU3 JO IUINISIF [BDULUY ) PIMIIAIF IABY A\

130d03 STY3 JO 91EP SY) WOIJ SYIUOW 7| ST MIIAIJ

90UDIISaF [eURUL Syl JO sasodind oY) 703 93MINg 9[qE9I$I0F JO UORTULIP YT,

“waY3 03 vondnISIP ISTWIUTW 0} Sk AeA € YoNs Ul I PAII[dWOod pue 1900 YIIm
JUSW99I3E PUE UOISSNOSIP UL JJOM JNO INO PILITED DALY 9\ "9ININJ I[(eI952I0]
o 303 91e39d0 03 INUNUOD 03 31 SI[EUD Jet UONISOd [eIDUEUL J[qelS B 9INIIS

01 pue ‘sonrumizoddo pue sysiF [eroueuly sIT 9Seuewr 03 99e[d Ur sassadoxd pue
SUWI9ISAS [BIOULUTY 1SNCOF Sel] [PUNOT) 913 JOUPIIYM PIFOPISTOD JALTY 9M SUIOP OS UT

*9DUDI[ISOF [EIDUBUY SULNO9s 303 90e[d ur syuowasuesse 3odoxd
ey [IOUNOT) 93 JT UTWIAIOP 0 MITADJ © SISTIdUWIOD JIpne [EUINIXd AJ0INIEIS
o Jo 1red se ‘vorsnpPuod (NJA) ASUOTA F03 oanfe A Fno sunioddns yrom 0

UorsNOU07) ASUOTA J0J dNJeA

yoseoadde anQ

Arewrung 9ARNIIXA]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (I “dT1 YN UOIIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

Page 51

"YSN0J0qIal0J pue 23pIquIL)) ‘PeaIsSuLIS PIA UOPUO |

3UN29UUO0D ‘JOPIIFOD YIMOX3 O3 UT pajendis st A9FULIB[] "UOPUO [ [e1IUID JO
INO PUE UT SYUI] PEOJ PUE [IeF POOST 97€ 939 T, JUowdO[oAIP oMU IPISSUO[L
sooeds uado pue sonuad 28e[[1A,, JOP[O Jo uraned e surelar AoSuer]

‘ydnosoq a3 ur uayods a1 s93enIue] IUIIIP ()97

J9A0 pue spuNoIsydeq Arourw ouyls woij a7doad jo vonsodord jueoyrudrs
€ UM OSTOAIP ISOW I} JO SUO OS[E ST 3] *A1UNod a3 ur sysdnozoq paardop
ISOW 93 JO UO ST ASSULILE] [[F9A() "AIUNOD 913 UT seare paanrdop 1sow

911 JO SUO ISEd Y UT WEYUNO T, 01 1S9M 9} UT 9JESYSIH JO POOYIMoqysou
snozodsoxd oy woig soys1ams ysnozoq ay T, -opdoad oLz FoA0 JO
vonemdod e s vopuo yarou ur ysnojoq pajemndod Apsuap e st LoSurrer]

1X91U0)) [e20

"L10C IsTI]
1B [QUN SNURUOD 91019 [[IA £1139)sne [edULUL] L [-910Z PUt 91-S10Z YOq
UT SWI9) [823 UT 0/,6°() JO suononpas Surpuads orqnd soyping pasunouue ‘1 1)

FOQUIDAON] UT JUSWIAIEIS UWNINY SIY Ul ‘JonbaydX;] 9y3 JO JO[[20UBY)) YT,

414
Arenue( [¢ UO PIWIFUOD 939M SIY T, " 1) FOqUIDI(] § UO PIdUNOUUE SBM ¢

- 10 ¥0J 1U2WOM119G 9DULUL,] JUSWUFIAOL) [0 [EUOISIA0Id SIUIWUIIAOL) YT,

*931ed 30 995 © Aed srowoisnd aroym ‘Furyred red

SE [ons ‘S90TAIIS JWOS JOJ PUBWIP SUTSEIIIIP B SI I3} PUE ‘SIIIAIIS WOS JOJ
pUBWIP SUISEIIOUT 9FE STOIOEJ PISE( UOISSIDIT pue JIyder3owop Uaym dwn e 1k
SWOd SUORINPAX SUIPUNJ 34T, /007 02 L66] Porrad oy Summp o/,64 £q pasearour
YoM ‘Surpuads JUDWTIIA0S [ED0] UT YIMOIF pauTeisns Jo porrod e smof[o STy T,

"T1-110C U SUORONPII YSED 048 Y3 ‘PIPLORUOL]

972 SUORONPIX SUIPUNJ JUSWUIIAOS [0] ‘UORIPPE UT *30309s o1qnd a1y

UT $IND 1$937] 9U3 JO JWOS FUOL] JUIWUIIAOS [€I0] MM SUIFI) [E9F UT UOHONPIX
0/,87 & 01 sa1enba sy ‘vonefyur 303 Summorre 1213y *(9o170d pue 2113 ‘sfooyds
Surpnpxa) G1-$102 A9 9,61 £q 20NPa3 [[IA JUSWUIIAOS [£D0] 0 FUIPUNJ INUIAIY
's,0¢61 2 2ours Surpuads orqnd ur suoponpax 1sa8e] oY) patuasardor ()1 YS

"porrod o 3940 0/,07 £q poonpas sem Jurpuny

71D 'SI-4102 03 Z1-1107 :porad morass Surpuads yeak-mog o 303 (STH)
swr oxmypuadxy [eausunieda( Juswurosos) paysiqnd 130dax pajenosse oy,

"G1-$ 10 Summp soue[eq 0lul oeq saoueuy onqnd Suriq

01 UORUIIUT AU} I VDOP [BUONEU ) SUINPIT 03 95U0dSIT S JUIWUIIAOLD)
uonIEo ) 21 JO 1red [ENUD B PIWIO] SIYT, (10T 3240320 ()7 U0 TUSWerFe]
01 (0TYS) M91a9Yy Surpuadg oyp paounouut 1anbayoxi 93 JO JO[[POUEY)) YL,

1X91U0)) [BUOTIEN]

}X3juU09 |Eed07 pue [euocijeN

Arewywung 9ATINIIXA]

aoualjisal [eloueuly Bulindas 10} sjuswabuele s,|1Iouno’) ay} jJo mainay — AsburieH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

*303098 o) JurdE] SAZUI[[BYD

[EIURUY 1ULDGTUSIS A[[EUONEIIUIS 9 JO IXDITVOD O UT ST ST T, "SI[OF IDULUIIA0S JO 1UIQED UM SIOqUIIU
303 syuowarmbox oousrrodxo pue IS oU) PULISIOPUN 19119 O PIIUV © ST 9JOY) JT JOPISTOD P[NOYS [DUNOT) YT,

usaly *$93UBYD Y3 JO FUIPpPIqUID

[NI$$920NS 91 FJOIUVOW O SINUNTOD [[PUNOT) oY) PUE PaFmbaz [Ns s1 95uLyd [2INOIABYI] FTOAIMOL] 9OULBUIIAOL) [EIOULUL]

. *sogueyd 9591 03 9su0dsar oantsod 7oA A[[EFoUdS € seA 9391 YFOMP[OY FNO SULIN(T "INO PI[[OF SEM JOTLULA
£oSurre] ot 3o 1dodU0d oY) puE ‘¢ -0 SUBNP 998[d J0O] 92FN0SIF 9OUBUTJ O) SUORINPIT JULIPTUSIS

"STeA [eroULUY
JUD229F UJ SI[NSIF PI[OS PIFIAIPP SBY ILL) 9DULUIIA0S [eouLul 03 [oeordde paysqelsd [[oM & sey [[DUN0T) oY,

"UONTDIF 9J8J SSAUTSN( PUE WIOJIT dFeJ[oM JO 100dsoF UT st yons

¢$05UD[[eYD [BIOULUL JUBIYTUSIS 9J€ 239U ], 'G-$ (g F0F uonrsod [epueury o3 Jo AUTeIrad 191e913 apraoid o3
pue (41/€10C #03) dILIN 2 urpim w9 7 jo ded 108pnq Surpueisino oys 100w 03 pasmboz st spom 10in,]

'suondo sSuraes jo 1uowdopaop

o Sunmp sisA[eut AIANISUIS 9YLIFIPUN PUE 2eF DY 03 2d0ds JWos [[AS ST I T, ‘¢ [-Z [ (7 SULmp s3uraes

. 30 £32A1[op 913 J0F o[easown voneudwa[dur-oxd 2An29339 230w ® sapraoid Yoty Feak snorasxd o 103
uey) 9240 Suruueld [erURUY 91 JO 93EIS JOIFED YONW E I8 PIAINIE sem [eaordde pue UONEOHNUIPT SSUTAES o

*STOQUUIDTA] PUE SJOOIJO JOTUDS Aq [oAI]

91e30d7100 € 1B Po213e 01oM STUIALS PUE $193PN(] "PIAIIYDIE 2IM S[IA[ SSUIALS 9INSUI 03 ‘$1957e) [erusuntedop

uaaln

Suruuel [eOURUL] O1391ENg

JO UORINPORNUT O3 Aq PaMO[[0] ‘sSuraes Surdynuapr 01 yoeordde aerodroo e pardope [puno) oy,

‘porad JALIN 2y Supnp snd0g sig

urejuTew 03 Juedroduwr 9 [[I4 31 pUE QusWwRSeurw 20Usqe 01 Yorordde 1snqos v pado[oadp sey [PUN0D) Y,
“21-110¢ Surmp we'¢1F £q puadszopun 03 18829305 ST 31 ‘Qwwuersord
Teardes oy jo Suryord oyl UT opEW U29q SABY SIUIWIAOFJWI IS[IY A\ "PISI[EIF U 2ALY SSUIAES WG (O} UaYM

‘ 7eaf e Sunmp ‘wy '¢F Aq 1uadsropun uImnno anuoads [euorsiaoid pun,] [BIOUIL) 19U Z1-1 10T MMMMHWCMM W . e —— o

Page 52

usain

23MINJ UMOUY J0J J9A0D jenbape opraoid sapuaSunuod puE $9AJISF A[QR[IEAE JO [2AI] S [IOUNOY) o) [[EIAQ0)
*S[0A] SUIMOIFOq PUE $90UE[eq DS(T ‘945593 ‘Arpmbiy ur suononpox
91BDIPUT SPURR ST, SFO1BIIPUT IsoW JOF dnoid 101esedwod ysnorog UOPUOT ay1 JO SPUIFI 1U2IF
SUIMO[[0] ST [IPUNOT) U3 ‘SUIID) [BFIUIS UT Ve 2JLIIPUT 20ULWIOJIdd [LIOULUTJ JO STOIEIIPUL A0 PISFLWLDUIY o

JUSUISSISSE
SUOTIBAIISQO Arewruung ©IIE I[STY

SSI [949] YSTH

sjuswabuelly JO MIIAIBAQ
NG,NESSm QATINDIXT]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



pansasal sIyBL Iy 'dTT YN Uoluioy] eI 210z ©@

Page 53

“$10¢ #dy U1 9AT] 08 woIshs MoU € 995 [[Ia YIryM Guowamd0id wirope[d [y paFeys 1UaImd o)
JO dWO2INO [NJss230ns 93 Surpuad ‘pjoy uo 1nd Udaq IABY SIUIWIITLYUD WASAS JUIINg INq Z[-1 (g SuLmp
dVS vo [001 tondaford 193pnq Mou & PoINPORNUT SEY [IDUNOY) dUJ, * SONIANDE PUNOIE YIOM JAISUIUT INOJE]
3O FoquNu & 91e30d100UT $2IMPa003d 1U2IIND JU ‘AeM A[PWN € UT SYSIF [BIDULUY 23eUEW O} [IDUNO7) U3 JOf
. UONEWIOJUT SUFOIUOW [EDULUT J[qeI[2F 9praoid 01 pasn uaaq A[[edIFOISIY ALY SWOISAS [BDULUL A3 IS[IUA\ o
“SWISTUBYDIW 2DULINSSE [BUINIXD PUE [BUINUT JO Judwio[dop
arerrdordde so1ersuOWOP OS[E [IPUNOT) I T, *SIJIATIS PI] PULWIP UOU Ul puads SUI[ONTOD UL PIOIF
Po0S A[oS3e] © sey pue JuowaSeurw sdurwIojrod pue epuUrUy 01 yoroidde 1snqorF B ey S [PUN0D) oY,

uaaln
ﬁOH—QOU ﬁwmoﬂ&ﬁumhﬂ

JUWISSsIsse
S[SI [949] YSTH

SUOTIEAIISqO Arewruung ©are qSIy

m"-.:@:.-wm:ﬂ.:< JO MIIAIBAQ

5,@883@ QATINDIXT]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

“JUSWIUOIATD [BUFIXD 913 UT A1UTeIFooun Jo
[PA9] JUDIIND U] 1D9[JOF 01 SISATeUE AITANISUDS
pue Suruue[d orreuads asymHn A JILIN 9YL

ssa001d Juruued [epurury

WI9) WNIPSW Y3 SULNP 9SIFE SIUaWIMbas
st JuowdO[oAIP PUE SUTUTEI} OAIIDIT
STOQUUSWU £33 JLU 9INSUD [IA [IOUNO) YT,

“£[2A1109330 pasinn

PUE PAILIO[[E ST 903N0$2F JO [249] terrdordde
o 1B 23NSUD “9oukur] Aerodron)
UONEINSUOD UT T\ 918F0IDI(T Y], ‘PIIdy

Page 54

poIsy

‘01 paJoype
o3¢ 12 sue[d A79A0093 1SNQOT ABY SIDIIP
Aue 1e) pue [9A9] 2enbope Ue B oFe SIOUL[Eq
1B} 2INSUD 0] TUIWIILULW [EDULUL
P91E32[Op JO SILILPUNOQ I} UTYIIM ‘S[OOYDS
S3UD[eYD PUE PIA JFOM [[IA [PUNOT) ST,

asuodsar yuswaSeuey

SurosuQ

€10C
Areniqo,]

¢10¢
Foquadoag

Buro3uQ

Burodu()

Seosaw],

IO
[ERUEUL] 31D

IO
[ERUEUL] 1Y)

SdAD
JO 3012231

9330
[EPUEUL] A1)

SdAD
JO 3012231

Lmqrsuodsay

“UB[{ 9 JO dweIjown
S UIIIA SUTBWIDT 1Y) AJUTEIF20UN [BIDUBUL ) pUe
‘pormboz s sSUIALS 9} JO 9[€IS I} UAIS DATsuodsax
SUTBWDF LA 2U3 eyl 9INSUD 0 PIsu [[IA [IOUNOT) ST,

*S9[0J DULUIIAOS

3O J2UIqED TPIA SIqUIOW JOJ s1udwarmbar oouarradxo
PUE [[IY[S U} PUBISIOPUN 19139q O} PIJU € ST 219} I
JOPISUOD P[NOYS [IPUNO7) 3 F0ID3S I3 SUIOL] SIFUI[LYD
[erourUly JULDYTUSIS A[[EUONEIIUIS o) JO IXIVOD I} UT

"SIOTAFIG S,UDIP[IY))

urypia semnonsed ur ‘sseooxd Suruued (ssaursnq) ferueUYy
put 201398 [enuue o) 3roddns 03 stsA[eut ssoursnq 103
901mosa7 93errdordde st o301 2INSUD P[NOYS [IDUNOT) YT,

“POUTEIUTEW ST 9DUDI[ISOF [BIDUBUL INSUD
01 Apmbr] s [19UNO7) 91 JONVOW PUE SIATISIF JO S[OAI]
aerrdordde urerurews 01 onNUNUOD PMOYS [IDUNOY) YT,

‘padeuewr A[9AR9339 ST puan) o) pue [949] errdoxdde ue
1€ UTEWDJ $90UE[Eq DG 2INSUD 0] “PIFOITVOW A[[NJOFEd
2q 01 onunUOd sasndins pue sIPPIP PadIde renoned

UT ‘s00UE[Eq S[OODS JEYI INSUD P[NOYS [IDUNOT) YT,

uoneIdpIsuod 1oy syurod Aoyp

Suruue[q
[EIOURUL] O1391EMg

QOUBWIONIdJ
JO SI01edTpU] A93[

MITAJI JO BIATY

sdajg }xaN

Arewrung 9ARNIIXA]

aoual|Isal [eloueul}

BulINoas 10} sjuawabuelle s,[1IoUno0s ay} Jo malnay — AabulieH jo ybnoiog uopuo-



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

"pa2Isy

owIGoF

Surroyiuowr 198png Furosuo 9!

30 17ed se ssouIsnqoI 303 PIJUS[TEYD
pue paay3IysIy 9q [iM s3uraes
Sunesuodwod 30 FurEAIaIUNOY)

"ssa001d
o3uarreyo 393png o1 jo 13ed se

PaAIIASY 9 [ LN ¥1/€10C 24
303 voneIuawmdop suruueld 103png

‘suerd

SSOUISN( IDTAIIS (I POPPIQUID
pue ¢1/210¢ Sumnp payodos

3q [ ST, “paugap 43ojopotpow
SunreWIYOUIq PUE PIFHUIPT
U292 SBY STOIEDIPUT JO 193[Skq

Page 55

PN pue pasieue

9J€ SPOdU SUTUTER JEY) INSUD

pue spesrexdde oouewzoyrod ysnoryp
ssox301d JOaTHOW I [IOUNOY) YT,

ssuodsar juswaSeuey

Surosu

3uro3u

¢l0¢ vwmny

€10C YFeIN

10T YN

S[edsowL],

IO
[ERUEUL] 1Y)

preog a1erodion)

pUE 392330
[eRUEUL] J91UD

preog arezodion)

PUE 1901330
[ERRUBUL] JO1YD)

2OUBWIOJIJ

pue £o1[0 JO
PEOH PUE 9oUBUL]
a1e30dI07) JO proy

12230

[EPUEUL] JoIY)
PUE 2ANNDIXH

JorYD) IUEISISSY

Amqisuodsay

‘porrod umopasop

Z1-110¢ 22 SUIMO[[O] 90UBUTJ UT SSUTAES JJels oyning pauued
S$SISSE-YSIT PUE 92IN0S2F TORDIUNJ 2DUBUYJ UT UORINPIT

a3 Jo 1oedwr oY) JOIVOW 03 INUNUOI P[NOYS [PUNOT) YT,

PUIED

oy pue D) Aq pooIsIapUN 19139q ST UOISTA0Fd 20TATIS UO
1oedwr Fo1) pue PayRUIPT A[FE3]0 93¢ SSUTAES SUITEATIIUNOD
1eq) 0s ‘suorsioap Aorjod Loy 01 pares aso AfFemnonied
‘s300(03d s3uraes pPaoide UMM sSurALs SUIEAIIIUNOD

JO TOTSN[OUT 913 SUTFOITUOW JIPISUOD P[NOYS [IPUNO7) ],

"Z1-1102 Sunmp syuowiredap [[e JO§ 95€d 9y} JOU SEM
oy querdwod Ay st voneiuawmoop ssuraes sunroddns
dALIN 30 uorsiaoxd oy 1ey3 2I0SUD PNOYS [PDUNOT) YT,

'sdno1s Sunprewyouaq MaU YSIeISd O} SINIOYINE

[890] J930 YIIM YoM “SURIBWYOUaq JO $903n0s ur sded
9TE 2JO} IIYM PUE ‘SUNTBWDUI] [LUTIIXD JOJ PIFHUIPI
97E $1S0D JTUN 90TATIS A93[ JLU} 2INSUD P[NOYS [PPUNOY) YT,

“SJUWDULYUD [V FOUPIng ur Le[op paoide

ot 3o 31 ur Apremonred ‘Sa0TAIIS UT S[[IYS JUSWAFEUTW
[eroueuy do[eAdp 03 anURUOD pu parmbar sodueyd
[BFNOIABYD( JO SSIUANDIJD oy Joruow ‘yoeordde saSeuey
£o8urre] oy paquud 03 INUNRUOD O3 SPIJU [PUNOY) YT,

uoneIdpIsuod 1oy syurod Aoyp

[0RU0Y) TeOUCUL]

ADUBUIDA0L) [eIdUeUl

MIJAIT JO €IFY

sdo)s 3XaN

Arewrung 9ARNIIXA]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

aouewuopiad jeroueuly Jo siojedipul A3y - xipuaddy

|oJluod |eloueuly G

90UBUIBA0Y) [eloURUl]

Page 56

Buiuueld |eloueuly sibajens ¢

siojeaipu] Aoy g

Alewwing aallnoaxg |

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



pansasal sIBL Iy "dTT YN Uoluioy ] WeID 210z @

Page 57

[12uno?) ybnosog uopuoT weymap
j1auno) ybnoiog uopuo uojbuls|
AauoeH jo ybnosog uopuoT
weysima Jo ybnoiog uopuo
jlounog ybnolog uopuoT juaig
[1auno?) ybnolog uopuo] Asbuuey
playug jo ybnosog uopuo

153104 weyyepn Jo ybnoiog uopuoT
yiaque jo ybnosog uopuoT
sja|wey Jamo] jo ybnoiog uopuoT]
Buie3 Jo ybnosog uopuoq

[12uno) ybnoaiog uopuo] mojsunoy
[12UN0Y) UOHaA

[12UN0Y) }lemyinog

[1ouno?) ybnosog yuomspuejp
[12unog ybnosog uopuoT yalmuaals)

ssopoyIne Suimoroy oyl Sursrdwod

dnoi3 Supprewyduaq SINOQUSIOU 159382U S, UOTSSIWUIOY) ITPNY I PIsN IABY DA\

193pnq 1suteSe UINI-IN0) .

S[9AJ] 9DUISE SSAUYIIS o

SUONEIO[[E H)G(] 03 $IOUL[EY - SIAFISIY S[OOUYDS o
$19$SE W) SUO[ 01 SUIMOITO] W) U0
9NUIAIT XE) 03 SUIMOIIOQ WiI) SUOT
SIMIPUIdX oNUIAIY SSOIL) [SIATISIY I[LIS[]
ones [earded SUION

:9PNOUT STOILIIPUT 39S T, "O[(E[TEAE ST LIEP STYI dIOUM PISFeWoua( ‘0ourwroyrod

[BIDURBUL JO SI01LITPUT 495 JO ssA[eut sopn(our 150dox o) JO UONDIS SIYT,

uoi}onpoJyuj

SIOJEDIPUT A9

aoualjisail [eloueuly Bulnoas o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabunieH jo ybnolog uopuo

0l



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

“w ¢F Arevorsiaoxd

ST SIULT, "S9OUE[Eq PUN,] [EFOUIL) 01 Z]- (7 ¥OJ PuadsIopun anusAdI 19U 9} IEI0[[E 03 A[DYI] ST 390LJO [G] UONIIG oY,
"SYSII IMINY JDA0D 0} J[E[IEAL
SOAJISOT PINFEWIFED SBY [[1IS [IOUNOT) Y} SIDUEPUNPII PUNJ O SIATISIT PIJYFLWIELI JO SN oY 231dSIP Jey) 910U P[noM I

usaly F9AIMOY] 'SUYBN0IOq UOPUOT] ¥91N0 JO dnoid Sun{rewyouaq o Jo |- Ul SOATISIT JO [9AI] I1SOMO[ JUTO[ o1 PeY [PDUNOD) YT,
"20UBpPINS YV JID UM UL UT TUSWSSISSE YSIF §,7201JO [G] UONIAG
. oY1 UO Paseq ST PUL ‘¢ [-Z (g FOF 1uawormbaz 103png 10U s,[IPUNOT) Y JO 04 s1U2sa3dox G*()]F JO 2oUr[eq PUNJ [€I0UIS YT,

“JUEISUOD SUTUTEWIDF 20UL[E] PUNJ [6IOUIS 1) PIM WQ'QHT 01 ‘C1-Z 10 SULMP S[OAS[ 9AFISIF 01 UONINPIF PANUNTOD B SISLIIIOJ

AL 9YL "92uk[eq pung [e3oua3 oy Sunuasardor wig )] F WM ‘Z10Z Y2FBIN [ I8 SOATISIT W ¢'()9F ISLIDIOJ [IPUNO) T,
"T1-0T0C PUE 01-600C U22439q [(() A pIseasduT $9ATI$9Y “H()°() OF

0 80°0 woij (drmrpuadxo Jo 9FeIusorad € Se) SOATISIT J[QEISN $IT JO IN[EA I} PIONPIT [IPUNON) AP [[-010Z PUE §0-L00T U2MII o  SIDUB[EE SAIISIY
To)
()
(@] "1D1 %03 3opraoxd 9014305 paSeuew spooyds oyl pue IS¢ owweisord 1T 21er0dion) oy uo
Dnla usai o8eddis Suraq asneo Ayewrd o (o, 2°¢1) we ¢ 1T £q puadszopun 01 15809305 ST Z-1 10 F0F pauued swwesdord eardes oy,
198pnq paaoxdde oy ueyy ss9 Juraq s1s00 JupueUY [L3Ided 01 anp wig'¢F Jo puadsyopun ue SunsedaF0) ST VYYH YL, e
. “¥eak o) 30J 2ourwI0FIod 9ATID0JFO AFOA B S2IBIIPUI ¢ [[BIIAO ‘PUE SSUIAES WG ()} F SUISIESF [IOUNOT) o) JO
IX9JUOD I3 UT ST SIY T, “WZF JO puadsIopun 1SeI970F B YA ‘SIOTATIG SUISNOL] PUE SINPY St jusunsedop 29014798 Sunnqrmuod 193png 1suredy
urews 9y [, “winpino [evorsiaoid o uo paseq (0,¢'1) wi, ¢ F £q 1uadszopun 103pnq onUAIT 19U PUN,] [LIIUIL) ZI-1 10T OUL e OULWIONID J

JUSUISSISSY SUONEAFISqO Ayeuruung SN20J JO eIy

aouewiouad Jo MIIAIDAQ

SJO1BDIPUT A9]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

geEINERER
ST SUTpUNJ [EUORIPPE ST} SWN Y3 A SIDIJOP JO [BAOWT Y3 OF PI] I0U dAeY SUL[d ATIA0OIIT IIIUYM S[OOYDS ISOUI I SIDFIP
JO [9A9] 913 SUTONPIT UT DATNOIJFD 9q PINOYS ST T, "PIEATO 4 -C [0 WOI HS(] Y} 03 PIpPe 2q 03 paidadxa st wig:, F [euonippe
Uy uounsn(pe 1800 vaIE 93 BIA SUIPUNJ S[OOYDS 01 UOHE[IF UL JUIWUIIAOL) OU) PIIqQO] A[NFSSI00NS Sy [OUNOT) YT,
‘Tenuey o3 a1epdn 01 Suruued ARUarINd 10U ST [IDUNOT) 3 T, *$98$2003d [EIDULBUL-UOU PUE [EDULUI £33 01 UONE[]
UT SOOYDS [[& 03 TONEWIOJUT PUE 20uLpm3 Je[nsas opraord pue /(0 UI [BNULA 90UBUL] S[0OYS & papraoid soueur] ajerodion) .
*SOIWIOPEIY 01 SUNE[IX SINSST FOPIM I} JO UONEIIPISUOD
Jopia 81 Jo 1xed sk ‘saour[eq S[OOTIS JO [9AS[ 9UI UO SIAMWIPEDY JO 19edwur o1[) JOPISTOD 0} SNURUOI O} PIJU [[IM [DUNOT) YT,
"paSeutw £[9AND9JJ0 ST PUIT) SUDNPOX
o pue [249] agerrdordde ue Je uTewDT $I0UE[Eq OS] INSUD 03 PITOITOW A[NJOTLd 3] O3 SPIJU ST} TIAIMOL] "PIFLIN0OISIP
aq prnoys pue aexrdorddeur ore so0UE[Eq SAISSIIXD B} PUE JUIWIIPN| SUT € ST S90UE[Eq S[OOUDS SUISEUBW JL[) ISTUSOIIT )\ o
‘TouNoN) o Aq parenyead Suraq Apuazmd e sued £79A0093 IDTOP FOY T, "A[[ERUEISqNS PISEIIOUT
sey ] pue ‘A[renuelsqns £10A podnpar oY SIDYIP ¢ ‘S[ooyds A1epuodas Jo,J 's198pnq ¢1-g1(Z FO / PUE UININO Z1-110Z
uo paseq sue[d £39A0093 312159P oY $$93303d 01 SNUNTOD SIDYOP YPIM S[OOYDS [[V "SIDOP MU paizodor 2ALl ¢ pUE ‘paseardur
. JABY ¢ ‘PPAOWIDF A[[ERULISNS JO A[[NJ U9Q 2ALY] 7 ‘PIINPF ALY SIDYIP 9 ‘S[00YIs Ayewnsd J0J 18] PISIAPE U2Iq JABY I\ o
‘sue[d £79A0097 J1D1JOP UO S[OOYDS 1M YIOM 03 PIFe3ud U29q sey 20usrradxo [euLuy
[ERUEBISQNS (1M JOYDEI) Peay Jowioy v ‘padeuew A[orerrdordde ore sossaoord [erueury Loy arnsus o3 sonifiqisuodsas [eoueuly
I JJEIS PUE ‘STIOYDE) PEIY ‘STOUIIA0S [00YDS J0F Sutures) Suneloey ore pny [euraiu] 4q paizoddns “Goueur] a1erodion)
*S[OOUDS WOTJ PIAIIIF SUFNIDT VO PIseq g[(Z YOTLIN [€ € St W] CF 01 S20UE[Eq [OOUDS IARE[NIND PISLITOUT
SEY OIYM WG/ 7 JO puadsiopun 19U € Sey S[OOYDS J0J UINIINO INUIAI Z[-[ [()Z Y2 JEY} 910U oM FOAIMOF] "porrad
paxFewyoUaq a3 Surmp samssard £re1a8png Jo INSIT SE SIOUE[EQ VO UMOP AEIP 01 SONUNUOD HG(T JLUD SIILIIPUT ONEI SIYT,
*S9JUL[eq JULIYTUSIS ALY S[OOUDS JO AIFOUTW Y 1u9[eadrd ayow Surosaq 1o1e]
o) YA ‘SIPOIIOP PaduadY 30 sasnfdins pajedofe LArrofews oY) I 9dUL[eq UT 9JoM S[OOYIS M) £I9A "ZI1-110C PUE 11-010C
SuTINp PaMITADT U2( IABY S[OOYDS 7¢ dwwerdord Jpne Z1-110g FOUI JO 17ed Se $o0Ue[eq S[OOYDS PIMITAIT IIPNY [EUINU]
"11-010g 303 dnosd
POSTEWYDUI] 9} JO ONET 1SIMO[ I} SEY PUE ‘TEIA-UO-TEIA SOTIET 1SIMO] ) JO SUO PIUTLWdT APUISISUOD SEY [PUNOD) YT,
“porrad Iy 1940 9589309p JEak-U0-7EA APEaNs B M [1-0T0Z O 80-L00T
woiJ 0,09 Aq Paseardop sey (3eak oy3 J0J PIAIIIIF TONELIO[E HS(T [10I Y3 01 BONE[F UT SIDUL[E] S[OOYDS) ONEI S[DUNOT) Y], «  SIOUE[e( S[00YDS

laquuy

Page 59

JUOWISSISSY SUOIEAJISqO %HNEESW SNO0J JO eary

aouewiouad Jo MIIAIDAQ

SJO1BDIPUT A9]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



pansasal sIBL Iy "dTT YN Uoluioy ] WeID 2102 @

Z1/T107 T1/0T0Z 01/6007
+ 006
r 0Te
I 06
(%) uopuoy J2INQ——
I 0€6

(%) uopuo |1y -
(%) |euoneN— I ove
(%) HE1— I ose
“l\l,lh.ll 096
—— L 016

086 ‘938 TGONIIOD

st vo 3oedur 01 ApPy1[ o3¢ uonendod JUSTSUEI JO S[PAS[ Y PUE YSnoroq Y Jo sired owos ur uoneArdop JO S[oAJ] 1B}
210U 9\ "S9SEIOAE UOPUOT] J2INO PUE ‘VOPUTO] ‘[CTONET dU) UL} JOMO[ SUTBLUDF 21e] S [IOUNOT) 9 ‘SaIBIIPUT MO[dq d[qEI I SE
3oA2MO0H puan premdn Ue SUNENSUOWAP ST 2% YD PUB 0/,¢°GG SBM Z]-1 (g UI Xe ], [PUNO7) JOJ 9183 TONII[OD S [IDUNO) YT,

usaly “f1pmbriy 130ddns 031 pasmbox oq 1Y) pMoys ‘Woorpesy SUIMOIFOQ IULIYIUSIS SLY [[DUNO0T) U3 18] 910U M ‘JOAIMOF]
“pazoIuOW A[[NJOFED 3¢ 03 PIIU [[IM PUE ()[YS JO ISIN0D [[Ng o3 Supnp 2inssaxd SUISEIIOUT FopUN SWOD [ [e31ded SURIoN\ o
. “ADTADT JOPUN SUTEWDI ING ‘C1-Z [0 F0F NUNTOD [ L1pmbi ur uoponpas pauue[d siy T,

"20ueeq VY H 2 Juswidne 01 pasn jo swwesdoid [eardes oy 01 payedo[e

q [ YRIYM “wiy 6 [ 30 snfdins € Sunseadsoy st UN0Y YT, 'Z1OT YIFEIN 8T UO IGP JO Wiz predas puno) oy, ‘predas

oq [ 3qap 711 Jo uonsodord e ouno’) 9y SUIPNOUT ‘0] € JOJ INq ISEITOUT 1IP JO [9AI] FIDYI 998 [[IA ISOTN 1P Sursnoy
[EUONEU 91 JO 2FeyS B P2IedO[[e SULdq S[IUNOD UT INsF [ waisks Aprsqns Sursnoy oy 01 Sune[or swioyar SUPRUEUY-Js VYH

"SJOSTAPE JUQWASEULW AINSLaT) §,[IPUN0T) 9} DSOPSUIFY JO

9OTAPE [BUIIXD I} VO paseq ST £321e1G YT, "YSIF IPID UT TONINPIJ & PUE ‘$1S0d SUIMOIFO] UT UORINPas w¢'f 01 paf sey Lorjod
STUT, *S93EJ PIONPIT YA SUBO[ WIS} JIIIOYS UO SUISSNO0J PUE Iqap SuLieaq 1$9391UT Y3Iy ‘wira) 1a3uof jjo Suided st ounon) oy,

“Z1-110¢ Sunmp suorsiaord pue S$oOUEEq 9ATISIT JO ISN PISLIIOUT Uk 03 pof dwwerdord

Page 60

fouepunpas 9y ], “SUIMOIIOQ [BUFIIUT O JUIWISIAUT [EUIIIX WOIJ JAOW & PIONPOFIUT SBY [IIYM ‘£3911IS JUIWISEUBA]
Amseas], s,[DUNOY) 9yl JO 20uanbasuod e ST uoponpas opes [eardeds SuFoM o) 1ey) PAILIIPUT 9ALY SIIITJO [DUNOY)
"11-0102 ¥03 dnoi3 Sunjrewryouaq o3 T ones [earded SUFOM 1SOMO[ PUOIIS IUI SBY [IOUNOD) YT,
"SINOQYSIOU 152783T $IT JO ISOW UBY) 121833 APUednIusdTs sT (0/,69) porrad syl Summp 2sea1dop Jo el s,[PUN0Y) oy [, "pord sy
Sunmp sas€9309p F824 U0 FedL M ‘T [-0T0Z UT ZL°0 O3 80-L00Z UT 8()'C WOIJ paonpax sey oneJ [erded Sunrom s[ouno’) oy, Lrpmbrg

JYOWISSISSY SUOMEAJISqO %H.NEE—JW SNO0J JO eary

aouewi0ad JO MIIAIDAQ

SIOJEDIPUT A9

aoualjisail [eloueuly Bulnoas o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabunieH jo ybnolog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

Page 61

uaaln

uaaln

JUOWISSISSY

‘s330do1 Sumroliuow 2dUEWI0§Iad
pue soueUR o JO 1red WI0F YOIy JO SINdINO OSEqeIEp JUIWITEULW I0JOJFOM PIPILSIT [[9M B SEY [IOUNOD) YT,
JuowaSEUEW JOTUds s ayord orerrdordde ue urelar 01 sonupuod
20U9SE SSIUDTS JO IUIWISELULW U3 1B} SAILIIPUT ST -1 [0 SUrmp 29e[d j003 18y} 23ULYD [eUONESIUESIO JULITUSIS
oy u2AIL) “Feaf snoraard oyr uo woponpas o0 € pAruasardor 1,1 3od 1172 JO Z1-1 10T SUMMP [2A3] 90UISE §,[PUNOD) YT,
"STe2A 297} IS¥]
S JOAO PUDI) SUISEIIIIP B U] Sky] 259U INg ‘s3eaf JnoJ 1sed o) JOA0 PILNION[J ALY S[OAJ] DUISE SSIUYIIS S [IOUNOT) YT, I2JOF[IO N

‘PUSTI [[EFOAO ST} (PIM
JUDISISTOD ST [IPUNOY) 9T, *0/,GZ JO dnoI3 sIoqySou 197eou 91} JOJ 9SeaId9p dFeroAe U PIM ‘porrad owres oy Supmp sones
oY) paonpaz aaey (9] Jo Mo GT) dnois payrewyduaq ayp Jo fapolews oy ], "A891eNg JuowaSeur]y AINSLaL], S [IOUNOY) 21 YIIM
sul[ ur st pue “(0,0) 11-0102 03 (24LS) §0-L00Z WOIJ 0/,0¢ Aq PIseLaFdIP S| ONEI $195SE 0 SUIMOIIO] WI) SUO[ § [IOUNOT) YT,
*SA\DTADY 9JUDI[ISIT [EDULUY 25Ny
Sunmp pasieut oq [[im sopes 2sat vo £o11od Juswdedas 1qap sy Jo 1oedwr oy, ‘G107 YIFEN [€ 3T WE 99T 01 2107 YOFEIN
1€ e w717 woIg ‘SumoIIoq [eUFAIXD U SUONINPIF Jedf-TO- JeaA $1580930F £301811G JUSWASeUB Ay AINSLII], S [IOUNOD) OU T,
“0/, Tt JO 9SBIIOIP
9FeroA® UB PIA [1-010C 03 80-L007 WOIJ S[AJ] SUIMOIIO] JO PUIR PFeAUMOP JL[IWIS € UdIS ALY SONIOINE JNOqUSIOU
159789U 913 JO [V "%, ¢-7 JO ones v oAy eyl (9] JO o ;) dnoi3 poyrewryouaq o3 Jo J[eY ISOwe [PIM oUT] UT £[peoiq
[1PUNOY) 9Y1 1YSNOI] SEY PUIT PFEAUMOP STY T, "A50181G JUdWSeuL]y AINseax], S,[10UN0Y) o) i aur ut st pue ‘((11-0102)
9419°Z 03 (80-L00T) %%L6 ¥ WOI) o/, £q paonpas sey (9nUaAdx Xe) JO 938Iu2d3ad © se) ones uIMoIFoq Wwixal Suof §,[PUN0) YT, Sumorrog

SUONEAFISqO Ayeuruung SND0J JO BTy

aouewiouad Jo MIIAIDAQ

SJO1BDIPUT A9]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo

142



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

Page 62

aouewuopiad jeroueuly Jo siojedipul A3y - xipuaddy

|oJluod |eloueuly G

90UBUIBA0Y) [eloURUl]

Buiuue|d [e1oueulq a1b6ajens ¢

siojedipu] Aa)] ¢

Alewwing aallnoaxg |

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo

Gl



panssal SIybU || "d T MN UOIUIOY L JUBID 2102 ©

"SI LIN 92 UIPIA PIPN[OUT TONBWIOJUT 93 WO3J SporFad 93ning J0J PoATIop oq Ued ST
*92JOJFOM SUIPN[OUT ‘SII32IENS £33 JOYIO YIIM JUISISUOD ST PUE 03 PaYUT] ST S, LIN Y.L
~ASD Surpnpur suopdwnsse SIIOT023 JO 93ULF € SuTsn [9POU SIT UO FUNS) SSoRIS pawirogiad sey [punon) Ay,

“SYSIF [EIOULUTJ SIT SOSLULW PUE SOOUEISWNIID SUISULYD 01 spuodsar [ouUnor) oy T, *If UM opew suondwnsse au3 pue ST 9Y? JO MITADF JE[NGF ST 93T,

Page 63

*A397e7s [eroULUY W9l F9SUO] oY) MO[[0] sue[d [eULUY [ENUTY

*239 $301ed1puT [enuapnid ‘sooue[eq 9AF95F JO 199dsax ur sporrad
9IMINg JOJ 198 U99q 9A.Y $1237e T, “Sunprom diysrouired vo spreaop pue Suruue[d 905n0soF ‘SuRrewyoUaq ‘Suruue[d OLEUIDS ‘SOINSEIW SWOINO SIPNPUL SN UL, e

‘sonForrd o $90In0s9F $9SN00F QT TIA oYL, ‘sso203d Suruueld [eroutury o) YSNOFYI JUIPTAD ST SoRTFOTFd 91870dF0D JO JUSWOADIDE UO SNJ0,] o

:ST0JEIIPUT SUIMO[[O] 2 ISUTESE 20UewF0FIad S [I0UN0Y) 9y Passasse aAeY am Suruse[d [EIDULTY 91591E1S JO MI[AD} INO SUNINPUOD UT

Buiuueld jeioueul} a16ajels poob Jo sioledipul Ao

SuTuUR[J [EIOUBUT,] J1591BTIQ

aoualjisal [eloueuly Bulnoas 1o} sjuswabuelle s,[19Uno0) 3y} Jo maInaYy — AsbulieH jo ybnoiog uopuo

91



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

JouUIqe)) 9y pue JINHD Aq A[21830d100 poropIsuod uall 95am swol amoI3 pue suondo suraeg
‘[[eJ3F0YS SSUIAES 93 199w O] a3pnq Iseq
[PUNOD [[e3940 a1 Jo uonsodoid [eruouniedop UO Paseq ‘UIAIS UIYI 93om $1953) 9AREIIPUT ‘sanrumizoddo s3uraes Aynuopr
0] PoY[St 939M $I030IP A[[entu] "qINTD Aq A[eorsorens payoeordde orom pue ‘syead snoradrd ur se pasniorrd o5om sSUIALS o
“POPPaqUIS U22q SeY Z[-] (g SULMP U eIIopUN SUFNIONTISIT ) 9OUO ‘MITAT IOPUN UONEIIPISUOD STd dooy
[[I4% INQ SI2INOSIT DUEUL JO [9AI[ PIONPAF 3 03 anp (¢7) Sunadpng pasegq 0707 1udwdwr 01 J0U PIPIIP [PUNOY) YT,
*o[042 Suruueld [epueuly
. IX9U o1} SULINP PaYRUIPT 9q 01 ST YPIYM ‘W'9F sem porrad s JOJ [[eJIFOYS SSUIALS U3 g [(g £3eniqo,] A "pa2ide pue
PIRUSPT STUIALS JOUIINJ PUE PISIAT 2I9M $[-C [()Z OF €[-Z10¢ F0F suondumsse o240 Suruue[d [eULUY C1-71(0Z Y} SULN(
‘W F JO [[EFIOYS & SUIALI] 195PN( INUIAF
Z1-110T 942 UT Papn[dul o3om Udrgm Jo Wi ‘ueld oy Jo porrad o) 3040 [ [(g £3enIqo,] UT Paaise aJom Wy} J9A0 JO STUIAEG
“Y1-€102 01 Z1-1107 Surmp wg¥ o Surpuads anuaAds ur SUONINPII pasmbar pagnuapr [PUNOT) Y3 ()1 YS JO 20Uanbosuod e sy

'ST-H10T 03 ¢1-¢10Z porad o 303 (qLLIN) verd dALI
[BIOUBUY W19} WNIPaw Jea£-005) parepdn ue yaim Suofe ‘Z (g YOFEIA UT 39S SEM ¢ [-Z ()¢ FOJ 198pNq oNUIADJ § [IOUNOT) YT, 33 JO sNdOJ

uaaln

Page 64

1UDUWISSISSY SUOTIBAIISqO Ayewuung SND0J JO BTy

AB3ajeag [e1oueuld wid ] wnipap

SUTUUE[J [EIOULUIL,] J15EHG

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

"23e7) Te1D0S S,U2IP[IYD) T Jenonsed ur ‘ssaoord Suruueld (ssaursnq)

[BIoUBUY PUE 901AJ0s Tenuue o) 370ddns 03 sis[eue ssoursnq 303 201nosox aterrdordde st o301 9INSUD PINOYS [IPUNOY) YT,
suondo

SSUTAES JO UONEINUIPT 29U JO 19SIN0 ) WOK SISA[eue ATANISUDS SUIYEIFOpUN puk Sunes Oy 0] 2d0ds Jou1my ST 05T,
*$90®J [IOUNO7) U SIFUI[[BYD I3 [[E [[BI9P UT PULISIOpUN O}

% laquiy SIOQUUDTA] JO Tenua1od ou3 SUNTWI] ‘Ue[ 9Y} UM PIILPI[OSTOD J0U [[IIS ST UOREWIOJUT ST} ‘S[2A9] Surpuads a3ning wo 1oedur
() SU3 PULISIOPUN O} PUBWIIP JO SUIPPOW IYLIIIPUN SIITAIIS [ENPIAIPUL IS[IYM VEY) PIIEIIPUT SIIDJO YA SUOISSTOSIP INC) o

(= . *92IN0SIT I[qE[IEAE JO [9A3] 93 U2AIS arerrdordde st Suruueld OrFEU2dS JO [9AI] SIYI SIOPISTOD [IOUNOT) I JLYI dTLME
Dﬂl“ 9J€ 9M ] ]-()[( FOJ MOTADF DUIIISIY [BIOULUL] IO wo3,] $$3303d Fumias 193pnq a3 350ddns 03 $901439s [ £q [001 © st pasn

Arewzog J0u sem 17 ‘syuswade[d Inpe se yons ‘s198pnq siF YSIY JO 1UWSSISSe YsiF o1 Jo 13ed st pasn sem Suuued OFEUDG o Suruuerd

*00noexd poos st pue s3uraes sunuawodwr Jo5 Suruue[d 23NSUS 01 SWN UT PEI JATNIJJO 2FOW [enuue 01

€ sopraoxd sry 1, *110g Fqueda( put 19qo1d() ‘An( ur spesodord s3uraes Suroaide 1ouIqe)) 9y P O[4d Suruueld [enurUY syur pue LILIN

snorasxd o) Summp U IOTFED SYIUOW 99T} PIPNOUOD sea s3uraes Jo Ayrolews o Jo [eaordde pue UONEONUIPI O], a1 yo adoog

1UOUISSISSY SUOTIBAIISqO Ayewruung SND0J JO BTy

AB3ajeayg [eidsoueuld wid L wnipap

SUTUUE[J [EIOULUIL,] J15EHG

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

JuowAordw owos JuRedIpuI ‘711107 Surnp (94.0°0)
Y697 4q 1uadsiopun 198pnq anuaaas spuawnredap oy, H1-¢ 10g F0F pauueld a3e (LT SureIol sSuraes JoyIn,J "TIIPIYD
3913 PI300[ JO JOQUINT I} UT SUORINPIT pauue[d oU) 0 PAIL[2F STUIALS JJEIS PUE SOWOY [ENUIPISIT S, UIP[IYD JO 9INSO[D
SU[) OPN[OUT SSUTABS PAIBIDOSSY "Wi()'ZF JO 13M0I1s parordde Z1-1 10z 23 UT HONINPIT & PUE SIDTATIG S,UIP[IY)) UT STUTALS WG 7 F
sopnpur swwerdord s3uraes 1-4 107 03 C1-Z10Z UL, ‘SUIpFengajes Uo snNd0j uT03-UO U3 SUTUTEIUTEW IS[IUA ‘UONUIATIIUL
ATFed UO 9371A39S 9} JO SNDOJ 1) 9SEIIOUT 01 U] Iudworordw] 01391eng € dn 10s sey ‘11(g F2qUIDAON] UI [IPUNOY) o1
paurof oy ‘sa01439G s,91d0o ] SUNO X pue U2IP[IYD) JO F0IIIL(] MU T, ¢} JO IFLIIAE [EUONEU & PUE ()9 JO 1 BOPUOT JAINO
Ue pue ‘(g JO 213 UOPUOTT JoUUT Uk P saredwod vopemdod Jo g00‘0T Fod URIP[IYD GZ T JO 21e3 32158 Pasjoo] oy ‘O[duwexa Jo,]
*SINOQUSIOU 1S2TLIT [LINSNEIS $IT IsSFuowe puads JO 0/,()] ISIYSIY oY) UT ST SIIIAIDS [BID0S S,UIP[IY) "dFLD [BI0S 0 UONE[F UT
2101107 UT Papn[our (amoi3 193pnqg w/ ¥ oy SUIpueISipIaou ‘soxnssard 193png 1uaroqur GuedTuSIs Urelas $01AIIG SUIPIIYD) o
‘Teaoxdde sty 3109393 03 W()ZF 03 WG T WOIJ paonpas uaaq sey
9AJ9593 £oUBUNUOD I T, 'sTEaA 0M) JOAO $IS0D Aduepunpar Jo wiGF asedrded 03 [eaordde paaredas OUNOY) 93 Z1-1 10 SuLn( .
’ uaweImbaz 193pnq 19U s [IPUNOD 9 JO 0/t SIUsIdoT YITYM ‘CT-g ()7 FOF 198 SEA WG ()] F JO 90UEB[Eq 9ATISIT PUNJ [BIoUB Y »
*s3uraes Jo AroArop oy ur 93edds Aue oSeurwr 03 wig 7 JO 198pnq £OUITUNUOD € SUTLIDT
C1-7107 UT 9SEIIOUT XE T, [[DUNOT) OU SOWNSSE o
"sarwopedy vo £o10d s uaWuIoA0L) 2 JO 1oedwWr 9yl JO SUIPULISIOPUN 1UAIIND S [IDUNOY) oY) S109[J2F
‘ue[ oy Suraordde Jo swn oy 1€ 15839303 £[21LINDOE 9 JOU P[NOD FULYD ST}
Jo suonedrdwr 9 1L INQ YSIF [LIOULUT [BIINEW © St ¢ [()7 [Fdy WOIJ $9IeF SSOUTSN( JO UONBSI[EIO] ) SISTUS0IF
‘dALNPYL e
‘wontsod [enpueuly G- 107 9y Uo 1edwr pnod
1y} SUIPUNJ JUSWUIIAOL) 0} SITUEBYD [eralew [enualod sORUIpPT Ue[J oYL, " LA 23 Ul papnpur sem w7 Jo 1uswoarmbos
SUIABS 2ADEIIPUT UV ‘G-4 (7 F0F Uonisod [eUBU 91 JO T0103S O} SSOIOT UOWWOD U ‘AJUTEIFIOUN JULDTUSIS SUTEUDT 919U,
" ILN snoraaxd oy ur opew suondwnsse ou pouTeIox suonduwnsse
ue[J oy pue ‘sued Surpuads s uowUIIAOL) oY) 01 SUNE[RF SANUIELIIIUN FUINUNUOD 01 NP H]-¢ 0 U suondwnsse Surpuny Suruuerd

laquy

Page 66

JISTADT 01 JOU PIPIOIP [PUNOY) YT, * C[-Z10C 2SI ST UT - I LJA SUI[OF 913 JO JUO JEaL UO SUBWIDF SNJ0J § [IOUNOT) YT, Jo Aoenbopy

JUSUISSISSY SUONEAFISqO Ayeuruung SND0J JO BTy

AB3ajea}g [eidoueuld wia ] wnIpaN

SUTUUE[J [EIOULUIL,] J15EHG

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

“UOIEIIPISUOD JOUPINJ 01 309[qns oq 03 spaau yprordde Juarmd oy ‘Suruueld [erdULUY WIS WNIPIW
01 $93UD([EYD SWOS SIPIAOId SONUTLIFIOUN [LIOULUTJ WID} WNIPIW ISTIYAN "A[[EITF0ISTY [[24 [IOUNOT) S PIAIIS Sey] $1937€) 193pnq

usalp SUIASIYDE PUE ‘SOATISIT PUE SIDUISURUOD Jo asn i ‘Suruueld reoueuy o1 yoeordde pasienuue Apueurwopaid oy T, 3gouaq
XeJ, [PUNO0T) UT TONINPaJ SUIpuny o0 9 Jo 30edwr oy pue JUoWoSeury F0IQOP 9ANIIIJD ‘SIJOUI] [ESFOATUN 01 SOTUBYD
. ¢$0JBF SSOUTST] JO UONUIOF OPN[OUT P[NOYS ST} W) IFOYS 93 UT "UB[J 9} JO JWEIJOWN o1} UTIIM SUTBWDT 18t Aurelzooun
[erueUy o) pue ‘parmbar s s3urALs o) JO 9[EIS O} UIAIS ‘OAISUOdSIT SUTEWDT UL[J 93 1B} 2INSUD O) PISU [[IM [DUNOT) YT,
Y 1-€10T F0J Paouswwod Apeasye sey] ss9001d sty pue ‘ued 9yl JO SWNLJI] 9U3 SUINP PIMITAIT O] [[IA SFEIL 2JmIN,] uelJ 21 Jo
*o1240 Suruueld [erUBUY 1U9397 I1SOW I SULINP I LN S} POYSIIJOX [DUNOT) oY, ssouaarsuodsoy

‘S9[O J2UBUIIAOS JO JPUIqEd IM sFoquiolW 1O muCDEDMﬁDTDH OUQDGUQNO PUE [[I3s 943 puelsiopun 191319 O3 padu

m © ST 939U JT JOPISUOD P[NOYS [IDUNOT) U3 ‘F0II3S 9y} SUIDE] SIFUI[[BYD [ELIOULUTJ JULIYTUSIS A[[PUONEIIUIS 9} JO IXIUOD I U]
® “(SUOTSUD ] PUE JUIWISLULI ATNSEIL], S YONS SEITE ISI[B2dS J0J S9INIONIS 991TWWOI-qNS
(@) usarp pue sSunoow jo Aouanboaiy) sonrwwor) arerodion) oy Jo Aoenbope o semonred Ut 71 /1107 SUBMP PIdNPORNUT SITIWISULITE
Dﬂl“ 20UEUFoA03 91830d100 03 saSueyd o JO 10edwT o) FUIMITADT SEA [IOUNOT) I} JO FOPELIT S} MITADT INO JO W Y IV
. “A\DTADF PUE TONEINSTOD JOF

own 1918913 Surpraord ‘read snorasxd oy Supmp UBYY JOIFEd PIOUWWOD $s9203d Juruueld [eoULUY O ‘POUONTIW APEII[E S »
"SWNIO0J PI] I9UIE]) YSNOIY) paSedud A[Fe[nGor 93oM SIOP[OY] OI[OJIFOJ "IdUIqe))
pue qINHD Aq pamorads uat oxam sjesodox] ‘swres T, Juswadeue]y [erusunieda(T £q usy) PUE ‘SUIEd) JUSWISEULU [EUOISIATD sassadoxd
1€ PassnISIp pue s201a39s Aq pado[oasp axom suondo s3uraes pue $15832303 193pnq 945 Suruueld [euUrUY o3 SULINCT . MITAY

JUSUISSISSY SUONEAFISqO Ayeuruung SND0J JO BTy

AB3ajea}g [eidoueuld wia ] wnIpaN

SUTUUE[J [EIOULUIL,] J15EHG

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

Page 68

aouewuopiad jeroueuly Jo siojedipul A3y - xipuaddy

|oJluod |eloueuly G

9OUBUIAAOY) [BlOURUIH

Buiuueld |eloueuly sibajens ¢

siojedipu] Aa)] ¢

Alewwing aallnoaxg |

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo

(¥



panssal SIybU || "d T MN UOIUIOY L JUBID 2102 ©

“(parnbaz 37) ooerd wr sueld 3240027 24129772 o7k 230U,

‘Aumnaos jo speaa] ayerrdordde o 103lqns s 31 pue esuEBWwIcIIed Mmaraas A[3BN3aT JoUIqED) PUE SO2IFLULLIOY)

"UOREIUSWS[dWT 0] SNPISAC SUOHEPUSWILIOI] [BUTSIXS PUE [BUISIUT JO JSCUUNIN

‘sanipqisuodsar sumno AFes]d yorym sIap[oy 138pnq  puk 190133 () ‘sI2qUISTAT 307 20€]d Ut sarnpasord pue sarorjod aarsusysrduiod ae 239y,

MITADI pue FULIO)TUOTA]

SUORENSUOD u@@ﬁjﬂ_ M.Emmuj.ﬁu.zm SIOP[OU=23E]S 1 HEQCLDMNM.CQ st D..“M.Qr._ﬂ. .

juduIdFedusy

.wwﬂ:bﬁ“ud muﬂﬂm sounuei8ord -mDMUJO& wgwﬁ_..mﬂﬁwwﬂm ﬁﬂﬂw JU23IND .“_O mCOﬁNU:&EM ~N4Uﬂﬁmﬁm mﬂﬂ_. wuc.mumuvﬁuc.ﬂ s1o8suBWL Tﬂﬁm m..nwummo A

Page 69

‘SEQTIE Mmmu \mbvﬁ mmmu._u.—um o] EUJ,NH_. .CMUO_ th,mﬁ w.EOﬁU4< A

‘030 sisf[eue ooueIEA puE Sutuue[d UONDE Jo [FEjep spnpP W s3rodsy “sTequiRTy o) Sunsodor semdey «

U Mﬂuﬂ—ﬂyﬁw&o ST [IOUNao7) 9] JUstUoHAUS [BEIDUEBUN] 9] JO mﬂﬂmuc.mwwuwwuﬂﬂﬂ FES[0 E SI UH@#F .
Surpue)siapun
:sz0181pur Jutmoriog 2ty 1sueSe 2ourUIIo)Iad § [IDUNOY) Oy} P2SSISSE JABY 2M 2DUBUISA0S [EIDUEUN JO MITAT N0 Funonpuod uf

2ouUBUIaA0D [eIoUBUL BAI}O3LID JO SioJealpul Ay

IUBUIOAOL) TEIDUBUL]

aoualjisal [eloueuly Bulnoas 1o} sjuswabuelle s,[19Uno0) 3y} Jo maInaYy — AsbulieH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

1R *SO[OF 2JULUIIA0F JO JOUIQED YIM SIOUIDW FOF SIUdWaFMbax 20uaiFodXo PUE [[I¥S oY) PULISIOPUN J9132q 01 PIIU 1uowadeduyg
. € SI9JOU JI JOPISUOD PINOYS [IOUNOT) 93 “J0IDIS U3 SUIOEL) SIFUI[[BYD [BIOULULJ JUEDIYIUSIS A[[EUONELIIUIS 93 JO IX9IUOD dYI U] QU
*$$9007d JUSWITEUEW [BIDULUIJ 9U) UT JUIWISEIUD [9AI] JOQUIDW PUE JUIWITeULW FOTUIS JO [049] aerrdordde ue surewos 910y, PUE 2ATINDIXH
‘s1o1BW
Sununoosoe [edruyd9) ur sayepdn apraoxd 01 JJels UYL [[& JOJ SWNFO,] 9DULUL] JENS9F s1s01] Juauniedo(] 20uLur] o],
*oA03dWr 01 PISU [[IS $1SOJ ITUN SE YONS SIANSST JO SUTPULISIIPUN INLWISAS
orowr y "A[IqE 1USWOFEURW [EDULUT JO S[2AI] PIXIW [IIA [DUNOY) oY) SSOIDE Pappaquuo A[[nJ 104 10U 238 paxmbor saSueyd
S ‘JOAIMOT] *19S UI( Sy [9AEF) JO TONDAIIP 2anrsod € pue Suraordwi ST [[DUNO7) 93 $SOIOE ADINN] [BIOULUL JBY) ST MITA INQO) o
23D eID0S S,UIP[IYD UT s3op[oy 125pnq o1 paridde A[nJ uoaaq 124 10U aaey soidpurid soSeuey £05ume
Jequiy “JUSWIOSEURW [BIOUBUTJ UT ADUDIIYJNS-J[9S

SOJIAJOS SPFeMO) UOIssar303d oantsod & Jo ouo sem popraoird 0ansadsiod [[er0A0 o3 I YAOQ FOF 9oUIPIAD PIPrA0Id JI0MpP[aYy
‘ O -23U[[eYD JO 18I St 23U Y} 99s Aewr s7o10 STy Lyrunizoddo ue se 98uryd oy 995 AP SWOS :PIUFIIUOD JJEIS O}

m WOJJ SUONILIT JUSIIJJIP 9] [[I4 9FOY) PUL ‘Paquud AJ[nJ 01 Swn 2Ye) [[IA I1 “93UeYd [eFnoraeyaq Surmbox oAnenIul AUt M Sy
o ‘PUSNIE 01 JOU PIPIIIP ALY

(@) Kews o[07 Jo8euty A9SULIEL] J191 INOqE 9ANISOd JOU 978 OUM SIIDTJFO 9SO I8} YSIF © ST 9JOU3 OS ‘AJ0JEPULW JOU SeM SUIUTEL], o
Dnla dVS UI 9[npow SUII0IIUOW PUt SUNSEIITO MU I UO SUIpN|oUT ‘popraoid sem sioGeue]y AoSumiel] 01 SUIUTES) J[qeIdPISUOT)
“7ea£ o3 Summp (33eIs JO SIPQqUIDW () 3940) SdNOIS FOTeULW YIIM SUOISSIS P[OY QARNIIXG JOIYD) Y,

*$901AFOS 01 20ueUL,] Woxy Arqrsuodsar 1018033 passed sey] 31 Forper ‘ssooo0id JuowoFeurwy 1USWUOIIAUH

[eroURUL o) PA3ULYD JOU Sk [IPUN0Y) Y T, *saniiqsuodsar 1o3euey Lo3umrer] 01 udie 01 paidepe arom suondrrosop [eIOUBUL] 92

qol pue sorgord reSeurwr ‘Surppaquia sir1roddns 01 ‘pue paonponur sem 1doduod FaSeury AoSUre] oy ‘Z1/110C SULIN( . Surpuelszopun

JUSUISSISSY SUONEAFISqO Ayeuruung SND0J JO BTy

juswabebus pue Bulipuelsiapun

9OUBUIIAOL) TEIOUBUTL]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

Page 71

'sdno18 SURILWYOUIq MU YSIeISd 0 SINLIOYINE [ED0] JOYIO LA SYIOM [IDUN0T)
oy “Sunprewryouaq Jo $901m0s ur sdesd 97e 919U} 9IUM ‘PUE SURTLWYOUI] [EUIIXD JOJ PIGHUIPT 9F¢ $IS0D TUN IDTATIS £I3] Je1])

oAy 2JNSUD P[NOYS [PUNOT) ST, *STIIJO WOIJ LIEP SURFLWYOUI( [BUIIIXD I[E[TEAL JO JOB[ 9} [PIA UJIOUOD PIYNUIPT oM ‘SIS0D
’ J1UN JO SUIPUEISIOPUN PUL SUIIOITVOW JANIIJD ST I dFIY A\ "POXIW SUTEWIDF SIDTAFIS A SISOD J[UN JO SUIPUEISIOPUN UY o
"PouSIsse A[[ewiF0] U99q 9ABY $193pN( 9sneddq ¢ [-g (g FOJ F0I0e] B 10U SI YSIF SIY T, "9Feuew S9[50391€D 150D
Arewrzog pmod £o1) $3193pNq YII M 01 SE ‘SEIFE 90TAIIS MIU JOF o[qrsuodsar owedaq Loy a3oym Aremonied ‘sornionms mou £33 19A0 STONUOD
01 UORNTSUEF 93 SULNP SIOP[OY 123PNq SWOS WOIJ AJUNLIFDUN UT PANSII Z -] [(g SULNP SIUN02IY JO 1Iey) 93 01 93epdn oy, . J0J MITAIIAQ

JUSUISSISSY SUONEAFISqO Ayeuruung SND0J JO BTy

juswabebus pue Bulipuelsiapun

0UBUIOAOL) TEIOURUI]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo

144



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

Page 72

TEEIS)

uaaln

IUDWISSISSY

Gc

"SPFEMUO 4 [-¢C ()7 WO HS( Y2 01 PIPpPE 9q 03 pardadxo st wg T
[EUOIIPPE UV JUSwisn(pe 1S0d €aTe 91} Bl JUIPUNJ S[OOYDS 0} UONE[T UT JUIWUIIAOL) U3 PIIqqO] A[[NFSSI00NS [IOUNOD) YT,

“S[SIT MO S PIIRUIPT $901AF9s wep 1roddns

90UBUL] JO S[OAI] JOUSIY SUIAISIF 97€D [BI00S JNPE PUE UIIP[IYD St YoNns seare Jsi ysry s 93oddns soueur,] jo vorsiaord
a3 01 yorosdde poseq-ysis & 01 Ped ey JOSeUL A9SULILE] 93 JO UONINPONUT 9} PUL JJeIs 9DULUL] UI UOHINPIT YT,

IS¢ pue 1uswooe[das

LI 03 21823 spuadsiopun Jo seaye urewr 9y I, ‘'spuadsiopun ysed vey soypes a3eddis 01 sarepar yorym ‘wg ¢ ¥ Aq puadsiopun
01 15829305 ST owwessord [eides 71-110g 2y ‘s109(oxd Teardes opyord A[panosoyzo oxowr 01 sdois uoYel SeY [IPUNOY) AP ISIIYA\ o

“fo8unre] SuRUIIoY PIs

SUI| UT POJNIONIISIT SeM [IOUNOT) 93 PUE (SIIDUEPUNPIT UT PAINSIT YIIYM JO ()()g) PSP 93am sisod (‘] Feok oy Summ(T ‘Feas s193png
oy 303 J1uowarmbox s3uraes oyl SUNDIYF WG ZH F JO 199PN ONUIAIT PIINPIF B SOPNIUI 7 [-] (7 FOJ 9oUewIrojrod [edUBUY 9, Jo 1udwageuey
‘w/ ¢F Aq puodsiopun 01 1583930 ST 393PNg SNUIAIF PUN,] [EIOUID) 10U Z1-110Z YL, QdUBWIONdJ

"€ 1-Z10Z Supmp onssr Ue 9Wo0d2q

JOU P[NOYS Y[STF 1USWSeUrW 123png SIY) SUEIW SJUNOIE JO 13eyd o1 Jo Sunepdn ay 1, “Arqrsuodsar juswaseuew 3195png

MU U (AIA JIOTJJO 9} 01 I[E[IEAE SUII] JOU SIITAIIS PAINSFUO0IIT 0} SUNL[IF SI9FPNQ UL PI[NSIT YOIy ‘Jeak o) Jummp
UOYEIFOPUN SEA SIU T, "S9FNIONIS [DUNOT) MU dU) 199[J9F 01 [ [ dUn( Ul parepdn pue pomorads sem SIUNOIJE JO 1FeYD Y,

“3s1¥ A39AT[OP 108pnq 1ULdHPTUSTS SUISSAIPPE UT stoquiow Aq 9su0odsas

9ANII[[0D JAMO[S € JO ‘s3uraes Sumoiruow 01 yorordde ofs  Joyro ur Insax pnod yorordde ue yons 1Ly YSII € ST 230D 7]

-110g W paxmbox sSuraes oy Jo AFOATP pasopuIy 10U sey sy sy X\ rerrdoadde se speoy 10uIqe) ;o) Y sizodor Aypuow

S} SSNISIP STOIDIIL(] PUE ‘S21F0IDII(] UM pUt N Ie $208[d soyel s Surroiruows A[AUOA ‘JJels 90ULUL] 0O SUOHINPIX Sunsodoy
JULDIUSIS JO 90uaNbasu0d € st Z[-1 (7 Sunmp Apa1renb o1 A[puows woig paonpas sey 3auiqe’) o1 Sunsodar jo Louanbary oy, 1UIqe)
‘SIoquiowy /nuwo)

3O AUNNIOS 9 JO DUIPIAD IPrA0xd saINUTWY JoUIqe)) Y, *STseq Uondaoxs Uk UO ST ATEIUSWWO,) ‘[PUNOT) 3 JO 20ULWrofrad Jo Aoemdoe
[EIDUBUY PUE JUSWISeUBW 90ULWI0§I2d 91} UO UOREWIOJUT (10q SIPN[OUT STY I, IOUIqe,) 01 paiuasaord st1rodor Sumroyuow oy, JO MI1AdY

SUONEAIISqO Ayeuruung SNO0J JO BITY

MB3IA3I pue BuliojIuo

9OUBUIIAOL) TEIOUBUTL]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

Page 73

aouewuopiad jeroueuly Jo siojedipul A3y - xipuaddy

|oJluod |eldueuly G

90UBUIBA0Y) [eloURUl]

Buiuueld |eloueuly sibajens ¢
siojedipu] Aa)] ¢

Alewwing aallnoaxg |

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo

92



panssal SIybU || "d T MN UOIUIOY L JUBID 2102 ©

L¢

"UONESIUESIO 9} JO UOMII[JOF ONI) B SIAIS JUSWANLIG 9OULUIIAOL) [eNUUY YT,
“PI[[OFATOD PUE PITBULW JTE SYSIF SSIUISNG MOY ST PUE [PUNOY) 93 Aq A[9AND9J pasn ST YOIy 20e[d UT YFOMIUWIETJ 9DUBINSSE UL € ST 919 T,

“FouuEw APWn € U paiuowe[dwy A[QUNNOF 9F¢ SUONEPUIWIIIOIDF

pny [euiaiuy T@DHM/JN .QOﬁdvAQ&MHO A3 I fuﬁr«OuQ sodoxd Y3 Sey U21yMm Jipne [EUF1UT 9ATII]I9 U ST 91947 - meQEDWQGHMN [0-RUOJ [eUIa1Ur JO Qawgwaum

[031U0)) [eUINU]
*Spaou 2ymINg J0J 23enbape oxe swsAs [erURUL]
“JIPNE [EUFNIXD PUE [eUFIUT WO $170doF £7010eJSHES POAIODDT JALY SWAISAS [EIOULUT] A0S

SWAISAG TeIoUeUL,]

-asodind 307 313 s13uounIeda(y 2ourur] o Jo Aqedes pue Apedes oy, .

ruouneda(y douULBUL]

"MITADF Fe[N39F 03 109[qNS 93k SISEIF0J PUE POdO[PAIP-[[PM ST FUNSLIDTOJ [EIOULUL,]

Page 74

"9ouewr0yrad £18393pnq 0§ S[qLIUNO0IDE P[OY dIT SIMNYJO PUL [DAI] JDUIQE,) PUE IIQUIDW FIOFFO UL ¥ PIIOIUOW 95 $193png
‘uorysey Afpwn e ur paredord pue 1snqox o3e s193png

Suproyruour 193pnq pue Sumas 1P3png

:SJO1EDIPUT SUIMO[[0F I} ISUTESE 20UEWIOJIAd § [IDUNOT) dU) PISSISSE DALY IM [OTIUOD [ERUEUT JO MITAIF N0 FUNONPUOD U

|0J]UOD [BIOURULY BAI}OBY JO Si01edIpul AdY -

[OFITO) [EIOUBUL]

aoualjisal [eloueuly Bulnoas 1o} sjuswabuelle s,[19Uno0) 3y} Jo maInaYy — AsbulieH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

“MDTADJ STU3 JO own 9 e pano[dwiod Jou sem porrad [esrerdde
MU ST JO Jeak [0y 3531y 9y T, 's[esrerdde [enuue 1u0097 3s0W oY) SULMP $193pNq JO JUSWISLULW [BIOUEUY 01 SUNE[RT $1957¥)
20urWF0339d PIATIdIT STOOLJO JULAI[DT FoSeury A9SUIE] oY) UO paseq ‘saroua1adwiod JJLIs Mou JO UONINPORUT o3 Jo 13ed sy o
"WNJFO,] 39SeULA FOTUIG S [IDUNOT) ) BIA PIWIFGJe-0F OS[e ST JUdWIFeurw 103png Jo 20uelzodwr oy,
*JUSWIISEUBW 193PNq UO SNJ0J OS[E [[Im
dnoi3 sty T, *syoom Jnoj 1949 399w 01 ‘paysIqeIsa 3uraq st (s1030931(T Landa(T snid D) $¥91330 FO1Uas Jo dNOI3 JOPIM Y o
“3unadpnq paseq 039z JO UONONPORNUT pPaseyd € 1SureSe poproap sey [PUNoY) Y [, ‘soinssard s3uraes pue IM013
‘UONE[JUT JOJ SIUDUNSN(PE YIIA SOUIISE(] JTF0ISTY UO $ISND0J YoTyM ‘Yorordde Sunadpnq [Iusworoul Ue sasn [OUN0) Y,
. ‘syuounyedap oY) JO JUSWSEULW [BIDUEUY 213 JOJ ST0IIII(T JO SONIIqPIUNOIIE I3 SISTUS0023 A[Fea[d $s9003d Sumouow oy,
*sIseq A[JUOW € YO SWE) JUSWISEULW JOTUIS JIoU) (PIA $150doy 9ourwz0yrad ssnosip
OS[& SIO129FI(T "SISeq A[UOW & U0 JINHD) I& Passnosip s1rodar souewrorod yim uowageuews 103png vo Lrrorrd Jo 29339p
Y31y & 20e[d 03 SONUNUOD IANNIIX JIIYD) OU T, ‘STOqUUIW JUIqe)) A 90eJro3ur Arewnrd ou3 st pue Aoom s1oow ([€8oT jo
PEST 23 PUE 90UBUL] JO PEIL 9} “DANNDIIXT JOTYD) JULISISSY U3 ‘STOI02II(] 2€30dI0N) INOF 91 DANNIIXE JOIYD) oY) JINHD o
“TPUNO0N) 23 Uy SSUI[EYD JUSWISLULW [BEDUEUL 91 JO 9[EdS oU) SUIPULISIOPUN PUE SIOULUL TUO

uaain

Page 75

Surdua[eyd SIOQUIDTA JO ‘SWNIOJ JAYIO PUE 2INTWWOT) NeF0dI07) 9U) 18 SUOISSNISIP WOIJ DOUIPIAD PULY ISIJ ALY A\ "SIStq s1o3png
9014398 Aq 9074398 © UO $193pnq SUIeUrW Uf PIOJ OEF POOST B SEY [IOUNOT) ST, 'SIAqUIdW Pue $1901jJ0 03 papraoid sr Sururen Jo 1udurddeuey
90URUL] PUE SI9P[0Y 393pnq woxy dIysIoumo sa8eInodus et $3ss200xd Sunias 108pnq paysIqeIsa [[PA SBY [PUN0T) YT, OUBWIIONID J

JUSUISSISSY SUONEAFISqO Ayeuruung SND0J JO BTy

sjusawabuere jeuiajuj

[OFIVO7) [BIDULUL]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



pansasal sIBL Iy "dTT YN Uoluioy ] WeID 2102 @

7224 o3 SUTINp PasIN JOU St SSUIABS PIAIYIL-UOU FOJ AOU2SUNUO0d WG [F oYL,
"POIIUDPT 9q 01 SSUTABS FUITEATNIUNO0D M Z-] 10 Sunp (06 f) SSUIABS [IOUN0D-sSOID o1} onsind 10U PIPIOIP seMI]

dUelLeA =

000§~
wnpnom

uaaly pasoiddy m

— 000§

0000T
000ST
0000t
000S§¢
0000¢€
000S€
00001
000S ¥
0000§

wpoo.3

sSulIneS anuanay ZI-IT10Z

Page 76

*A\0[9q 9[qel Y3 UT INO 395 st uonisod
PUD Je2A 158I930F 9T, “PoF 0/,G PUE FOQUIE 0/,7] “UIIIS PIIeT 9FoM SSUIALS JO 0/,¢cQ 1B PAedrput 130dox JSHH 2107 Y2FeIN
[ 9UI, “MJ1ADF JNO JO SWN S} J& PIAINYDE U9 SUIABY SE PIWIJUOD I Wi (O F ‘W g T JO sSuraes onuoads pauue[d oip JO

RUETY sue[q
o Sunmp s3urAes JOIUTOW 03 00} (S ) dWWerd0I SSUIAES Pue AOUS] ASSULIE]] 911 9SN 01 PINURUOD [IOUNOD Y, s3uraeg 1surese
“‘w ¢F 30 puodsiopun Ue $18829703 193pNq pun,] [EFIOUIL) INUIAIT O} 19U JOJ UININO [euorstaoid Z1-1107 9UL, e 9OULWIIOJID

JYSWISSISSY SUONIBAIISqO Areuruung SNO0J JO €Ty

sjuswabuerie jeuidju]

[0FIVO") [BIDULUL]

aoualjisal [eloueulj Burinoas 10} sjusawabuelle s, [1Iouno) ay} Jo mainay — AabulieH jo ybnolog uopuoT



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

Page 77

laquiy

"€1-210¢ Sutmp Suraes Jo [9A9] STy SUIAIIYDE 30J SUONdO JU1 MIIADT [[IM JIOGF() DUBUL] JOIY ) WU Y, ‘WORINPIF
UNOPEaY JPYLING 03 Ped] PO YIIYM (G1-H10Z BINOLLT PUE $1-¢ 10T Ul 0geT) pauueld axe s3utaes y(0p T #Yynng v
"porrad S1UNODIE [eU PUL TMOPISOP Z1-1 07 Y3 SULNP Wed) DUEUY 9} JO dULWIO0FIdd 9ATI9339 913 9q [[IA4 93eIs [EIDTID
© PUE ‘MITADT INO JO WM I J¥ PII[dWO0D U JOU PEY SIUIWISUEIIE 90INOSIT PIONPIT 9} JOPUN TJedA [[1f © I8} 910U I\
‘pormboaz

Aqrsuodsar JuowoSEUrW [EOULUT) [N 93[E) O SIITAFIS JO AIQE U3 JO SEITL JWOS UT UIIDUOD FOAIMOY ‘SUTEWIT 9T ],
152123138 o) paroeduwr sey yorordde pasenuad oy a5oym AFemonied ‘S1UowoSuLIFe MOU ) JOJ SIITATIS WOIJ UONILISHES
JO 292339p YSIY € SIILDIPUT YIOMP[ILJ INQ) "PIsk( YSIF PUL JIG0IENS 2JOUW U9 UNSI B SB ‘Sey $901AJ9s 03 330ddns soueur]
‘s1s0d

(08 JO TUDWYSI[PISD UL MOU ST I ], "PAIS[P 25 s150d JO 0/,¢c4 pue [10g A[[ [ UO PIsEnUad ses TONOUNJ DULUY YT,

0¢

Supinosax
1wounredaq
dULUL

JUOWISSISSY

“‘pooisropun

39139q ST UOISTA0Fd 901AF9s TO 198dWI FIOY PUL PILRUIPT A[FEId 93¢ STUTALS SUITEATIIUNOD JBY) OS ‘SUOISAP Ad1jod Loy 03
pae[ar oso Aprenonied ‘SSUTABS JO JUIWDAIIYDE ) SUIIOITTOW JOPISUOD P[NOYS [IDUNO7) 3T, 'ss9003d Jurroruows oy surmp
PoYNUIPT SABA[E 10U 27oM STUTAES SUITEATIITUNOD JO UONEINUIPI 9} 1B} PIWIUOD dM MITAII FNO JO ISIN0D I} Jurm(]
"21-1107 Surmp syuouniedop [[e 30 95€d oY) 10U SEM ITYM (DULUL] O}

uoneIuIWNOOP Sy} 9praoxd 01 pasu oy i) Juerdwod Ay st voneruawndop sduraes sunroddns jo vorsiaoid oy 13 2INSUD
PINOYS [rPUNO7) oY [, "PAEI-O VY 9 03 SNURUOD [[IA YOTYM ‘STUTABS JSIT YSTY PuE onfea Y3y 9y} UO $Nd0J € 3q [ ¢ 1-210T
Supmp sguraes Surolruow 03 yoeoidde oy ], ‘PIoUIWIWIOd J0U Pey SULIOIUOW SSUIALS ¢ -7 ()7 “MITAdT JNO JO WD 93 1Y
‘¢1-¢10¢

Supmp UaYeIIOPUN 2 [[IM MIIAdF oY) pue ‘Ue[d Ipne Z1-11(Z FPY? UI PIPN[IUL ST owier303d SSUIAES §,[DUNOT) oY) JO IIPNE UY
“UOISTAOXd 907AJOS JO 2INIBU PI[-PULWIP Y} O NP YSIF

1S9YSIY oY) S PINUIPT $IILIOIDIIIP OM] ) ‘SIITATIG SUISNOL] PUE SINPY PUE SIOIAFIG S, UIIP[IY)) UO PISSNIOJ MITAF ST T,
‘paSeurwr [9AND93F0 FUIOQ 9F9M STUIALS 9} SUIASIYDE UT SYSII PUE S[OFIVOD 3} Put s3uraes ‘U0 Juniodar pue ¢ Jo UONEORUIPT
703 $$9001d 913 UO 20UBINSSE 2ANUEISNS Papraoxd pue ‘710z Areniqa,] ur Suniodar ‘ JSHL PIADTAIT IIPNY [EUINU]

SUOIIEAJISqO %H&EESW

(panupuo))

sue[J
s3ujaeg 1sureSe

QdUBWIIONRJ

SND0J JO BTy

sjuawabuesie jeuidju]

[OFIVO7) [BIDULUL]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

*sso003d Furroiruow Aypuow a1 Jo 1¥ed s JY'S 0IUO PaFdIud VDY ST 1SBIIIOJ
ST, 15822303 pu-3ea£ € 9onpoid 01 Jyels 20urUL] Puk SIOP[OY 123pnq £q PasA[eUE pue JVS WOy A[IUOW UaYe) ST UONEWIOJUT
JUSWITWTWIOY) "SIDULISWNIID PUE SPIIV JUID SUISUEYD 0 oNP UONEIILA JO [9AJ] Y31 © 03 102[qns oye pue 21ep pud 2I1UgIp
OU 9ABY UDTYA ‘SIUIUNTWIWOD 938D [EID0S JO 9INIeU 93 UO paseq st yorym ‘yorordde siyy jo ssouarerrdordde oyp vo paproap
PUE PaMOIAT SeY [PUNOT) 9y T, *s3130do JuswoSeutw 195png Ul PayyRuapr A[[ENUeW ST -JOMIWET,] Ul PISTES SJUSUWIIWO)
‘T-ypomowres,] ur dn 1os Arerdordde uoaq sey oFexded oxed oy J1 JVS era opew oq L[uo ued syuowied Je os
dVS I PaIessoiul uodq sey waisks o Fepnonyed uy "Z1-110g Sumnp pauowodwl usdq dAY S[OFIVOD U3 03 syudwdsoxdur
PUE T-yFomowes,] UT 90€[d UT S[ONVOD 93 MI1A9F 01 dn 195 U29q sty dnoixs FurFom Y "FOSPI[ [e30Ud3 JV'S 93 0IUT PaoJ 10U
Op I-Y{FOMIWIES,] UT PISIe SIUSUWNIUWIWOY) SII[IWE,] PUE UIIP[IYD) PUE SIMPY Aq pasn waishs Suruue[d o3ed o) ST [-{FOMIWET,]
"dVS UT SURUNOIIE JUUNTWWOD asn mou sjuauniedop jo Lamolew oy,
laquiy ‘d VS era paoed Suraq
SIOPIO JO 0/,()g UM PIAdIYDE U29q 124 J0u sey 2ouerdwod [[ng Ing Guowosordwr ue Us9s sey s1opIo 20e[d 01 JVS JO oSN 9T,
. "9AT[ S90S WAISAS MIU Y} [HUN UIYEIIIPUN
9q I JUOWRSeULW [OUEUY 01 SUNE[DX AIAOE PUNOIE YFOM dWOS Jel SULIW SIYT, 107 [PV UI 9AI] 05 03 pPa3dadxo
ST H M9U 9y, 1uawaimd0id sry) Jo 9snedaq papuadsns uaaq aaey SIUIWAO[RAIP JVS FYMN] VS JO UOISIIA JUIIIND
o 9oe[dax 01 wirore[d (YH) Suruue] 203n0say asrdinuy Mou € Sunmnooid Jo $s9303d o UT APUSTIND ST [PUNOT) YT,

O .
N~ (s¥901330 Tenprarpur 4q o8esn
) dVS segnuapr 1ey3 130doJ & paonponul sey [DUNOT) 9U1) POOS U2 SEY [00) MIU I} JO SN JLY) PISIAPE U JALY oM PUE
w Sururen PIM papraord orom sIOPOY 195Ny “SUNSEI30] 195PN( J0J PIINPOFIUL SeM VS UIUIIA [NPOW MU € Z[-]1[(0Z SULN(]
o *9DJNOSIF 9JIAIIS PUE 9DUBUIJ 03 SUORINPII JULDYIUSIS I} JO I[NSF
© ST OMSI[EDT JOU 9T 1Y) SONIANOE PUNOIE JFOM IAISUIUT INOQY[ JO JOqUNU € 21830d100UT $91npad03d JUIIMD Jey) PIsIusods suro1sAs
SBY [IOUNO07) 9} ‘FOAIMOF] "Aem A[oWM € UT SYSIF [BIOULUI 9SEURW PUE AJOUSPI O [IOUNOT) oY) PI[qeUd By $s9003d oY, Sununoosoe
‘suorsap 170ddns 01 vonewroyuT 2dULWIOFIAd PaIE[F SPISTUOLE PIsN ST YIIYM ‘UONEUWIOJUT Jeroueuly
Sunse2930J put FULIOITUOW [BUEUN J[qeI[oF SuNpoid J0J $Inpadord pue SwoISAS PIUSI[EISD [[24 SB [IPUNO) YT, K93 Jo Ayewruung

JUSUISSISSY SUONEAFISqO Ayeuruung SND0J JO BTy

s9dueinsse |eula)xa pue jeuialiuj

[OFIVO7) [BIDULUL]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

Page 79

TEEIS)

usaln

JUOWISSISSY

*S3UTPUT $IUNODJE O} 03 UONE[F UT UONEPUIWIIOI9F Sunuawaduwr

[4%

ur $s93301d po0O3 opewr oABY puE s1EaA snoradrd ur s3170dox INO UT PISIET UONJE O3 $aSU0dSIT PIpN[DOUI Sty [PUNOT) Y,

ydnozoq oy uo sordwik[() 93 JO 10edwr o) SSISSE OF SANUIUOD I »

JUNODDY INUIAIY SUISNOL] 9}

Jo Surpuny 93 01 $aFULYD JOfeW PUE SIFOUI] XE] [OUNOT) JO UOHESILIO] ‘S9IEY SSIUISTI] JO UONNAINSIP U3 10V WSI[EI0]

oy £q moqe 1y3noxq asoyl SUIPN[IUT g1 /110 UT S2IB] 3T 18Y) SaZULYD AULW OY} SSIIPPE OF SONURUOD A[9ATIIIIIO 1T »

“PoUSIE 93 SI[LISWN UMOPISO[D SIUNOIDE JBY) SINSUD 0 IIB[EJ PUE I LIPULXITY PIM A[9SO[D JIOM 0] SONURTOD I »

*$198SE 23¥IIOY JO PUE S[OOYDIS

JO J1uounEax) FUNUNOIE 213 03 uoneRs ul AFemonred ‘Sunzodas [epuruly 01 sa8UEYD 23MINg 30§ Ue[d 01 SONUNUOD 1T »

“ue[d 9} JO STEIA OM) TEUTJ O} JOF JUSWI[NIIS

SuIpuNJ S UDWUIDA0L) O} JO WOIINO ) PUE WI] WNIPAW Y2 U BoNe[Fur 2017d pue a8ueyd orydersowop jo 1oedur

o se yons ‘suondwmnsse £93 01 soSurYDd 03 UonNe[aF ul Je[nonyed UT ‘ATOATPP FuLMP [, LA ST FOIUOW O} SONUNTOD e
e} 2INSUD 0] PIIU [[IA [IDUNOT) I JBY) PAIOU JOPIT IPNY [ENUUY JUIIF ISOW I3 WOITJ SUOISN[OUOD T,

*s330do¥ JIpNE [EUILIUT 01 WONE[RF UT paaise suonde Sunuawa[dwr ur sie[op

Aue 303 9[qPITNODIE POy MOU dFe $3901J() "$330dox 3rpne [eusour | A1Forrd UT UoRONPaJ JUBDYTUSIS B SeM 939U) 7] [0 SUHn ]
JuowdedroA0 J1JoUq SUISNOY JOF $ISED JO JOQUINU SU} UI TONINPIT B UIIS Skt AJ[BUTWILID Pa3aSiel UO SNO0j oy T,

0SZT JO Feok o) J0J 195781 O} SPIIIXD PIISA0IF JUNOWE I T, "SIUNOWE FUTUTEWF I} JOA039F 03 90¢[d U o7

sue[d pue MI1ADT STUI JO SWN Y 1B PIFOAOIIF U PeY SIFIUI predisro Ul J99g 7 yorym Jo ¢/ F Po[[eIol paynuapr pnesj
JIJoUR( SUISNOY] JO JUNOWE [£10) O, 'PRAIIYIE 9F9M SUONNI9s0xd |7 [1-01(0¢ SUMN(T TOUNO) 93 JO JNOAL] UT 9PBW SUOISIIIP
[Te RIA ‘PFEaY U22q PBY SISED ¢¢ YIIYM JO TONNIIS0Fd JOJ PONTWINS 9JOM SISED Gf ¢ [-1 (g SULN(T 'sased uonndasoid (g

JO 1987%) [ENUUE Uk SBY WEd) 9], 'PISL-YSIF 9JOUW dW0I3( 0 YIOM ST PISNDI0JIJF Sy Wed) UONESNASIAUT IFIUIq JUISnoy Y |,
"pneIy 95peq N[ PUE PNelJ AOULUD) St YONS SEIJE OJUT SUONESHSIAUT 9ATIOEOXd 9JOW U2q SBY 2II ], "WiEd)

pnesj-nue 93e30d300 B YSI[qEISD O} Pasn SeM 90IN0S2I JWOs Ing ‘s1sod papung ur TONINPaT [[EIDA0 UE SEA 23911 JeaA o) Supm(J
*Z1-110Z Sunmp uonoung Wedl Pnesy JFouaq SuIsnoy 9 JOAO J0OI JIPNY [BUINU]

"JIpNE [EUIIUT JO JJOM O} UO 2oUeIF 23e[d

U0JUIOY ], TUBIL) "9S[DIOXD JUDWISSISSE J99d [eNUTE UE YSNOIYI PAWUIUOD 9dNIeIJ JO 9p0D) VAJTD 22 Y 1uerdwod AJng

ST pue ‘UOISIA0Fd [BUIIXD PUE ISNOY-UT U9aMI] PIFEYS ST FOM JIpne [eurnu] 20e[d ur sjuowaduesse aenbape sey [ounon) ay T,

SUOIEAJISqO %HNEESW

SOMIANDE JO
swwesdoxd pue
sjuowaduesre

. 1Ipne [BUINXG

. upny reuIauy
IO} 0MOeIJ

. JO 9p0O) VAdID
o M douerndurod
Surpnpur
sjudwasueIIe

. Mupne [euIdlu]

SNO0J JO Baxy

S9JuUeINSSE [RUID)XD pue [eulaju]

[OFIVO7) [BIDULUL]

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



paniasal SIYBL (1Y “dT1 YN UOIUIOY L JUBID ZL0Z @

Page 80

aouewuopiad jeroueuly Jo siojedipul A9y - xipuaddy

|oJluo) |eldueuly §
9OUBUIAAOY) [BIOURUIH
Buluue|d |eloueuld dibajens ¢
siojeoipu] A3y g

Alewwing aallnoaxg |

aoualjisal [eloueul Bulinoas 1o} syjusawabuele s [Iouno) ayj Jo mainay — AabuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo

€e



pansasal sIBL Iy "dTT YN Uoluioy ] WeID 2102 @

A10}0011Q [B2IUYDS] S,UOISSIWWOY }IPNY :82JN0S

OPIS

[12uNo) YZFnolog UopUOT WEeYMIN
[12uno0) ygnolog uopuoi uaig
ylaquie] jo ygnologuopuot
[12Uno) YFnolog UOpPUOT MOSUNOH
s)9|WeH 1amo] Jo ygnologuopuol

|12UNO) UOLIBN
[12UN0Y YIEMINOS

TT/0T0C - onel epdedZuppiopy m
5 0T/600 - oliel [endes upjiom m

“weyyem Jo ygnoioguopuon

= |12uno) ygnolog uopuoiuoiBuls

= AdwyoeH jo ygnologuopuol

——
o Wweysimal jo ygnologuopuo]
——

Wmo\moom - ones jepded Sunpiop m
0 80/£00 - onel jendesunjiop m 3

I
g ‘ [12uno) ygnolog uopuo] Asguney |

=

Pann Q1

'
m- plalu3 Jo ysnologuopuo

| 3uije3 jo ygnoioguopuo]

“yZnoiog Uuopuo Yd1muaalin

|12uno) y8nolog yUomspues

IXOU U UT PIPNJIUT ST ST} TO JUWWOD FOPINT ‘11-010T
303 dnoi3 Surfrewyouaq oY1 UT ones [eIrded SUR{FoM 1SoMO]
PUO29s 213 SBY [IOUNO7) Y T, "SINOQYSIOT 15958V S 3T JO ISOW
UBY) 1918953 APULIYTUSIS ST 9SEIFIIP JO IEJ S [IDUNOT) I 1)
Suned1put (z.2°0) 11-0102 ©3 (80°7) 80-L00T) %S9 vy 30w
JO 9SE2IOIP B UIS SBY [OUNOT) O], “0/,(E PUNOIE ST ISLITIIP
oGeroAe 9 ones Tearded SuryFoM SUTSEaIdP B [PIM SYSN0I0q
asod 3O "pomod oures 9y JOA0 ISEIIIIP B UIIS dALY

SY8N030q 9 AU} JO INO ()] ISFYM T [-0TOZ 03 80-LOOT WO
ones Tearded SurFoM JIOY) PISLIIIUT dABY SYSN0I0q 9T )

TT0C ©1 £00¢C-pusi] -oljed _mu._o_ﬂU wc_v_.hog

L - JO INO 9 'SINOQUSIOU 1SITEIU I} SSOFOE sones [e3rded Furrom
. 050 UT JUDWIDAOW U3 JO SWiFd) UT 93321d POXIW © ST 959Y T,
- 00T s3urpur]
- 0S'T
L 007 “YSBI $SIIXD SIT SUMSIAUT A[OANDIIIFO
Ig— 10U ST AATFOINE UL JBY) 9)1BIIPUT P[NOD IT SUT) POOS ©
L oo'c sAemye 3,usT ones [earded Jupprom Y31y € 1By PAIOT 9q P[noys
. 11 sworqord Lrpmbiy renuaiod sa1ed1pUT - $198SE JUITIND
ek P299X9 SONIIEI] JUIFIND "9°T - SUO UL SSI JO ones y ‘porrad
- 00 IUOW JAJOM] IXOU U} FOAO JOW 9 03 SINI[IQEI] SO 9T
- 0§t

- SODI[IEI] MNLIPIWIWT SIT FIA0D 0} ‘§9DFNOSIF JO ‘SI9SSE JUIIIND
ySnouo sey Qyopne ue J1 s:edpul onel [earded Surfrom oy,
vonmugaa

pa)iewyosuag - jejides Bunjiopm

DULWIOJIdJ [BIOUBUL] JO SIOIBIIPUT AdY]

aoualjisal [eloueuly Bulinoas 1oy sjuswabuelie s,|1I9uno0Y) 3y} J0 MaInay — AaburieH jo ybnoiog uopuo-]

ve



pansasal sIBL Iy "dTT YN Uoluioy ] WeID 2102 @

“f1pmbriy 170ddns

01 paxmbaz oq ST P[NOYS “WOOIPEIY FUIMOIIO]
JULDTUSIS S| [IOUNO7) 39U} 1B} 910U M TIAIMOL]
"paroruowr A[[NJoFed 9q 0 PI2U [[IA PUE ([ YS Sumnp
ornssord SurIsSEaIOUT JOpUN WO M Tearded SurFox

MITAD]T JOPUN SUTLWAF INq ‘C1-Z10T
303 onunuod [ Arpmbiy ur vononpas pauued STy T,

"STOSTAPE

JUOWOSEURW AJNSLIT) S [IPUNOT) 9} “OSOIIUIFY

JO 9OTAPE [EUIIXD 9} UO Paseq ST £391eNG oy T, "SI
JIP9I0 UT UOHONPII B PUE ‘$1S0D FUIMOIIOQ UT UONINPII
wg'¥ 01 pay seyy Lorjod STy T, '$91€F PoonpaF I

SUEO[ W2} 191JOYS UO SUISSNO0J PuE 1qop Julreaq
1S9791uT Y31 ‘wiFal Jo8uo] Jjo Surked st rounon) 9y,

“Z1-1107 Summp suorstaoxd
PUE S90UL[Eq JATISIT JO 9SN PISEIIOUT UL O}

Page 82

po[ swwrerdord Louepunpas oy, ‘SUMMOIIOQ [BTUINUT
01 JUSUISIAUT [EUFIIXD WOIJ JAOW B PIINPOFIUL

sey yorgm £5o1ens JuowoSeur|y AINsea1], s [IPUNON)
o1 Jo 2ouanbasuod € o3e suononpay ones [e3rded
SuT{FOM 91 JBY) PIIBDTPUT DABY SFIINJO [IUNO))

‘porrod sTqp Supnp sasLIFIP
7634 wo Jeak Y [ [-0T0C U ¢L'0 O3 80-LO0T BT 80T

WO Paonpas sey opes [e3rded Surjsom §[PUN0Y) YT,

sSurpury

Alo)oa11q [e21UYD9] S,UOISSIWWOY PNy :82IN0S

1T/0T0C 01/600C 60/800T  80//00T

050
|12uno) ygnolog - 00T
UOPUOT ASBUIIBH e

0S'T

oo'e

0s'¢

oney |ende) Sunjiom

puai] - jejides Buijiop

DULWIOJIdJ [BIOUBUL] JO SIOIBIIPUT AdY]

aoualjIsai [eloueuly Bulindas 10} sjuswabuelie s [1I9uno’) ay) Jo mainay — AsbulieH jo ybnoiog uopuo

19



pansasal sIBL Iy "dTT YN Uoluioy ] WeID 2102 @

Alo)oa11q [e21UYD9] S,UOISSIWWOY PNy :821N0S

Page 83

TT/0T0T - 34D :S3AISS3AI J|qeasn M

S00

0T/6007 - YD SIS J|qBIS I

ot'o

60/8007 - 3YD :SIAIS3I J|qeasn M
80//007 - 1YD :S9AI3S3I 3|qeasn |

STO

070

ST0

TT0C 01 LOOC- PUaiL - JHUO

“TUWISSISSE ISIF S FOOTJO [GTS YD UO Paseq ST
PU ‘¢1-g 107 F03 1uawaimbaz 108pnq 19U §,[PTUNOY) o)
JO o4 s3uasa3dos G*()1F JO 9ouR[eq PUNJ [EFOUIS O],

“JUBISUOD SUTUTEWIDF DDUE[E] PUNJ [EFOUIS

O YA W QYT 01 ‘CT-7 1 (g SULMP S[OAI] ATISIF

0] UOTONPIJ PINURUOD & SISBII0J L LIN YL, '9oUe[eq
pung Teroudd oy Supuasardor wg ([ F P 710g
UDTBJN [ I SIATISIT W ()9 F IS8IDI0] [IPUNOY) Y],

"S9OUBISWNIID [BD0] UO Paskq 9q pnoys
U21yA [rouno”) 9yl 01 IIJAPE S JIOYJO [G1S Yl MO[[O]
PINOYS [9AS] 91} 18} ST SOAJISOF WO 20ULPIS S,V 1D

‘dnos3 Sunyrewypuaq

9 JO [-0T0Z UT SOATISII JO [9AI] ISIMO]

uro( 93 SBY [IPUNOT) 93 FOAIMOF] "S[IAI] JAIISIF FOY)
Sursearoop s1oyio pue (rmIpuadxa Jo oSe1uadiad e se)
SOAJISIT JIOU) SUISLIIOUT SINIFOINE dWos PIm ‘dnoid
SINOQUSIOU 1958V U} UT PUITI FEI[D OU ST I,

"TT-0T0C PU® 01-600C U2°4399 10°0
Aq poseaIduT S9AFISIY H()’() O3 80°() W0 (drmrpuadxo

mO OWNMGUUQOQ 19 w.mv SOATISII OMO—NOwS wuﬂ .«O Oﬂﬂm\w Ogu
padnpas [PUNOY Ay [1-010T PU® 80-L00T UaoMI2g
sSurpurg

*IMIPUIXD JO [9AI] O} SIYIILW SIAFISIF

[£101 973 SULIW 2UO JO OPeI Y 2FmIpuadxo Jo oreys
© SB SOAJOSOT ONUAJF PUE [eI1ded 9[qeasn smoys STy,
uopuyaQq

pa)yJewyouag - SOAI9SIY d|qeasn

DULWIOJIdJ [BIOUBUL] JO SIOIBIIPUT AdY]

aoualjisal [eloueuly Bulinoas 1oy sjuswabuelie s,|1I9uno0Y) 3y} J0 MaInay — AaburieH jo ybnoiog uopuo-]

9€



pansasal sIBL Iy "dTT YN Uoluioy ] WeID 2102 @

Page 84

A1010a41q [BOIUYID] S,UOISSIWWOY }pNY :824N0S

WNo2Y
anuaAdY Suisnoy yum Ajioyny
-TT/0T0T - anuaaal xe| :Buimolloq [1m

N0y
anuaAdy BuisnoH yum Ayloyiny
-0T/6007 - anuaaal xe] :Buimolioq |7

S)9|WeH 1amo] Jo ygnologuopuol
|12uno) ygnolog uopuo Aaﬁuuer'

|13UN0) UOHIRWN
piayul jo ygnologuopuoi
WweysimaT Jo ygnolog uopuo
yiaqweq jo ygnolioguopuol
AsuydeH jJo yZnologuopuon
|12uno) yZnolog uopuo jualg
|12UN0) 3 1EMUINOS

Buije3 jo ygnologuopuol

|12uno) yZnolog uopuo]uoidulls|

o)
=
g
o
=1
=
=)
=]
-
=}
=
aq
=
0
o
c
=
Q.

“y#n010g UOPUOT MO|SUNOH
“[8noiog UoOpUOT YIIMUIIG

uN022y
anuaAldy SuIsnoH Yum Alioyny
-60/8007 - 2NUdA3I Xe] :uimolioq 1T m

== |5un0) YEN0IOFG UOPUOT WEYMIN

SRR LIy} EAA JO yEnologuopuo

oy
anuaAdy SuisnoH Yyum Ayloyiny
-80/1007 - anuaAal xe] :Zuimolioq |1 m

TT0Z 01 Z00Z - pPuUail -anuaaay xe] : Suimousiog 11

"0/, 7 JO 9SL3O9P 98EIAL UL PIM [[-(0T0Z OF §0-L00Z WOIJ S[2AI] SUIMOIFOq

JO PUST PFeMUMOP JL[IWS B UIS ALY SINHFOINE INOQUSIIOU 159382U 1) JO [V "0/,¢-¢ JO ones e aaey 1) (9] Jo 1no /) dnoid payrewrypuaq

o) JO JBY ISOWIE UPIA SUI[ UT A[PEOIq [IPUNO07) 9} WSNOIq SBY PUIR PIEAUMOP SIY T, A591eHG JUOWSEUBA AINSEII], S [IPUNOT) 9YI YIIM JUT UT
stpue “((11-0102) %19°C 02 (80-L002) %L6 ¥ WOIJ) 0/, /4 £q paonpax sey (9NU2Ad Xe) JO 93eIuadiod e se) ones SUMO0IIOq Widl SUo] § [IPUN0D) Y],
sSurpury

"ONUIADF X¥] [IOUNOD SPIIIXd SUIMOIFO] WF) SUO[ JLl) SUBIW JUO UBY) 9JOW JO ONEF | "ONUIAJ Xe) JO 9FeS © St SUMOIIO] W) JUO[ SMOYG
uonruga(q

pa)Jewyosuag - 9nuaAady xe] o} bBuimoaiog wia] HuoT

DULWIOJIdJ [BIOUBUL] JO SIOIBIIPUT AdY]

aoualjisal [eloueuly Bulinoas 1oy sjuswabuelie s,|1I9uno0Y) 3y} J0 MaInay — AaburieH jo ybnoiog uopuo-]

L&



pansasal sIBL Iy "dTT YN Uoluioy ] WeID 2102 @

Page 85

A1010011Q [BOIUYDS] S,UOISSIWWOY }IPNY :9824N0S

=3 = w
— =] >
5 s 25%o 5§ _¢
2 -5 2 3 S g S| <| =z =~
2 0 g © m o & =~ 1} = m
E 5 2 S o o 8 elo| 2 &
$§ 322 ¢ S 3 2 s/ 312 3 2
s £ o0 8 2  ®a = wa T 2 o
a4 2 35 22 = 56 © & o|lo|l ¥ o 3
SE P8 ¥e s3> = 2|32 5 &
w - © 8 0o 2 £ @ wr c|l @ — m O
©C 9 g 0 £ 2R B 0 9 zxw|/O2 6 3
= 3 © c 0 =T T R = o = =| =3 = ©
m o cm | - f o = © & m = m o O c
TT/0T0T - s19sse ® = w. N =3 W m =4 qMa. e ) .M., % 2 am. il
. -~ 0
wia) Buo Buimonioq wizjduo1m ® = = N T 2 AaSaBE s S
m = M 3 0 m 7 3 0 3 @ = m 3 e
0T/600C-S1Sse 5 ¢ 2 3 3 3 5 68 S £ 5 B| 3| & 5 =
O & o = @ O -~ A & A ol » 3
wia) 3uo] Buimonioq wiRfuom = I S 8 < = = T =35 = m =5 =da&
60/800¢ - 519ss€ 4 * - 010
wia) Suoq :Buimorioq wial uom ;
80/£007 - s19sse ! . - 0€0
w3} Buo :Buimolioq widlsuom .
- 00
_ 0s°0
090
040
080
1T0Z 01 007 -puai] -s3asse wia] Suo] :Suimoliog wis) Suo 060

‘SUIM0II0q WIN-3UO[

01 23n150dX2 JIOY) 20NPIF S[IPUNOD St ‘PUIT [[EFIA0 ST} YA JUISISUOD ST [POUNO7) YT, *0/,GZ JO dnoi3 sInOoquSIou 1S9TeoU 91} JOJ 9SBIFIIP TEIOAL
porrod owres oy Sumnp sopes Y padnpar oAy (9] Jo 1no G) dnoid payrewryouaq oyd Jo Amrolewy oy, AS91eNG IUIWOTEULIA ATNSEII],
(%0%) 11-0102 0 (°4LS) 80-L00T WOIJ 0/, Aq PIsLaId9P Sy Onel $19sse 01 SUIMO0IIOq W) JUOT § [IPUN07) YT,
sSuIpUL]

'$J9SSE WId) SUO[ JO

<

ue pis
$,[IoUNOT) Y3 YA JUI| UT ST pUE

<

oNJEA 91} SPIIIXI FUIMOIIOQ WFD) SUO[ I8y} SUEIW U0 UBY) 2JOW JO ONEF Y/ 'SIISSE W) SUO[ JO S € St SUIMOIFOq W) SUO[ SMOYS ONeF SIYT,
uonrugaq

pa)Jewyosuag - s}asse uidj-buo- 03 Buimouiioq wiaj-6uo

DULWIOJIdJ [BIOUBUL] JO SIOIBIIPUT AdY]

aoualjisal [eloueuly Bulinoas 1oy sjuswabuelie s,|1I9uno0Y) 3y} J0 MaInay — AaburieH jo ybnoiog uopuo-]

8¢t



pansasal sIBL Iy "dTT YN Uoluioy ] WeID 2102 @

‘sue[d £19A0097 IDIP VO SOOYDS PIM JFOM

A10199.11Q [E91UYD3] S,UOISSIWWOD JIPNY :82N0S 01 Pae3ud U29q Sy 2oUdAdXD [EDUBUY [ENUEISNS (PIA JOYIE)
peay Jowiog y ‘poseuews Arerdordde ore sossaoo0xd [epuruy
£o3] o1nsUD 03 SONIIQISTOSIF [EIOULU A JJEIS PUE SIOYIEI)
PEIY ‘STOUIIA0F [00UDS FOJ SUTUTET) SUNEIIOL] 93¢ JIPNY [BUFNIU]

'$90UB[Eq JUBIYTUSIS dABY STOODS JO ATFOUTW |/ Jus[eadsd ajow
SuTI029q F919%] 9P YPIM SIDFIP PAOUII] JO sasn[dins paiedo[e
fAnzofew oyl I 9oUR[Eq UT 939M S[OOYIS MIJ ATOA “ZT-110T PUE
11-010Z Sumnp pamarIAF U9q dABY S[OOYDS 7¢ dwwersord ypne
Z1-110Z F1o1 JO 17ed SB S90UE[Eq S[OOYDIS PIMITADF PN [CUINU]

¢T'0-11/070T -uoneloje
S|00YIs 55 :SIUE|B(] S|O0LIS W

|12uno) ygnolog uopuoi Asgulieq
|12uno) y#nolog uopuo jualg
p|a1ul jo ygnologuopuoi
ylaquweT jo ygnoioguopuol
S}9|WeH 13amo] Jo yZnologuopuol
AawjoeH jo yZnologuopuo]
|12Uno) Yy3nolog yHoMSpUB A

S[OOYJS WO}
e TR P2AI222F SUINIDI VO Paseq g1 () Y2FLIN 1€ I8 Se W 'Gf 01 sodUe[eq
[0OY2S 2ARE[NWND PISLIIIUT SBY YIIYM WG/ 7 JO puadsiopun
19U B S S[OOYDS JOJ UINIINO INUIAII Z-[1()7 Y3 I8l 210U oM
| [ ¥o0o FOAIMOY] “T1-010Z ¥OF dnoI3 paxrewryduaq 9y JO ONEF ISIMO[ U3
. 900 Se PUE ‘FeIA-UO-TLIA SONEI 1SOMO] 9} JO dUO PIUTEWF APUAISISUOD

SBY [IPUNOY) O, 0/, ¢ JO 9SEIFIOP 9TEFOAL UL IPIM [[-0T0T
01 80~ WIOTJ SONEF SUISEIIIIP ALY sanmopne Jo Aolews oy,

153104 Weyep Jo ygnologuopuo

' |19Un0) Y3N0I0g UOPUOT WEYMIN

weys|mal Jo ygnosoguopuo

|12UNOY IEMYINOS
: gujel jo ygnologuopuoi

= |1puno) y&nolog uopuoiuoiduys|
1 |12UN0) UOUBW

0T'0 90'0 0T/6007 -uoledo|e

S|00L3S HS( $SIIUB|B( S|00L IS I S5

0T'0 £0'0 60/800¢ -uoledo]je
S|00Y2s H5(J SIIUE|E(Q S|00YIS

TT°'0 TT'0 80/£00¢ -uoliedo||e
S|00Y2s DS :SIIUE|B( S|00YIS |

TR 80°0

Page 86

+— 0T'0

— ‘porzad ST JOAO 9SLIIIP FLdA-UO-TBIL APEals B [aIm
11-0T0T ©3 80-L0O0T WO 0/,(9 4q PIsSEIIIIP LY ONEI §,[19UNOY) AT,
sSuIpurg

91’0 ‘7ea£ o) JO pud A1) I
Juadsun pauTEWwDI TONEIOE ST [8I01 O JO 102D 3od 7 1) sUBOW
20°0 30 ones e o[dwexs 10,1 "Feak 93 JOJ PIAIIIIT UBONEIO[[E HS(T
[£101 93 01 UONE[DF UT SIDUL[Eq S[OOYIS JO TFBYS U SMOYS STY T,
uonmugeQq

cl'0

rro

TT0Z 01 L00Z -Puai] -uonedo|je s|ooyds Hsd

pa)Jewyosuag - uonjedojje 9gg 03 sasuejeq s|jooyss

DULWIOJIdJ [BIOUBUL] JO SIOIBIIPUT AdY]

aoualjisal [eloueuly Bulinoas 1oy sjuswabuelie s,|1I9uno0Y) 3y} J0 MaInay — AaburieH jo ybnoiog uopuo-]



pansasal sIBL Iy "dTT YN UolUIoy ] WBID 2102 @

oy
KoSutre] g1 :993n0g

A2 LH0L0Z 0116002 60/800¢
's3130do3 Surrojruowr adurwIojrod

pue soueuy o3 jo 1red wiroy Yoy jo sindino ‘oseqerep
JUDWISEULW 9DFOJFOM PIPILSFF [[oM B SBY [IOUNOT) 9T,

‘Juowadeurw

Joruas Y oqyord arerrdordde ue urelor 01 sonunuod

90UISE SSAUNDIS JO JUIWISLULW O} JBY) SANEIIPUL ST} Z[-110T
Sunmp 20e[d j001 183 23ULYD [EUONESIULIIO JULIGIUSIS O}
U2AID) 7824 snoraazd oyl uo uonoNPas o)1 & paIuasardar 1,]
7od skep 11/ JO Z1-1107 SULMP [9AI] 2DUISE §,[DUNOT) YT,

O O O M~ O W < M N — O

's1eak 20T 15[

91} FOAO PUDF) SUTSEIIIIP B U] sty 939 Inq ‘syeak 1noj 1sed Am ._. n_ .._mn_v w_& >ml_ mocmwn_< m..wm_._v_o_w
O} JOAO POIBMION[J JABY S[IAJ] DDUISE SSIUIDIS §,[IDUNOT) T, '
s3urpury

SS9 30J 930U, FIAT[OP O JJEIS UO $9xnssord
JULDYTUSTS JO IXIUO0D 9} UDALS ‘()Y S SULINP SINFOINE [& F0J 93UI[eyd Fe[nonied € 9 [[IA JUDWISeULW 20UdSqY IJOUI FOWO0ISND 9ANIsOd & 9ABY ULd pue

Page 87

faranonpoid sorordwr Kouowr soaes WSNUISE SUDNPIY KMUNTOD JO JOB[ FO 95LITOYS JFLIS YSNOIY) FOUPID S[OAJ] IITATIS SIFeWEP OS[E 9OUISqY  “I[EFSIP
ST Ue) JUoW[dWOd 90F0JYFOM FoFe] & SuIp[oy wo3j JO ‘sdeS Jels 7oA00 01 JJels £oudGe JO UMY 93 01 ML[DF IDUISE SSIUIDIS WOIJ INIIIE LY} $1S0))

JUIWISLULW 90US(E JO [OITOI 3] 01 sjodeurwt Suomodurd
pue jyeas i 3snn jo digsuonear e uo g yorordde ue Sursn oaso[dwo 1od sfep G 01 S[OAI[ 90UISE SSIUIDIS PIONPIT [PUNOT) AJUNOT) IYSISPHUE))

.uﬁuewwmﬁda 20U9sqE SSoUIIS MQLMSOu MU ' 01 oanp SyBaA oM} JOAO m%d@ 9 O3 m%&ﬁ G'C1 WOIJ 20Uasqe padnpai QOT\AOH—U Jo QMSOMO@ UOPUOT o

:o[dwexa 70,7 782K Yor $SAUNIIS O3 ISO[ SAep JO JoquNU 93 Suronpas o3 yorordde
2ANOE0Id © UDYE) OABY S[IOUNOD AUBJN '9°Q ST 93eIoAL J0109s 91eATsd o IsTym “71.1,.] 32d shep 9°( s130309s or[qnd o3 FOJ [AJ] 92UISE SSOUIDIS 9FLIIAE O[T,

punoidyoeqg

S|9ADT 92UdSqy SSaUYIIS

DULWIOJIdJ [BIOUBUL] JO SIOIBIIPUT AdY]

aoualjIsai [eloueuly Bulindas 10} sjuswabuelie s [1I9uno’) ay) Jo mainay — AsbulieH jo ybnoiog uopuo



pansasal sIBL Iy "dTT YN Uoluioy ] WeID 2102 @

(9%9°7) Ty sem yorgm
UITeIH dIqN 01 PAIE[eF PUIdSIOA0 158I9F0F ATUO YT,

(wz0F 30 9422)
swi39) 98vauadiod ur puadsiopun 1s05xe] o3 9SI[EF
01 15€29307 ST JuauNFedop S 2ANNIIXF JOIYD) oY,

(%48°¢)

w17 £q puadszopun 01 158I230] ST ‘SAIUIFUNUOD
PUE $91A9] ‘51502 SurduLuly Terded 01 pate[aF s1o3pnq
9NUIADI JO SISISU0D A[9SIe[ YOTYM “ONUIAIF IITAFIS
-uoN ‘(%,z) wezF 3o puadsiopun 1583930] € (PIM
‘BUISNO] PUE SIMPY ST 0UBWIO0JId 159q o3 YIIM
91¥30309FIP A} ‘Swira) ysed uT ‘wi/'¢F jo puadsyopun
1S€29705 B ST UONISOd UINIINO SNUIAIJ [[EIIA0 YT,
s3urpurg

Page 88

210z 2un{ 9ourqen) 03 130doy Z1-110g UANNQ) [BIOUEUL] :90IN0G

{96) @duelep paysloidm
ST
ot
ST-
otT-
G-
0
S
(enuanal) ZT-110Z 198pnq 1sulede asuelLIeA 9%

anuaAay :3abpng jsuiefy asueuwiopuad

DULWIOJIdJ [BIOUBUL] JO SIOIBIIPUT AdY]

aoualjisal [eloueuly Bulinoas 1oy sjuswabuelie s,|1I9uno0Y) 3y} J0 MaInay — AaburieH jo ybnoiog uopuo-]

Iy



pansasal sIBL Iy "dTT YN Uoluioy ] WeID 2102 @

(%6721 T1ST 49

puadsion0 01 158I9J0J ST $9I1ATOG SUISNOF] PUE SINPY

fpoyny 21se\ UOPUOTT PFON] 23 Aq
U9NEIIOPUN 2q 03 Pa302dxd MOU ST YOIYM ()06 F JO
971U2D SurAd97 J)sEM P[OYISNOY JO UOISTIAOIA-9Y
PUe Z1-110T Ut
93eddrrs 01 onp ‘wi1¥ jo A391e1S UONEPOWOIY o

210z dun( 9aurqer) 01 130day Z1-11(g UFINQ) [BPUBUL] :90IN0G

“rmpuadxd premioy (94) @dueLIEA PII3l0Id W
pomIed owos pue spuadszopun paredpnue Uo paseq
o ‘wigr¢T Jo owwesdoid [earden) spooydg S o) e 0008
0 ‘¢1-110¢ ur 28eddys 03 anp ‘wigf .
() Jo sowwessord oymonmseryur pue 11 Aerodion) . 0009
w 101 91B[oF A[[EnULISqNS SOOUBIFEA O[T,
o 0001
(WeeS 30 %L1) SuaIpIyD pur (Wey .
30 0/,/ 1)$921A39G AI[IqeureIsng pue 20e[J ‘(W 30 NS Buisnoy  3]doad SUnoA 00°0¢
7ea£ ur puads pauue[d o o/¢/) s901N083Y 1EI0dI0N) BSUNPY ViH .
oFe ‘StWya) 98eIuad3ad UT ‘SI0INQIIIUOD UTeW O, 000
(5L°¢1) WGELT Jo swwesSosd 000¢
[[e3940 o3 uO puadsIopun I58III0F ¥ SEM I ], (lended) zT-TT0Z 328pnq 1suleSe adueLIBA %
sSurpury

sawuweiboud jejide 3abpng jsuiefy asuew.ioydad

9DOULWIOJIdJ [BIOUBUL] JO SIOIEIIPUT AdY]

aoualjisal [eloueuly Bulinoas 1oy sjuswabuelie s,|1I9uno0Y) 3y} J0 MaInay — AaburieH jo ybnoiog uopuo-]




panssal SIybU || "d T MN UOIUIOY L JUBID 2102 ©

Page 90

HN°02°uojuIoLR-JueIS

“SJUBIID 0} S3INIBS IPIAOAA JOU SIOP [RUORRUIBIY|

UOJULIOY ] JUBIE) “JBLJOUE BUO JO SSIAIL JO SBIIIBS B} J0) B|qISuodsal
10U 318 Y2IYM ‘SuLy Jaquaw Aq Auapuadapul pasanap ale S3JNBS
“diys1auyied 3PIMPLIOM B JOU U8 SLLIY JGUIBL U} PUE [BUORELIBIY]
UOJLLIOY ] JUBIE) *S3AIND3J JX3)U0D 3} SE ‘SLLIY JAGUIBLL BIOL JO 3UO 0)
331 pue 3jeado SULY JSGLIBLL LOJLIOY ] JUBIS) 3U) YIIYMm Japun pueiq
3l 0} aJe UOJULIOY | JUBID), 0} SIIUSIBRY (|eUONBUISIU| UOJUIOY | JuelD)
PY] [PUORUIBIU] UOJUION | JURIS) JO LLLIY JSGUISL B S| UOJLIOY | Juel

“diyssauped Ayige|
PaYLLI & ‘4T YN UOILLIOL | JUBJS) SUB3L UOJLIO | UeS,

pantasal SIYBu [l T YN ooy Juesn) 2107 @

uojuloy | Juels) o



Page 91 Agenda ltem 12

Haringey Council
Corporate Committee
Report for: ltem
28 June 2012 number
Title: Annual Internal Audit Report and Assurance
Statement 2011/12

Report authorised Assistant Chief Executive,
by : A

[

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Lead Officer: Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: ALL Report for: Information

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 To inform Members of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the system
of internal control and risk management operating throughout 2011/12 and
present a summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the opinion,
including reliance placed on work by other bodies.

1.2 This report also fulfils the requirements of the Corporate Committee’s terms
of reference.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1 Not applicable
3. Recommendations
3.1 That the Corporate Committee notes the content of the Head of Audit’s

annual audit report and assurance statement for 2011/12.

Page 1 of 8



X

.-*

i

Haringey

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Page 92

CADLICH

4. Other options considered
Not applicable.
5. Background information

One of the terms of reference for the Corporate Committee is ‘to consider
the Head of Audit and Risk Management’s annual report and a summary of
Internal Audit activity (actual and proposed) and the level of assurance it
can provide about the Council’s corporate governance arrangements.’

In addition, the 2006 CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit sets out
annual reporting requirements for the Head of Audit and Risk Management.
In order to satisfy the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice, the
Head of Audit and Risk Management issues a formal annual report which:

e Includes an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s internal control environment;

« Discloses any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reasons for
the qualification;

e Presents a summary of the audit work undertaken to formulate the
opinion, including reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies;

e Draws attention to any issues that the Head of Audit and Risk
Management considers particularly relevant to the preparation of the
Annual Governance Statement (AGS); and

e Compares the work actually undertaken with the work that was planned
and summarises the performance of the Internal Audit function against
its locally set performance targets.

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable
level rather than to eliminate risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and
objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of Haringey Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should
they be realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically.

The CIPEA Code of Practice for Internal Audit states that the internal
control environment comprises three key areas: internal control; corporate
governance; and risk management processes. The opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal control environment is based on an
assessment of these key areas.

Page 2 of 8



Page 93

Haringey Counci
5.5 The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2011 require
that ‘the relevant body shall conduct a review at least once in a year of the
effectiveness of its system of internal control and shall include an annual
governance statement, prepared in accordance with proper practices, with
any statement of accounts it is obliged to publish.’

5.6 As part of the 2011 Regulations, the Council is required to review, at least
annually, the effectiveness of its system of internal control. The review of
effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of
internal audit and the Council’s senior managers who have responsibility for
the development and maintenance of the intemal control environment. The
review of effectiveness is also informed by comments made by the
Council’s external auditors in their annual letter and other review agencies
and inspectorates in their reports.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by Deloitte and Touche in 2011/12 is part of the five year
contract which was awarded following a competitive tendering exercise in
compliance with EU regulations from 1 April 2007.

6.2 The in-house Corporate Anti-Fraud Team and HB Fraud Investigation Team
undertake investigations into financial irregularities and reactive and pro-
active counter-fraud work. The costs of the teams and the Deloitte and
Touche contract, along with all other costs to provide an internal audit
service, are contained and managed within the Audit and Risk Management
revenue budget.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this
report, and in noting that the internal audit work detailed in the report
complies with industry best practice and legislation, advises that there are
no direct legal implications arising out of the report.
8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all
areas of the Council, which have an impact on various parts of the
community. Improvements in managing risks and controls will therefore
improve services the Council provides to all sections of the community.

9. Head of Procurement Comments

9.1 Not applicable.

Page 3 of 8



Page 94

i

Haringey Counci
10.Policy Implications

10.1 There are no direct implications for the Council’s existing policies,
priorities and strategies. However, reducing the opportunity for fraud to
take place in the first place, and taking appropriate action to detect and
investigate identified fraud will assist the Council to use its available
resources more effectively.

11.Use of Appendices
11.1 Appendix A - Internal Audit Summary of Work 2011/12
12. Basis of Assurance

12.1 The Head of Audit and Risk Management’s opinion is derived from work
completed during 2011/12 as part of the agreed annual audit plan, and any
investigations into breaches of financial irregularity. Where relevant, any
assessment of the Council’s corporate governance arrangements and risk
management processes are also taken into account.

12.2 The internal audit plan for 2011/12 was developed to provide management
with independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
systems of internal control. The plan was designed to ensure adequate
coverage over the year of the Council’s accounting and operational
systems.

12.3 Internal audit work has been conducted in accordance with mandatory
standards and good practice contained within the CIPFA Code of Practice
for Internal Audit and additionally from internal audit’s own quality
assurance systems.

12.4The opinion is limited to the work carried out by Internal Audit based on the
annual internal audit plan. Wherever possible, the work of other assurance
providers, including external audit, has been taken into account.

13. Overall Audit Opinion 2011/12

13.1The Internal Audit work, using a risk based approach, included reviews of
those systems, projects, and establishments sufficient to discharge the
Chief Financial Officer's responsibilities under s151 of the Local
Government Act 1972; the 2006 CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit
and the 2011 Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations. The
opinion is based on the work undertaken. Work was planned and
performed in order to obtain the information necessary to provide sufficient

Page 4 of 8



Page 95

Haringey Counc!
evidence to give reasonable assurance of the internal control systems
tested.

13.2 Based upon the work of Internal Audit and other sources of assurance
outlined in this report, the Head of Audit and Risk Management can provide
an opinion that the system of internal control in operation during the year to
31 March 2012 accords with proper practice and is fundamentally sound.
The opinion relates only to the systems and areas reviewed during the year
and any details of significant control issues identified are included in the
report.

14. Assurance from the work of Internal Audit

14.1During 2011/12, Internal Audit undertook 60 planned system reviews and
22 school and visits, using a risk based approach, plus an additional 11
reviews at the request of managers. The outcome of the reviews indicated
that generally the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the system of
internal control is satisfactory. Seven of the system reviews and ten of the
schools received a ‘limited’ assurance rating, with the remaining reviews
which were completed receiving ‘substantial’ assurance ratings. Eleven out
of twelve key financial systems were assessed as having substantial
assurance ratings, with one receiving an indicative rating of ‘limited’
assurance. ‘

14.2 Internal Audit were satisfied with management responses in those areas
which had received a ‘limited’ assurance rating. In addition, detailed
monitoring was undertaken during 2011/12 on all Priority 1
recommendations to ensure that appropriate action was undertaken to
address the risks identified during the course of the original audit. As at the
31 March 2012, only one Priority 1 recommendation remained as ‘partly
implemented’ but Internal Audit were satisfied with the alternative controls
put in place to mitigate the risks while a permanent solution is
implemented. The Corporate Committee monitored the implementation of
all recommendations during 2011/12 and were satisfied with the responses
from management on this area of follow up work.

14.3 A detailed report on the work of Internal Audit in 2011/12 is attached at
Appendix A to this report.

15. Assurance on Corporate Governance arrangements

15.1 The Council’s corporate governance arrangements provide direction and
control of its functions, and how the Council relates to the local community.
These arrangements are underpinned by the Council’s Local Code of
Corporate Governance which has been developed to comply with the
CIPFA/SOLACE recommended framework and guidance on corporate

Page 5 of 8



Page 96

2
i

Haringey Counci
governance. The Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance, which
codifies the Council’s governance arrangements, was approved by Full
Council in July 2008. The arrangements which support the Local Code of
Corporate Governance have been in place and operating effectively for a
number of years. During 2011/12, preparation for the implementation of the
Localism Act started and arrangements will continue during 2012/13.

15.2 Corporate controls are in place to help ensure that policy setting and
decision making is carried out in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution and also that the actions of Members and officers comply with
established policies, procedures, relevant laws and regulations.

15.3The annual assurance report should draw attention to any issues that the
Head of Audit and Risk Management considers particularly relevant to the
preparation of the council’s Annual Governance Statement (AGS). CIPFA
guidance dictates the form and basic content of the AGS and its approval
and publication with the authority’s statement of accounts represents the
end process of the annual review of internal control.

15.4 As part of the process to compile the AGS, all Directors and the Assistant
Chief Executive were required to provide an assessment of the governance
arrangements operating within their area of responsibility. The assessments
covered the key areas of corporate governance including:

Risk Management;

Performance Management

Financial Management;

Corporate Governance;

Procurement and contract management;

Information Management;

Project Management;

Partnerships;

Business Continuity Plans; and

Internal/external audit recommendations.

15.5 These self assessment statements underpin the AGS. The completed
assessments identified that all significant governance issues which had
been brought to the attention of Directors and the Assistant Chief Executive
had been appropriately dealt with, or had been included in the AGS.

15.6 Corporate governance is effective in most areas across the Council. The
main areas for action included within the 2010/11 AGS were addressed
during the year, with additional work planned for 2012/13 to continue to
improve governance arrangements. No significant governance issues were
included in the draft 2011/12 AGS, although the Council has identified a
number of key areas for continuing action during 2012/13 where
preparation and planning had started during 2011/12.

page 6 of 8



Page 97

Haringey Councd

16. Assurance on Risk Management Activities

16.1During 2011/12, the Council’s corporate risk management strategy was

16.2

reviewed and updated to reflect the progress made to date in embedding
risk management. The updated risk management policy and strategy was
approved by the Corporate Committee on 21 July 2011. The Council’s risk
management strategy draws together all key areas into a cohesive
framework to ensure that the Council manages its risks in the most
appropriate way. The Council’s Risk and Emergency Planning Steering
Group reviews the Council’s implementation of the risk management
strategy and in 2011/12 the Council responded effectively to specific issues
including the riots of August 2011.

Regular reports to the Chief Executive’s Management Board and the
Corporate Committee during 2011/12 by Internal Audit provided updates
on the management of key business risks, including a review of the
corporate risk register. Risk registers and the processes to keep these
updated are fully embedded at business unit, departmental and corporate
levels, using the Covalent electronic system to manage, review and report
risk registers.

16.3 Risk management is contained within all the key business and project

17.1

17.2

management processes of the Council. This ensures that any resource
implications are considered at the planning stage. The Council’s project
management framework has risk identification and management as one of
its core objectives, therefore allowing any key risks to the success of the
project to be appropriately managed from the beginning of the project.

17. Assurance from External Inspections

The CIPFA guidance states that in practice councils are likely to take
assurance from the work of Internal Audit when discharging their
responsibility for maintaining and reviewing the system of internal control
and that external audit and other review agencies and inspectorates are
also potential sources of assurance. In formulating the overall opinion on
internal control, the Head of Audit and Risk Management took into account
the work undertaken by external inspectors.

The Annual Audit and Inspection letter issued by the Council’s external
auditors, Grant Thomton, for the year 2010/11 was reported to the
Corporate Committee on 23 January 2012. The letter reported that the
Council had received an unqualified opinion on its accounts which gave a
true and fair view of the Council’s affairs as at 31 March 2011. Grant
Thornton also issued their annual Value for Money conclusion which
confirmed that the Council made proper arrangements to secure economy

Page 7 of 8



Page 98

Haringey Counci

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31
March 2011.

17.3 Grant Thornton also commented that the Council had appropriate

arrangements in place for securing financial resilience over the medium
term and effective arrangements to ensure future savings requirements
were delivered. Grant Thornton highlighted some areas where the Council
should continue to focus on, namely:

The monitoring of its Medium Term Financial Plan delivery;

Planning for future changes to financial reporting;

Working closely with Alexandra Park & Palace to ensure accounts
closedown timetables are aligned,;

Managing changes brought about by Localism Act, distribution of business
rates, localisation of Council Tax benéfits, and changes to the funding of
the Housing Revenue Account; and

Assessing the impact of the Olympics on the borough.

17.4 During 2011/12, the Corporate Committee also reviewed progress against

18.

18.1

19.

19.1

the agreed action plan following the external audit review of the Council’s
arrangements for the personalisation of adult social care. No significant
issues were reported.

Assurance on the Effectiveness of Internal Audit

In May 2011, a peer review of the effectiveness of the Council’s internal
audit arrangements was completed by the London Borough of Camden.
The review used the CIPFA Code of Practice, and the council’s compliance
with the standards required of it, as its basis. The review concluded that
Haringey had complied with the Code of Practice and that Internal Audit
arrangements were effective. No recommendations were made. The Head
of Audit monitors compliance with the Code of Practice on an ongoing
basis to ensure the Council’'s arrangements for internal audit are in
accordance with recommended practice.

Qualifications to the Head of Audit Opinion

Internal Audit has unrestricted access to all officers, information, buildings
and systems across the Council, a right which is explicit within the
Council’'s Constitution, and has received appropriate co-operation from
officers and members.

Page 8 of 8



Page 99

Appendix A

Annual Report on Internal Audit Activity 2011/12

1. Summary of Internal Audit work
1.1Internal Audit services for Haringey Council, excluding the investigation of

allegations of fraud and corruption, are provided by Deloitte & Touche. A full
report is issued for every planned project in the annual audit plan. The report
provides an overall audit opinion according to the seriousness of the findings.
In addition, each recommendation is given a priority rating, to assist service
management in prioritising their work to address agreed recommendations.
The overall classification given was that applying at the completion of the audit
work. In each case, recommendations are agreed with the client for the work
and an action plan completed, showing responsible officer and timescales to
address the weaknesses identified. ‘

1.2The recommendations made should be sufficient to address all the control

weaknesses identified. As long as the recommendations have been
implemented as agreed in the action plan, the risks presented should be
addressed, and the residual risk would fall. A definition of the overall
classification is shown in Table 1 below:

Table 1

Assurance Level | Definition

Full Assurance There is a sound system of control designed to achieve the
system objectives.

Substantial There is basically a sound system, but there are weaknesses

Assurance which put some of the system objectives at risk.

system objectives at risk.

Limited Assurance | Weaknesses in the system of controls are such as to put the

No Assurance Control is generally weak leaving the system open to
significant error or abuse.

1.3For 2011/12, 86 projects including schools and social services establishment

visits, formed the annual audit plan which was approved by the Audit
Committee on 19 April 2011. Resources to complete follow up work are also
included in the annual audit plan. The results of the follow up reviews were
reported separately to the Corporate Committee throughout 2011/12, although
no individual reports were issued for the majority of this work.

1.4 In addition, requests for additional audit work were made during 2011/12 and

a further 11 projects were completed. Including follow up work completed and
resources to support work which did not result in a formal report, Deloitte
delivered 84% of the planned audit programme by 31 March 2012, which is
lower than the contract specification and the agreed local performance
indicators which specify a 95% completion rate. However, the completion rate
had risen to 94% by 30 April 2012.

Page 1 0of 5



Page 100

1.5 One project (15 days) was deferred until April 2012 and three school audits (15
days) were cancelled following their conversion to academy status during
2011/12 and prior to the audit visit taking place. A summary of the outputs of
the remaining project work completed by 31 March 2012 against the planned
work is shown at Table 2 below. Of the 93 projects comprising the final audit
programme of work for 201 1/12, 80 had been completed to draft or final report
stage by 31 March (86%). Thirteen projects were in progress as at 31 March
and no draft reports had been issued for these by the year end.

Table 2 — Planned project work vs. completion rates at 31 March 2012

Number of | Number Number | Workin | % draft/
projects of final of draft | Progress final
planned reports reports complete

issued issued
Key systems 12 8 1 3 75%
Other systems 48 35 3 10 79%
Schools 22 19 3 0 100%
Additional 11 11 0 0 100%
projects
| Total 93 73 7 13 86%

1.6Internal Audit performs reviews of the Council’s key financial systems on an
annual basis. This work is completed in agreement with Grant Thornton, the
Council’s external auditors as part of the managed audit approach to ensure
that audit resources are used effectively and duplication of work between
internal and external audit is minimised.

1.7 The assurance levels provided for the key systems work in 2011/12 is shown in
Table 3 below. For comparison purposes, the assurance levels for 2009/10 and
2010/11 are also included. Where the final report had not been issued by 31
March 2012, the indicative assurance level has been included in the table
below for information.

Table 3 — key systems assurance ratings

Assurance level 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12
Full 1 2 0
Substantial 11 10 11
Limited 0 0 1

Nil 0 0 0
Total 12 12 12

1.8 All audit work is followed up to ensure the agreed recommendations have been
implemented. The results of the follow up programme are reported separately
to managers and members. The timing and nature of each follow up depends
on the risk assessment of the area at the end of the original audit project.

1 9There are no national or Best Value performance indicators for internal audit
work. However, local performance indicators are reported to the Corporate

Page 2 of 5



Page 101

Committee on a quarterly basis. These are in line with current best practice
targets across the public sector. Performance of the whole service for 2011/12
is shown in Table 4 below.

1.10Internal Audit issues questionnaires on the completion of all key systems and
general systems work in order to obtain feedback from the identified client. The
average satisfaction rating from the customer evaluation questionnaires
received during 2011/12 was 3.6, on a scale where 1 is low and 5 is high.

Table 4 — Local performance measures

Performance Indicator Actual Target
Audit work — Days Completed vs. Planned 84% 95%
programme

Priority 1 recommendations implemented at 93% 95%
follow up

Benefit fraud cases completed and accepted 45 50
for prosecution

Benefit overpayments recovered (including £265.8k £250k
POCA and confiscation awards)

1.11This level of audit coverage is satisfactory and complies with the 2006 CIPFA
Code of Practice for Internal Audit.

2. In-house team - fraud and irregularities

2.1In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Intermnal Audit investigates all
cases that fall outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation
Team and the Council’s Information Security Policy.

2.2During 2011/12, 22 investigations were undertaken involving  Council
employees. The allegations covered a number of issues including fraudulent
overtime claims, working whilst off sick and council tax fraud. Table 5 below
summarises the investigations completed by department. For comparison
purposes, figures for 2009/10 and 2010/11 are included. The table below
excludes investigations completed for Homes for Haringey. The 22 cases
investigated were concluded within the 2011/12 financial year.

Table 5 — Investigations by department

Investigation | Investigations Investigatio
Department s 2010/11 ns
2009/10 2011/12

Chief Executive - P&OD 3 1 1
Corporate Resources 4 5 3
Children and Young
People’s Service 6 7 11
Adults & Housing Services 6 4 3
Place & Sustainability 5 3 4
Total 24 20 22

Page 3 of 5



Page 102

2 3The Council’s anti-fraud and corruption arrangements are robust, with a clear
strategy and detailed fraud response plan in place. Regular reminders
regarding expected standards of behaviour and how to report suspected fraud
are provided via staff and other newsletters and the Council’s intranet and
website. All referrals are investigated and the investigation team is adequately
resourced and trained. Investigations are managed according to all relevant
statutory requirements, including Data Protection, Regulation of Investigatory
Powers and Police and Criminal Evidence Acts, which are supported by agreed
internal procedure manuals.

2.4 Operational arrangements are supported by Codes of Conduct, the Employees
Disciplinary Code and the Whistle-blowing Policy, which was reviewed and
updated in 2008/09. All of these are available via the Council’s intranet and
website. In addition, the Council has a dedicated email address and telephone
number, which is advertised on the Council website. Members of the public
can report instances of suspected fraud or irregularity, which can be done
anonymously if required. Regular articles are included in the Council’s staff and
corporate newsletters reminding everyone of the Council’s expected standards
of behaviour and how to report any concerns regarding fraud and corruption.

2.5During 2011/12, a corporate anti-fraud resource was created within Audit and
Risk Management to expand the work of the in-house team and enable
additional counter-fraud work to take place. During 2011/12, the team focused
on investigating tenancy fraud, with a project, which started in October 2011.
Fraud awareness and training sessions were run with Council and Homes for
Haringey staff and the Council’s key Registered Providers were engaged to
improve cross-sector working. Referral processes for suspected tenancy fraud
were put in place and the corporate team received 108 referrals during
2011/12.

2 6As a result of the referrals received in 2011/12, 11 Haringey properties,
including two fraudulent tenancy succession applications, have been
recovered and the keys returned, so the tenancies can be allocated to tenants
in accordance with the Council’s lettings policy. In addition, two Registered
Providers’ properties were also recovered. Advice on succession applications
has been given in four cases and recommendations for further action have
been made by the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team to the Tenancy Management
Teams in nine further cases.

2.7 Investigations in 54 cases will be continued in 2012/13. No further action was
taken in 28 cases which were referred to the team in 2011/12. Feedback on the
outcomes of cases is provided on a regular basis to Council and Homes for
Haringey staff to show the positive outcomes resulting from their referrals.

3. Housing Benefit Counter-fraud Work
3.11In total, during 2011/12, the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team

completed 45 prosecution cases, compared to 21 in 2010/11. In 2011/12, 33
cases were heard in court and all decisions made in favour of the Council. Of

Page 4 of 5



Page 103

the twelve cases outstanding, five have court dates already booked for
2012/13, one is awaiting a court date, four have outstanding Bench Warrants,
and two cases are awaiting information from other agencies.

3.2 In 2010/11, the 45 prosecution cases identified a total of £783.4k in overpaid
and fraudulent benefits, of which £265.8k (34%) has already been recovered
and repayment plans are in place for the remaining amounts. The Housing
Benefit Fraud Investigation Team secured a successful Proceeds of Crime
recovery for one case (£39k in total, £4k Proceeds of Crime Act recovery). The
team will be working with all Council departments and Legal Services to
ensure that all options for recovery are considered when fraud has been
proven.

Page 5 of 5



Page 104



Page 105 Agenda Item 13

- 4

Haringey Coorc
Corporate Committee
Report for: Item
28 June 2012 number
Title: Annual Governance Statement 2011/12 J

Report authorised Assistant Chghf}E)xecutive
. ‘1 g

7

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Lead Officer: Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: ALL Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 To inform the Corporate Committee of the requirements of the statutory
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and provide a draft statement relating
to the 2011/12 financial year for review and approval.

1.2 The Corporate Committee is responsible for approving the Council’s draft
AGS as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, and provide
information on its sources of assurance from across the Council, reports
have been provided on a regular basis for review and consideration by the
Audit Committee throughout the financial year, culminating in the
production of the draft AGS.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1 Not applicable

3. Recommendations
3.1 That the Corporate Committee review and approve the draft AGS for
2011/12.

3.2 That the Corporate Committee note the approval timescale and processes
for the draft AGS.

Page 1 of 3



Page 106

-7

Haringey Council
4. Other options considered
4.1 Not applicable.

5. Background information

5.1Since 2007/08, the Council has been required to produce an Annual
Governance Statement (AGS) for publication with the council’s annual
accounts. The AGS comments on the Council’'s governance framework as
a whole. Corporate governance brings together an underlying set of
legislative requirements, governance principles and management
processes.

5.2 The preparation of an AGS is a statutory requirement of the Accounts and
Audit (amendment) (England) Regulations 2011. These regulations require
local authorities to produce an annual statement, in accordance with
‘proper practice’.

5.3 A pro forma AGS has been devised by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) for use by local authorities. The pro
forma provides the key headings that should be included in the AGS, along
with indications of what might be covered. It does not, however, provide
standard wording for the sections dealing with the governance framework
and the review of its effectiveness. This will be dependent on the risks
identified within each individual authority.

5.4 The Council’s external auditors, Grant Thomton, will review the AGS as part
of their annual audit and inspection processes.

6. Analysis

6.1In order to comply with the statutory reporting deadlines, the AGS for
2011/12 has to be approved prior to 30 June 2012. The Leader and Chief
Executive will need to obtain sufficient assurance that responsibilities have
been adopted at a corporate level and adequate processes exist and are
effective before they sign the AGS.

6.2 Prior to its final approval, the Council needs to demonstrate that the AGS
has been reviewed and agreed by relevant senior managers across the
authority and an appropriate member body. Chief Officers have reviewed a
draft AGS and a copy of this is provided at Appendix A. This has been
produced in line with the guidance issued by CIPFA.

6.31t is acknowledged that the draft AGS is presented for review prior to the
statutory external audit of the accounts. Initial discussions with the
Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton, have not identified any further
issues that they would expect to be included in the draft AGS at this stage.
However, any significant governance or internal control issues which arise
as a result of the final accounts audit can be included in the AGS and re-

Page 2 of 3



Page 107

//r

Haringey (oo
submitted for officer and member consideration and approval before the
closure of the statutory audit period on 30™ September 2012.

6.4 Corporate governance is an important element of the external assessment
processes. The annual accounts, including the AGS, are subject to audit by
the council’s external auditors. While the whole of the financial statements
may not be qualified, an incorrect or inaccurate AGS may be raised as a
recommendation by the external auditors.

7. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications

7.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
within internal audit, which supports the AGS, is contained and managed
within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget. Service
departments manage risks and governance arrangements as part of the
routine work to achieve their business plans and costs are contained within
their revenue budgets.

7.2 The Chief Financial Officer confirms that the presentation of the attached
draft AGS for approval by this Committee meets the Council’s statutory
requirement under the 2011 Accounts and Audit Regulations.

8. Legal Implications

8.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this
report, and in noting that the Statement complies with industry best
practice and legislation, combined with the external challenge provided by
Grant Thornton, advises that there are no direct legal implications arising
out of the report.

9. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

9.1 This report deals with governance arrangements and their implementation
across all areas of the Council, which have an impact on various parts of the
community. Improvements in managing governance will therefore improve
services the Council provides to all sections of the community.

10. Head of Procurement Comments
10.1 Not applicable.

11. Policy Implications
11.1 There are no direct implications for the Council’s existing policies,
priorities and strategies. However, ensuring that the Council has effective
governance arrangements in place and taking appropriate action to
improve these where required will assist the Council to use its available
resources more effectively.

12.  Use of Appendices
12.1 Appendix A - Draft Annual Governance Statement 2011/12.

Page 3 of 3



Page 108



1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

Page 109

Annual Governance Statement 2011/12
Scope of responsibility

Haringey is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently
and effectively. Haringey also has a duty under the Local Government Act
1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in
which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of
economy, efficiency and effectiveness. :

In discharging this, Haringey is also responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management
of risk.

The authority has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate
Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE
Framework ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’. Haringey
Council’s local code of corporate governance is published on the Council’s
website and a copy can be obtained from the Council’s Monitoring Officer.
This statement explains how Haringey has complied with the code and also
meets the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2003 as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment)
(England) Regulations 2011, in relation to the publication of an Annual
Governance Statement.

The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and
culture and values, by which the authority is directed and controlled and its
activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the
community. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its
strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the
delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can provide a reasonable
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise risks to the achievement
of Haringey’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage
them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Haringey for the year ended
31° March 2012 and up to the date of the approval of the annual report and
accounts.



3.1

b)

Page 110

The governance framework

The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the authority’s

.governance arrangements are:

Identifying and communicating the authority’s vision of its purpose and
intended outcomes for citizens and service users

The Council’s Rethinking Haringey: One Borough, One Future paper,
published in January 201 1, set out our commitment to promoting equality,
tackling disadvantage and improving the life chances of residents, especially
those who are the most vulnerable.

This Council Plan adopts the vision set out below and explains how it will be
achieved:
Vision:
‘One Borough, One Future:
Reducing inequalities - ambition for the better society’

The priorities set out in the Coungcil Plan are in line with elected Member
ambitions for the borough. The Plan will receive endorsement from Cabinet in
June 2012 and full Council in July.

The Council Plan for 2012-2014 will be published on the Council’s website
and will be monitored and reported using the corporate performance
framework. The Council Plan is updated on an annual basis and the Council’s
objectives are informed by what residents and service users say and their
views are captured in our residents’ survey.

During August 2011, serious public disorder took place in various locations in
the borough. The Council responded immediately to assist those residents
and businesses who had suffered losses and engaged with a wide variety of
community groups and stakeholders to provide ongoing advice and
assistance. Subsequently, the Council has begun a programme of
regeneration which has undergone consultation with a wide number of
residents, businesses, and other stakeholders. The ‘I love Tottenham’
campaign and wider regeneration programme has been communicated
across the authority to set out the intended outcomes for the area.

Reviewing the authority’s vision and its implications for the authority’s
governance arrangements

During 2010/11 and 2011/12 the Council has transformed its approach to
delivering services, adapting them to meet the changing needs of residents,
targeted to those who need them most. In tackling the dramatic budget
reductions, the Council has responded to the challenge by adopting the
vision ‘one borough one future: reducing inequalities — working for a better
society’.



Page 111

The vision is underpinned by five priorities:

Work with local businesses to create jobs

Deliver regeneration to key areas of the borough

Tackle the housing challenges

Improve school standards and outcomes for young people
Deliver responsive, high quality services to residents

O RN -

Consultation with residents undertaken between November 2011 and
January 2012 showed that two thirds agreed with the priorities, with over
80% in support of our plans to grow local jobs by working with local
businesses, improve outcomes for young people and cultivate a culture of
excellence. These priorities will form our major programmes of work for the
period 2012-14.

All the Council’s business and financial planning documents reflect its vision
and objectives. Delivery of these is through an annual business and financial
process, which was subject to full consultation and review by the Council’s
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, formal adoption by the Cabinet and
approval by the Council during 2011/12.

The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 2011-2014 sets out the
three year budget for the Council and contains plans for achieving the
required budget reductions resulting from the funding shortfall in this year’s
financial settlement for Haringey. The MTFP is reviewed and updated on an
annual basis to provide a rolling three year planning period.

Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are
delivered in accordance with the authority’s objectives and for ensuring
that they represent the best use of resources

In facing up to the current financial challenges Haringey Council continues to
strive for the improved well-being of local people. To achieve this we are
targeting the use of resources and exploring ways of delivering better
services for less money within a framework of delivering value for money and
efficiency across all services. The Council is transforming service delivery
and making changes quickly, whilst ensuring that its resources achieve the
best outcomes. An outcomes based performance management framework
was put in place for 2011/12 which sets out how the Council will move from
a top down approach, focusing on inputs and outputs, to an outcomes
focused performance, based on the vision of the Council and the delivery of
its priorities.

The Cabinet received regular reports during 2011/12 highlighting key financial
and performance management information and allows them to effectively
monitor compliance with all key policies and Council objectives. Cabinet
agendas, reports and minutes are all available on the Council’s website. An
independent tracker survey of a representative sample of residents and
service users will be completed quarterly and reported to senior officers and
members to ensure appropriate action can be taken in specific areas.



Page 112

d) Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive,
non-executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation
arrangements and protocols for effective communication.

The Council’s Constitution sets out the policy and decision making
framework of the authority and is held in hard copy and on the Council’s
intranet and external website. The roles and responsibilities of the whole
Council, the Cabinet, other committees, all councillors including Cabinet
Members, and officers is clearly documented, and it also contains protocols
governing the relationships between members and officers and job
descriptions of the Council’s Statutory Officers (Head of Paid Service,
Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer). The roles and functions of all
councillors in relation to governance issues are clearly documented, including
their responsibilities for ward duties and the governance of the Council.

The Constitution is reviewed on an ongoing basis and updated to reflect
functional and organisational changes to the Council. The Council’s scheme
of delegation is contained within the Constitution and is reviewed and
communicated on a regular basis to all appropriate officers and members.
The Council’s website also has an ‘Our Standards’ page which sets out the
expectations and standards required of both officers and members.

The Council's scheme of delegation to officers has been fully reviewed to
take into account the restructure as a result of Re-Thinking Haringey.
A Governance Review in 2010/11 resuited in the consolidation of nine non-
executive committees into five, approved at Full Council on 23 May 2011.
The cross-party Delivery Group met during 2011/12 to evaluate the outcomes
of the 2010/11 Governance Review. A consuitation exercise, the ‘Governance
Review Evaluation’, was held for four weeks during February and March 2012
to obtain the views of residents, councillors, Council officers and key
stakeholders. The recommendations of the evaluation review and feedback
from the consultation exercise has subsequently been provided to Full
Council in May 2012. This included consideration of a revised Standards
Committee to take effect from 1 July 2012 in accordance with the Localism
Act 2011. Recommendations from the evaluation of the governance review
are also likely to include changes to the frequency of the Corporate
Committee meetings and increased training for committee members.

The Delivery Group also requested a scoping study be undertaken of
Committees and Council Bodies that were not originally considered as part
of the Governance Review, including committees of the Cabinet. This study
was to ensure Committees are operating effectively and not duplicating
work. The recommendations of the Delivery Group in relation to these have
also been provided to Full Council in May 2012.



Page 113

e) Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining
the standards of behaviour for members and staff

Haringey has well established codes of conduct for officers and members,
which are regularly reviewed and subject to approval by members. The
Council requires all members to formally acknowledge receipt of their code
of conduct on an annual basis. Members are provided with regular briefings
on the code of conduct as part of the established induction and training
programme. The Council’s Monitoring Officer submitted a revised draft code
of conduct and complaints procedure to the Council’s Standards Committee
to Full Council for approval in May 2012 to enable the new provisions to be
implemented immediately upon the implementation of the new ethical
framework anticipated for 1 July 2012. Any necessary revisions arising as a
result of imminent Regulations will be submitted to Full Council in July 2012.
Whilst there is no obligation to have a Standards Committee, in the interests
of transparency, the Council will recommend a proposal to continue with a
stand-alone committee.

The Council’s officer code of conduct has been reviewed and updated on a
regular basis and is published on the Council’s intranet site. All new
members of staff receive training, including the code of conduct, as part of
their induction processes. Regular articles are included in corporate and staff
newsletters outlining expected standards of behaviour in specific areas and
these continued in 2011/12, with articles in Team Brief and Smart Talk.

f) Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions,
a scheme of delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which
clearly define how decisions are taken and the processes and controls
required to manage risks

The Constitution Review Working Group is an established member group
which meets on a regular basis to monitor, review and update the Council’s
Constitution and associated governance arrangements, based on a rolling
work programme and taking into account any new legislative and statutory
requirements. The Council’s Statutory Officers meet on a regular basis and
review key areas of governance. The implementation of the new Localism Act
2011 and Health and Social Care Act 2012 will require the Council to review
governance arrangements. During 2012/13, the Delivery Group and the
Constitution Review Working Group will continue to monitor the governance
arrangements within the Council to ensure the requirements of the Acts are
appropriately implemented to deal with new powers including neighbourhood
planning and community empowerment.

The Council’s corporate risk management steering group met on a quarterly
basis during 2011/12, chaired by a member of the Chief Executive’s
Management Board, and is comprised of senior officer representatives from
each directorate. In addition to ensuring that the Council complies with the
risk management strategy, the steering group takes responsibility for
managing the Council’s response to specific incidents and events.



g)

h)

Page 114

Haringey has a corporate Risk Management Policy and Strategy which is
reviewed and updated, where appropriate, on an annual basis and, through a
variety of processes and procedures, ensures that risk management is
embedded across the organisation and its activities, including business
planning and project management processes. The Council has a corporate
risk register and all departments and business units have risk registers in
place. The corporate risk register is reviewed on a regular basis by the Chief
Executive’s Management Board and the Corporate Committee and updated
as a result of feedback received. Regular reports were provided to both the
Chief Executive’s Management Board and the Corporate Committee during
2011/12 detailing compliance with the corporate policy and strategy.

Ensuring the authority’s financial management arrangements conform
with the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on The Role
of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010)

In 2009/10, CIPFA produced a statement on the role of the Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) in local government. The Council’s CFO is a member of the
Chief Executive’s Management Board, as required by the CIPFA statement,
and fulfils all the requirements of the statement in ensuring that appropriate
financial, management, reporting, monitoring and governance arrangement
are in place. No governance issues with the requirements of this statement
were identified in 2011/12.

Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in
CIPFA’s ‘Audit Committees — Practical Guidance for Local Authorities’

The functions of an audit committee, as recommended in CIPFA and the
Institute of Public Finance guidance, are contained within the remit of the
Council’s Corporate Committee that was formed in 201 1/12. The Corporate
Committee received regular reports from internal and extermnal audit and
reviewed risk management and governance arrangements during its
meetings in 2011/12.

Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies
and procedures, and that expenditure is lawful

The Council’s Constitution contains the Financial and Contract Procedure
Rules, which specify the governance framework for all its operational
functions. Officer Employment Rules and a Monitoring Officer Protocol are
also contained within the Constitution. The Constitution also includes the
roles of key compliance officers, including the Council’s Monitoring Officer
and Section 151 Officer, as well as specific functional responsibilities for the
Cabinet, committees, other bodies and officers. Regular internal and external
audit reviews check compliance with Financial and Contract Procedure Rules
across the Council and the outcomes of these were reported to the
Corporate Committee quarterly during 201 1/12.



)

Page 115

Financial management is based on a framework of regular management
information and review to inform managers and members of the current
budget position. Key elements of the financial management system include
integrated budgeting and medium term financial planning systems, regular
budget monitoring reports to the Cabinet, systematic review of all key
financial control processes, monitoring of key financial and other targets, and
formal project management processes.

During 2011/12, the Council updated its Equal Opportunities Policy,
developed corporate equality objectives and revised the equalities impact
assessment (EglA) templates and process to reflect the changes in the
legislation set out in the Equality Act 2010. An internal audit completed in
December 2011 provided assurance that the processes for conducting EqlAs
in Haringey were effective and complied with relevant local and statutory
requirements. During the year which saw significant budget reductions, 126
EqlAs were completed, none of which resulted in challenges to Council
decisions.

Whistle-blowing and for receiving and investigating complaints from the
public

Haringey has a well-established and publicised anti-fraud and corruption
policy and strategy, including a fraud response plan and Whistle-blowing
policy which complies with relevant legislation and is monitored and
managed by Internal Audit. The Council also has a free-phone telephone
number and email reporting facilities which are contained on the external
website. These are monitored and managed by Internal Audit and all referrals
are subject to review and investigation where sufficient details are provided.
The Corporate Committee received quarterly reports during 2011/12 on the
use and outcomes of the confidential reporting and Whistle-blowing facilities.
Fraud and corruption policies and procedures are contained within the
Employee Handbook, the Council’s intranet and website and regular staff
newsletter items were published during 2011/12 which explained how and
where to report suspected fraud.

The Council also has a corporate complaints policy, and agreed procedures,
which are subject to regular review and updates. The Council’s policy and
procedures are compliant with all relevant statutory requirements and are
publicised on the Council’'s external website and at various public sites
across the borough. Reports are provided to members on a regular basis,
summarising the numbers and types of complaints, together with the
outcome and resolution of these.

In January 2012, the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) undertook a
consensual audit of the Council’s processing of personal data. The ICO
found that “the Council’s arrangements for data protection compliance with
regard to governance and controls provide a reasonable assurance that
processes and procedures are in place and being adhered to.” ICO



k)

Page 116

Inspection results are graded in four levels; a score of ‘reasonable assurance’
represents the second highest rating available.

Identifying the development needs of members and senior officers in
relation to their strategic roles, supported by appropriate training

The Council provides a programme of training for members, and all members
have access to the Council’'s corporate training and development
programme. Members who sit on the Corporate and Regulatory Committees
were offered training in 2011/12 specific to their responsibilities for these
committees. Training sessions included planning, licensing, audit, finance,
pensions and treasury which were provided by officers during 201 1/12.

All permanent staff within the Council receive an annual performance review
and appraisal, which is linked to the Council’'s management standards and
competency framework, and results in individual work targets and
development plans. During 2011/12, the Council revised their framework for
performance review, updated performance appraisal forms and set out a
competency framework for managers’ behaviour. During 2011/12, the
Council provided a programme of leaming events for managers and staff
based on the council’s vision and values, aims and objectives, and key
service delivery requirements, as well as a series of senior manager
seminars. The Chief Executive also undertook a series of ‘face to face’
meetings with staff from all departments during 2011/12 to discuss and
receive feedback on the ‘Rethinking Haringey’ programme.

Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and
encouraging open consultation.

The Council's publishes a resident’s magazine, Haringey People, six times
per year containing information on council activities. Hard copies are
delivered to all residential addresses and the magazine is also available via
the Council’s intranet and external website. Once a year this includes a
summarised annual report and set of financial statements.

As part of its budget consultation process, the Council informed, consulted
and engaged residents and businesses from November 2011 to January
2012. The consultation was undertaken using both an online and paper
questionnaire which included factual information about the Council’s budget
and its services. In addition, ten public meetings were held where residents
were able to put questions and make comments on the Council’s budget to
the Cabinet Member, effectively influencing the budget process.

Local Area Committees have been operating during 2011/12. These have
specific responsibilities and consultative powers and are a vital part of local
democratic engagement under the new arrangements.

In 2011/12, the Council commissioned an independent review of partnership
arrangements, which recommended a more streamlined approach to



4.1

4.2

4.3

Page 117

partnership working. In response to these recommendations the partnership
arrangements in Haringey were simplified with a reduction in the number of
partnership bodies. A Joint Leadership Group (JLG) has been established
where core partners (the Council's Cabinet and Chief Executive’s
Management Board, the Police, health service and Jobcentre Plus) meet
every six to eight weeks. The JLG provides the opportunity for collective
discussion between the Council’s political and managerial leadership and
core statutory agencies of the key issues facing the borough. The only
standing partnership bodies from the previous strategic partnership are the
shadow Health and Wellbeing Board and the Community Safety Board with
the addition of a Social Inclusion and Worklessness Group.

Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships
and other group working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report
on the governance of partnerships, and reflecting these in the authority’s
overall governance arrangements.

The Council implemented a governance framework for its significant
partnerships, based on the Audit Commission’s definition, in 2009/10 which
specifies the minimum govermance requirements each partnership must have
and how the Council monitors and reviews its involvement with each
partnership. In July 2011, the Council published the Voluntary Sector
Strategy 2011-2016 setting out how it will work in partnership with voluntary
sector organisations.

The Council has continued to work with Alexandra Palace and Park (APP) to
ensure that corporate governance arrangements and internal controls were
adequate and this was continued during 2011/12. No significant governance
or control issues were identified by APP’s independently appointed internal
auditors during 2011/12. ‘

Review of effectiveness

Haringey has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the
effectiveness of its governance framework, including the system of internal
control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the statements of
assurance and annual governance self assessments by each director and
assistant chief executive, who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment; the Head of Audit and Risk
Management’s annual report, and also by comments made by the Council’s
external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

The Corporate Committee approves the annual internal audit plan, receives
quarterly reports on internal audit work completed, reviews the corporate risk
management strategy and risk register and, during 2011/12, has also
reviewed reports from external assessments and actions taken by
management to address any recommendations made.

Children's safeguarding services in Haringey have received positive feedback
from inspectors, as part of a comprehensive assessment of all services



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Page 118

provided for local children by the Council. The annual assessment of
Haringey’s children's services by OFSTED highlighted 'good progress' in
child protection following both unannounced and announced inspections in
2011. Overall, inspectors found the majority of services for children 'good or
better'. OFSTED judged services for children overall to be adequate and the
capacity for improvement in both safeguarding and looked after children's
services to be good. In March 2012 the Parliamentary Under-Secretary of
State for Children and Young Families, formally announced that the Council
were out of intervention. In addition the Children and Young People’s Service
is on track to reduce their budget deficit.

The Council’s Risk Management Strategy, which draws together the various
elements of risk management, including risk registers, health and safety, .
business continuity and emergency planning and project management, is
reviewed on an annual basis and was approved by the Corporate Committee
in July 2011. The key elements of the strategy are monitored by the
Corporate Committee on the basis of reports received; and by officers as
part of the Risk and Emergency Planning Steering Group’s terms of
reference. No significant issues or areas of non-compliance with the
corporate policy were identified during 2011/12.

Directors have submitted a statement of assurance covering 2011/12 which
is informed by work carried out by departmental managers, internal audit,
external assessments and risk management processes. The statements
provide assurance that any significant control issues that have been brought
to their attention have been dealt with appropriately. Key governance issues
which have been identified and which remain outstanding have been
incorporated into the action plan attached to this statement.

The Cabinet undertakes monthly reviews of financial performance and regular
reviews of service performance, based on a range of key performance
indicators and financial and budget management information. The Leader
and Cabinet also review the delegated decisions and significant actions
undertaken by Council officers, or urgent actions taken in consultation with
Cabinet members, to ensure they comply with the scheme of delegation.
Minutes of sub-bodies are also reviewed by Cabinet, including procurement
decisions and actions. During 2011/12, the Council’s ‘Re-thinking Haringey’
programme was implemented and, despite the substantial budget
reductions, the Council continued to deliver key services to the borough’s
residents and achieve a balanced budget.

The Council's arrangements for dealing with allegations against member
conduct have been reviewed as a result of the change in regime brought
about by the Localism Act 2011, which will become effective on 1 July 2012.
The Standards Board regime has been abolished and local authorities have
been left to determine their own procedures for handling allegations that
members have breached the Code of Conduct. The Council values the
independence of the Committee, and given that legislation no longer
provides for independent voting members, has retained the capacity for



4.8

4.9

410

4.11

5.1

Page 119

independent members to be co-opted to the newly constituted Standards
Committee, to act in an advisory capacity.

The CIPFA statement on the role of the Chief Financial Officer has been
incorporated into the Council’s overall governance arrangements. During
2011/12, the CFO fulfilled all the requirements set out within the CIPFA
statement. No gaps in compliance were identified.

The Head of Audit and Risk Management provided an Annual Audit Report
and opinion for 2011/12, which concluded that in most areas across the
Council there are sound internal financial control systems and corporate
governance arrangements in place and that risk management arrangements
are satisfactory and compliant with best practice. Eleven out of the Council’s
twelve key financial systems received a ‘substantial’ assurance rating in
2011/12, with one receiving a ‘limited’ assurance rating. Seven of the 60
completed system reviews and 10 of the 22 schools audits completed
received a ‘limited’ assurance rating, with the remaining reviews completed
receiving ‘substantial’ assurance ratings. The follow up programme
concluded that all but one high priority recommendation had been
implemented, with one in the process of being implemented and with
appropriate interim controls in place to manage the risk.

The Council responded effectively to the serious disturbances in August
2011. The Council’s Emergency Plan was enacted and the Council’s
emergency control centre was set up and liaised effectively with internal
departments and external organisations to ensure appropriate actions were
taken to address issues as they arose and ensure effective communication to
the Chief Executive’s Management Board and local residents, businesses
and other stakeholders. The Council’s Community Assistance Centre was
established and fully operational within 48 hours and provided humanitarian
and financial assistance and advice to residents and businesses. The support
functions were effectively transferred to operational departments when the
emergency plan and Community Assistance Centre were decommissioned.

The Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive have been advised of the
implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance
framework by the Corporate Committee, and a plan to implement
enhancements and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Significant governance issues

In 2009/10, a number of actions were reported in the AGS to deal with
outstanding governance issues. Some of these have been incorporated into
the body of the AGS as actions have been completed. No outstanding
actions will need to be carried forward to 2012/13. The summary below
highlights what the Council has done to address those issues during
2011/12:
» The ‘Safeguarding and Looked After Children Plan’ (previously the Joint
Area Review), which was developed in response to the Joint Area Review



Page 120

in 2008 was formally closed by the Towards Excellence Board in October
2011. The Board were satisfied that actions had been completed and
significant progress had been made. As previously mentioned, the
outcome of successful implementation of the Safeguarding and Looked
After Children Plan has been the removal of government special
measures and positive OFSTED inspection reports; and

e The Housing Improvement Board monitored implementation of the
recommendations made by the Audit Commission review. There was a
further inspection by Audit Commission’s which judged the service as
“providing a ‘fair’, one-star service that has excellent prospects for

improvement.”

5.2 During 2010/11, the Council identified two actions to deal with governance
issues, some of which are detailed within the AGS as actions have been
taken. The summary below highlights what the Council has done to address
those issues during 2011/12:

e Council governance arrangements. An evaluation of the 2011 governance
review was undertaken during 2011/12. The outcome of the evaluation
review and its recommendations will be presented to Full Council in May
2012. The Council will continue to monitor governance arrangements
during 2012/13 in response to new legislation requirements. Actions for
this are detailed below; and

e Financial and information management arrangements. The Council has
achieved a balanced budget for 2011/12 and has been independently
assessed has having adequate information management and security
‘arrangements. The Council will continue to monitor its financial
management arrangements on an ongoing basis as part of its routine
processes; no further actions are proposed for 2012/13.

5.3 No significant governance issues from 2011/12 are reported. However, the
Council will be working in the coming year to ensure governance
arrangements are in place and effective in a number of key areas, and these
are set out in the action plan below. The action plan will be monitored during
the year to ensure all actions are appropriately addressed.

Issue Action Responsibility | Due date
Implementation | Ensure that the requirements of the legislation Chief In
of the Localism | are appropriately reviewed and implemented | Executive accordance
Act 2011 during 2012/13, with appropriate monitoring with
mechanisms in place to ensure that risks and legislation
relevant regulations are appropriately requirements
managed and addressed and relevant officers
and members receive adequate training to
enable them to carry out their responsibilities.
Implementation | Ensure that the requirements of the legislation Director of March 2013
of the Social are appropriately reviewed and implemented | Public Health
Care Act 2012 | during 2012/13, with appropriate monitoring
mechanisms in place to ensure that risks and
relevant regulations are appropriately




Page 121

Issue Action Responsibility | Due date

managed and addressed to enable the

effective transfer of the Public Health function

fully to the local authority.
Evaluation of Ensure that the recommendations of the Assistant March 2013
the Governance |Review Group are implemented following Full | Chief
Review Council approval, with appropriate review Executive

mechanisms in place to ensure that the

Council governance processes meet its

objectives.
Regeneration Ensure that the Regeneration Programme Director of March 2013
Programme following the 2011 riots has appropriate Place and
following the governance structures, reporting and Sustainability
riots authorisation processes, and financial and

resource monitoring processes in place in

order to deliver the agreed outcomes and

objectives.
Children and Formalise and implement the statutory Director of March 2013
Young People’s |responsibilities for the Children’s Trust with Children and
Service the Health and Wellbeing Board. Young

People’s
Service

Shared Services |Agree the form of governance and ensure Assistant March 2013
arrangements that there are effective operational Chief

arrangements in place between preferred Executive

partners.

Councillor Claire Kober

Leader of the Council

Kevin Crompton
Chief Executive




Page 122



Page 123 Agenda ltem 14

X

i

Haringey Counci
: Corporate Committee
Report for: ltem
28 June 2012 number
Title: Corporate Risk Register

Report authorised Assistant Chief?e)cptive
i A A

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Lead Officer: Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: ALL Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 In accordance with recommended best practice, a copy of the current
corporate risk register is provided for review by Members. An update on the
Corporate Risk Management Policy and Strategy is also provided.

1.2 The Corporate Committee is responsible for approving the Council’s Risk
Management Policy and Strategy as part of its Terms of Reference. In order
to facilitate this, and provide information on its implementation across the
Council, reports are provided to members on a regular basis.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction
2.1 Not applicable

3. Recommendations
3.1 That the Corporate Committee reviews the current version of the Corporate
risk register and provides comments as appropriate and notes the current
position regarding the corporate Risk Management Policy and Strategy.

4. Other options considered
4.1 Not applicable.

5. Background information

Page 1 of 3



Page 124

X

-*-_

o

Haringey Counci

5.1 The 2005 CIPFA publication ‘Audit Committees — Practical Guidance for
Local Authorities’ recommends, as best practice, that an authority’s audit
committee consider the effectiveness of the Council’s risk management
arrangements. In addition, the Institute of Public Finance (IPF) toolkit, which
provides a framework for assessing the effectiveness of audit committees,
recommends that the committee should review the Council’s corporate risk
register on an annual basis. The responsibilities of the audit committee are
contained within the Council’s Corporate Committee.

5.2 In order to comply with CIPFA and IPF best practice recommendations, risk
management is included within the Corporate Committee’s terms of
reference. In order to demonstrate that the terms of reference are fulfilled,
the Council’s Risk Management strategy and policy is reviewed on an annual
basis to ensure that it reflects current operational requirements and best
practice. The corporate risk register is also presented for review by Members
on an annual basis.

5.3 The risk management policy was last reviewed and approved by the
Corporate Committee at its meeting on 21 July 2011. At the same meeting,
the corporate risk register was presented for review.

6. Risk Registers

6.1 The Council uses an electronic system (Covalent) to record the risks faced by
business units, departments and at a corporate level in a consistent manner.
The output from Covalent is in the form of risk registers for business units,
directorates and at the corporate level.

6.2 Covalent automatically sends email reminders to the business unit
representatives when updates are due and the system provides an audit trail
to allow for monitoring and follow up by Internal Audit. Internal Audit also
include resources (as part of the annual internal audit plan) to review and test
the effectiveness of key controls to manage identified risks and to ensure
that all actions and updates are being done in accordance with the relevant
timescales. The results of these audit reviews are reported separately to
Members as part of the quarterly progress reports on internal audit work.

6.3 The corporate risk register is reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Chief
Executive’s Management Board. The latest review was undertaken at the
CEMB meeting on 24 April 2012 and this version of the corporate risk
register is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.

7. Risk Management Policy and Strategy

7.1 The corporate risk management policy and strategy brings together all key
processes involving risk, including business planning, health and safety,
business continuity planning, emergency planning, performance
management and project management. A corporate Risk and Emergency
Planning Steering Group is in place, with representatives from all

Page 2 of 3



Page 125

Haringey Cournici
directorates, which reviews key risk issues on a regular basis and ensures
implementation of the risk management policy and strategy across the
Council.

7.2 The risk management strategy and policy has been reviewed to ensure that it
reflects current operational practices and best practice requirements. The
policy was updated extensively in 2011 to take account of organisational
changes. No further changes are recommended at present. The policy is
listed on the Council’s website as part of Strategies and Policies: Haringey
Council and available on the Council’s intranet.

8. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications
8.1 There are no direct financial implications arising out of this report as the work
- associated with updating and monitoring the Council’s various risk registers
is included within service revenue budgets.

8.2 The risks included in the risk registers could have significant financial
implications for the Council if they were to materialise, therefore regular
review and monitoring of existing and emerging risks helps to mitigate any
potential implications.

9. Legal Implications

9.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this
report, and comments that there are no direct legal implications which arise
out of it.

10.Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks are managed across all areas of the Council,
which have an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements in
managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the Council
provides to all sections of the community.

11.Head of Procurement Comments
11.1 Not applicable.

12.Policy Implications

12.1 There are no direct implications for the Council’s existing policies, priorities
and strategies. However, ensuring that the Council has effective risk
management arrangements in place and taking appropriate action to mitigate
identified risks where required will assist the Council to use its available
resources more effectively.

13. Use of Appendices
13.1 Appendix A — corporate risk register - May 2012

Page 3 of 3



Page 126



Page 127

sjuawalinbal [edo} pue
As0imels ypm aull ul psuueid
Butaq S| aWaYds Xe| [1Dunos)
es0} e jo uonejuswaduw]
[unypuadxs

pue puewsp uaJpjiyd

l91e pax3oo| Jojuow 03 adejd
Ul SMIIABL JO dwwelbold
Py WI0ey

alejlom ay3 49pun suondo
Buipiebas saoialas Buisnoy
ulym aoejd Bupiel mainay
aJed jnpe ‘buisnoy 69
puewsp Jo seale ybiy/Aax
SS94ppe 0] SIDIAISS J8YJ0
pue yjjesy uj suonesiueblo
daupted ypm syul| 9sopD)
‘S8l}IAIIR Juswadndold

pue BuluoISSILIUIOD

'6'® elA [9As) 83el0di0D

e 1B A[3AIID843 840w
Bupjiom Jo shem pue sabueyd
801A195 Aoy Buissalppe
‘aoe|d ul swwelboud

puewsp
paseadsu; 03 anp
SBOIAIDS ISAIBP

AsbBuniey Bupjuiyiay 03 Aljigeul
"SI9AD] 15BID10) ue Buipnpul
Se) 9A0(Ee pURWIDIP IDIAIDS ‘IvUnod
'S, d9 JO Jleyeq uo 1010941 'SHRYV| JO $3SED UiIm [esp 03 19pIo AsbBuliey uo
UBISSILWILIOD 0] [1DUN0D) 943} 104 - Joypadig M) -| ul @oeld ur suejd Aouabuijuon| Ajpsiaape 1dedw
sepunioddo je Buoo| pue 1030941Q 42umQ ‘puewsp josw 03 5396pnq SUOI}IPUOD
saipunlioddo Buiuo)ssiuLIod 2102 |043u0) 9]104d A|PAIIIDYS 0] 18P0 21I0U0DD
£10¢ juiol 31 saAneI0qe|j0D 49 puR| T004™ +0 -Aep | aanIax3 Jaiyd Ul S901AJ8S AQ paAoidiud (€30} pue! T00Y
-1BW-TE€ | % 00T 10d Butobino yum buibebul| oY ZOHY 9¢ 9 9 9s -€0 HABUMO s 1€ SISeOIRI0J pa| puewsQ |eudlieu 100d| ~dWID
s BLEB apaD U00S | POOU | yeduuy MajAR
uﬂﬁﬂ 3S (1A 8J00S XSy diysiaumo ®poD
BN Y Fhove jen |enp | I | weieyur | Y3 |joquop puedsny | SO0 [ewssul ST il i
Jayung | ssau PIssY | 1S9y

o AeBuley

2102 ABW 60 :UO pajelausn

(sysu jquasayul buipnppur) J33s16a4 Msu 83e40d100 gWID




Page 128

aowed - 30V

5396pnq anusasy

pue |eydeD 54 SIaqUIBY

031 suodas Jenbat ypm

3oeld ut s Abajesys pue ue|d
|edueUIg WIB) WNIP3Y 3y
‘Jauiqer O] paniuigns
syodal jusnbasqns

uyym ssanosd Buuojuow
196png Ajyuow jewu0) 9y) 4O
Hed wuoy |im pue mﬁ\mﬁom
Ul suonpal 3@bpnqg
swiweaboad sbuiaes ouoads
apnpul jim Buiojiuow

SIY] ‘9IuUBUl4 JO SPEIH WO0.y
woddns yym siseq Buiobuo
ue uo s3=bpnq 418Y3 JoyUOW
sl030aJIq pue sJap|oH 19bpng
21NNy By ul xS 3ebiiw
03 J9PJO Ul PIVUSWIWOD

sey puoAsq pue $T/£10¢

40} buiuueld siesA aining
‘$1/£10T JO pus 8yl

AQ WHgF pauue|d ayj s
03 3@b4e) Uo s| pue 21/110T

1ebpng psaibe
S}l 19AjBp 0] S|ley
pue ainjipuadxa
uj SUOPNPaL

pue 51012311Q ||| Ul SBUIARS JO WTHF PaJsAIRp paJinbal
*SODIAIDS ZI0Z! dBUmQ [0J3u0) AJnyssadons sey pue aoe|d a3 abeuew
€107 JA 24nsud 01 Abajens| 8004 v0 -AeW| WD - 401031 ur st swwelbold sbuines|  pue Ajquapt o1l $00OY
-BW-TE | 9% 0S |3juswebeuew 13jsew doPARd| 0 GW3ID Sy €9 -€0 HABUMQ XSty ZT/TT0Z SH2uUNn0D |yl sjie} (1punod @yl gD
'sjooyds oddns 03 Ioeld
ul Ind Ajdeded paseasdsu]
“HJomauely
2oueusdAa0b 3Dv10S/V4dID
paJinbal 0] sa1b6a1eL3s
pue s3apijod adAIS
pue 31e10d10d A9y Syul|
yoiym aoepd Ul S| 9IURUIBA0S)
ajel0dlon) 40 8pod {2107
‘ssguayeudoldde
pPenNuUI3UOD. §31 3UNSUI 0}
ejep 2ouewlopad JO MalAa
e buipnpoul jsu uo paseq
‘syipne Ajijenb ejep buiobuQ
*SaNss|
ouewIopad uo JBulged
pue gW3n 03 syodas Jeinbey ‘ybnotoq
348D |BID0S JNpe| 2y} J0j SBWO0IINO
ued ‘Q31S40 ‘B'a Sxyiomawiely UwL_mmw_u w3
_ {euoileu Jo junodoe axel| Jaalep 03 buijiey
£10C uoloe JUBWANEIG wucmc\_n_w>ou 2004 20 1M pue seioud S,Puno) | ur S3ASa YIIym
-1eW-TE | % 06 jenuuy JO UO1RIAWOD| 0Y dW3D sdiysiounied| 9yl 03 padUl| m_nvtoz,mr%mt ‘sobueyd Adjod
pue 23uabijj23u] 2oueuniopad 33e10di0D 10 ‘spiepuels
M%uom&wﬂwvmwﬂumuwm&w:\mmw Sm__oa 10 pesH poseq saWwedIN0 MaN Sourwioad
£10¢ oJe sessa00.d ylomawey| 1004 20 Ucm.mwwnwh._nm__ ﬂ« pue sisbeuew Lo_cwmw\nmﬁw—w_ _m_wm_ommmx:ﬂ%
~JeW-TE | % 0S @duewopad 3insu3) 0 BW3D ejoc L1oUMQ |013u0D| 03 pepiacid sse sebueyd pue 03 puodsal
€107 s}Jomawes4 sdueinssy Aend| »004 Z0 -ABW 'aoRd -| seiepdn Aoyjod juswuiaaob| o wuopad Jouf  Z00Y
-IeN-TE | % 00T SDIAIBS JNPY 4O u0dINPOId| 0d COHY 1C € -€0| 3oV 1oumQ sy} |ea3uDd> uo sbulelg JeINbaY| Ss0p |PUNoD BYL| TaWID




Page 129

‘aoe|d

ul si synpy ul buipsenbasyes
- |Sued SI13qUIDp

*921323e4d

pJepuels se paysijgeiss
us9q sey (s10Q) spienbajes
Ayeqn jo uoneaudaq
*PRUIRIUIRW SISINGD

Butuiesy Je aduepuayie

40 SpI0oJaL Yim pajusws|dut
bututesy buipienboeg

SHRY - S83IAI9S | [euoijesado pue sdejd ul gny *Se2130ed
*ssa1601d 03 uopejusL|du JInpy 40308413 Buipsenbajes Adusbe-njniy Buipienbayes
pue sainpadold Aindaq :19umQ 'S82IAIBS JNPY JO Bulnsug
MB3U yIIM pajuienboe ade Jjels _ 102 jojua) uoiloadsul [eusaIxa jenuue ‘sjuswysliqelss
Z102 Buipienbajes ‘paysignd mou| zQ04 1O -ABlY| "SHRY -~ 1030311Q] Buimoljo) AlleinBas paiojiuow 81e2 Ul 9500y
-1BN-TE | % 00T | S=INPadlld UOPUOT] NYd MaN| O0Y ZOHY ZT [474 -€0 HABUMQ Ay pue ade[d Ut ueld UOIPY| SYNPY jo A1BJes| TaWID
‘sue|d juswsAolduly adiIA18S
bulobuo sy3 ojul pajesodiodul
ale suolIepUBWIWLIOIBL pur
sjulod MaiAal Auy *spew
SUOIIRPUBWIWIODAL 10 pajodal
sansst Juedyiubis ou pue
*saoipoeld (1107 13qwionoy palajdwod
Bupjiom jeuoiyesado 1s33ey) JuswuIsnoh
Olul pappagquwa pue |esluad Ag uaxelspun
pajeitodiodul Ajny a4e sanssi saljiwey suolpadsur psounouueun
{0J3U0D puR 3JULUIDADD B USIPIYD|  *SODIAISS JURAD|RI [je SSOUIR "'SIIAIBS
jeyl pue pajuswaiduwi 10329241Q Ajndaq Burobuo pue pejuswsaidwi| uonde1csd ppyd
aJe suodasdu; pue sjipne Z102| 48umQ |oJ3uo) Bututeny Buipienbajes| uiynm sjusipd 10y
€107 Aue JO SUOIIBpUIWILIODAL| 7004 SO -ABl| 'SdAD - 10302110 | jeuonesado pue sdeid ul qny buisg-j1am pue| egooyd
-1BW-TE | % 0S ay3 18Y] AUnNsuz| 0Y GWID 124 (44 -€0 SBumQ sy} Buipienbajes Adusbe-nniy Atoges o de| Tgwad




Page 130

£10Z
~1BN-TE

% 0

spieoq diysisulied
/awweboad /osfold

JueAl|Sd pue sNd

BIA UORDE JO uoljesnioud pue
MBaIARY ‘Buiiojiuoul senbay

1004 60
0¥ 8WAD

8¢

[44

2102
-AB
-60

Q08d - DV
pue $10309110
IV {s921A48S
{eba jo pesH
1 13UMQ [013U0D)
"D - 1039844
‘qosd - 3DV
12UMO dSiY

*goe|d ul buisnoH g synpy

ul (sdnouab 1033985 |OA ‘1Dd
'HE7) wes) diysispea juiof
sgssan0.4d uodadsur

[PUIBIU} pue |eula]Xd

03 asuodssd ul aoe|d

U] suelqd UonDY BDIAIBS ‘sueid
JuswaA0Idwl SdURULIOLIBY
1Dy sauyenby

010z '6'@ ssaippe 03 22e|d u|
sue|d uode Yyum ‘SasIAIRg
|eba7 pue Adijod Ag payiiuaps
sabueyd uonesiba) Asy
"SIBqUIBIN pue giy3D 0}
saUnsesuw duewload |ed0|
pue |euoneu yum adsueldwod
uo syodal senboy

"CT10Z 8un(

ul puIge) 18 juswalibe 1oy
padojpanap buaq ueid |1pUNoD
*SI9QUIBY

pue si1s214o Aq Alenbad
pamslAad pue adeld uj s|fnd
ainpadold Joesjuca/adueuly
pue uofiebaep Jo 2wsyds
Buipnpul UoIINHISUOD |1PUNOD

syabae) pue
sjuswalinbay
|ebay pue
Alojniess pue
‘S3I310Ld JIoUNo)
99Ul 03 aunjie,

6004
aWad

Z210Z
~4eN-TE

% 001

‘sawioy
|enusapisal || Ag usxenspun
Appusaand se syupny

Ajajes g yiesH Ajyuow o3
aAowW 031 (BuisnoH paJalBys
Buipnjout) syuswysi|qeiss ||y

1004 10
0 ¢OHY

o€

[44

c10¢
AR

-€0

a0gd - 30V
pue $10302.1Q Iy
113UMQ [043U0D
"DAINDDXT JBIYD)
JIBUMQ XSy

‘sainpasoud

pue asuepinb ,@dejd>diom
Ayjjeay, pue (Z102

AN - |1dy) syjsu yyjeay
Ayquapl 01 +0t pabe yeis oy
S$I9YD Yjjeay SHN JO 1340
sapnpul ‘sauinpadosd 3dudsqe
SSaUIIS pue Jyun Yl|eaH
jeuonednao0 Ag panoddns
‘aoejd ul dwwesboud
Buraqiem Heis aelodiod
el Hews pue jalg

wea| e papiaosd poddns
9|gejieAR U0 SJ9PUIWA
Jenbald “Jsueajul BIA Jje3s

|le 03 9|qe|ieae aduepinb pue
aiape abueyp bupoddns,
*s9A1D9(qo/sa1bajedls

S3H Juswsalduw)

03 2oe|d Ul SI2DIY0

uosie Ajajes 93edoyalig
‘wea)

uo[PNPat aWd 3yl Aq
paplaoid 9dIApe A)BjeS BWoH
uawdinba

193ndwod 9sn oym yeis

104 Buiuiesy 3sqg Asosinduwod)
*SI9qQUIDd

pue Q3D 03 Aenbad
papodal synsal ay3 pue
UDNEUIPUN SJUDUISSISSE XSHY
‘uddeldpun sypne

AlaJeS g yjesH aetodiod
‘sjuswanbal Aysjes pue
yljeay 03 syut yum aoeyd

ul Abajesys juswabeuep sy

*saanssald

340m 03 sabueyd
pue sa21n0sal
paonpal Jo

by ur Ajepadss
'14e3s 10y
Buiag-jjom pue
A1a4es JO de

95004
aW3ad




Page 131

sjuswalinbad ym

9ouURpJOI3e Ul pajuswRjdul

S| 110 uwnjny ayj Ul panssi
°2q 0] anp [fig aie) .o

(Z102
aun() pajusws|dwy buisq

Fiomauieyy buluolssiwwiod
103235 Asejunjop

'sapuabe yljesy pue 92IAI9S
SsauIsng |lews ‘aoiaIes
JuswAodwy ‘yqg1 ‘@104
ayy "B’ ‘sisulied 101398
Apunwiwiod /Aiejunjoa pue
A10In3e3s ypm 3aom Bulobug
*$101038

ssaulsng pue suonesiuebio
|eudsIxs yim sdiysuoneyal
A8y Jo Jusuwidojsaap

pue juswysiiqels3

W30

AQ Bulsojiuoul pue malaal
19A3] ybiy o3 109(gns aue pue

|IPUnod
ayj 03 pajunys
5$3500 40 ANd20

2102 pue yjjesy pue asuepin ¢00d TT ‘pieog bulaq|@m pue y3jesH sjuswebuelle
-28Q-1¢ % 0 YilesH diiqnd ay3 jeyy ainsuz| oY gW3D mopeys ayj jo u:wEr_nm__ESmw mﬂm:uce
- 343 buipnjpul Juswdojaasp 03 sabueyd
I2UN0D 91 03 P oysued UyesH 21gnd Jo|  Butobuo Jo 303[qns auy aie| aieym Ajjepadse
>=m.uMn_mm fw:ﬁma >:wv_ 1013341J SHRBY sjuswabuelse diysisulied ‘Bupjsom
€107 lie Jo Buipuny pue uoedo|le| TO04 TT 10393.41Q  !Adijod DAY 1 {1DUNO) diysisujied
oL % 05 551n0s3. 103UoW 0} gWId | 0¥ GWad B SOURWIOLID JO Y3 01 Y3jesH djgqng 1o ybnoiyy
W-1E| % : pesH 91e10d10D| sAoW |ewoy 3yl 18yl SINsUD paJaAIRp
*19S MOU N\Mom 1IBUMQ |013U0) 0] 22e(d ul ued uoisues S3DIAIDS
2102 S3IILI01d ‘paysijgelse pieog| Z00d4 80 -ABW ‘a0®Bd - pue |1dUNo) a3yl uiylim pajis jo Ampgein] 110y
-1BW-TE | % 00T Bureqiem R UlfedH mopeys| 0d ¢OHY ot (813 -60| 30V 4BUMQ sy S]JOIBIIP YIS Dl|qnd| SInsud 03 ainjied] ~gwaD
*si1apiaosd
1I A3% yum sbunesw
MBIABI DIIAIDS ie|nbBoy
*SWIBISAS 33et0d100
Aoy jje Joj ps3sey pue asgd
uf sueyd AUNunuod ssauisng
pue AtaAodad Ja3sesi(]
*Ajnunuod
sSaUIsSNg |15unod uo pedu|
Ou Yjm papelbdn sjjemauyy
jeiodio) pasijesd ﬂcwcwu
pue palaalep swuwielbod
33 Jo SaAIB[qo alnsus
01 stabeuep 109foid pue
‘siosuods 109(04d paynuspl
yum ‘aoe|d ur swweaboud
jemauss ainpnuiselsur J
‘sjudwRdIinbal OST yum
Souelduwiod SInsuS 0] M3alAal
SDVIMBG|  |eusdjul Bulobuo pue sypne
11 JO pesay Jenbas yum ‘uoneyparoe jiomatuely
Z102| :49umQ jo13u0) 0SI1 PaASIyIR SOIINIBS (] Bbuneiado
-Aep ¥ - 1010311 *maIABd Jeinbau 03 Joalgns 1'1 ®es0diod 0104
8¢ [4)) -60 HIBUMQ Ashy pue soeyd uy ABojens 4y 40 aanjied| gD




Page 132

£10¢
-1eW-1E

% 0

sise

senbal e UO SUOIINIDSOL
pue suonebisanul pnely
INJ$S8I2NS 4O sjieIdp ysiqnd

1004 ¢T
oY awad

LC

9€

Z10¢
-ABW
-60

Juswebeuey
Sy

B 1pny JO pesy
'Q0®Bd - 30V
pue s1039311Q 1Y
113uUmMQ |043U0D
*$921N0S3Y
31e10di0)

- 1033341
11DUMQO Sy

‘eIpawl
|e20| pue 9}Isgam |1PuUNod
uo spnely uaAold uo AIdigngd
"}203s Buisnoy ,SI9pIAoIg
paJa1s163y pue »203s buisnoy
1ouno2 ssoloe 1afoud pneyy
Adueuay dofaasp 03 Buisnoy
Yim Bupjiom ‘S801N0s0
ayet0dio) uiyum aoe|
ul wea) pnedj-1pue aesodio)
*saydiew pnedy
|enualod ysaie| a1ebiisaaul
03 z107 Bulnp sjuswedap
yim Butobuc aom
‘aAReRIu] pnelq |euonen
ay3 ul seyedpiped pUNo)
SOM pnedy Jo
awodinc |y} pue sueyd upne
Jeudajul useamiaq ul| 1e3(D
el
MBWS pue jaug wes) ul
siseq Jeinbas e uo papiaold
sbualq ssaualeme pnesy
's49151694 ysi jejuswedsp
Ul papnjout pnely Jo 3Siy
sue|d Jyouag Buisnoy pue
JPNE |eulIUl Ul SIom pneiy
anpoe-oud jo swweiboid
siseq Jenbas e uo
pamaiaal pue 3de|d ul ueyd
asuodsal pnely pue Adyod
Buimo|g-apsiym ‘Abajens
uodniiod pue pney-1uy

Apsiendoadde
pnedj Jo 3si syl
abeuew 03 j1ey
saunpasoud pue
so10d |1BUNC)

_c1od
I EN)




Page 133

£10C
-1BW-TE

% 0S

$855820NS

s,jlouno) ay3 bunowoid

104 seljiuniioddo mainal pue
|IoUNo) syj o4 Juswabeuew
uonendal sAijisod aAnRoe
-04d jo awwelboid e doprag

1004 ¥1
0 gW3ad

o

Sy

2102
-Aep
-60

uoeNsuoD y
SUOIEDIUNWILLIOD)
J0O pesyH
LBumQjoluo)
'‘aosd -

20V 112uUmQ Sy

*suondadsul |euIdIXS

UIYIm Suoiiepuawiwiodad

a3yl Buissalppy

‘eIpawW |eo0| pue |euoneu

o3 mc_%coammz pue buliojiuoy
!subredwies uopedUNWWOD
layjo pue Abajelys
SUOIIEDIUNWIWIOD Y3 JO
uonejuawajdw) ay3 buibeuey
weyuapoy

10j swwesbord uonessusbal
ay] Jo 3ed se juswesbebus
Ajunwiwo) jo swwelboiy

Ajleuonjeu pue
Aljeso} uojeindsy
S) @dueYUD

pue A|injsseaons
SjusSWLA3IYIe

A [lilslelg)

ay3 sjowo.Ld

03 adnjie4

_pTOY
aWad

vt

8¢

Z210¢
-Aep

-60

1obeuely
Ajnunuo)
ssauisng

w Buiuuelq
Adupbiswy
1IBUMQ [013U0D
'S1030311Q

IV ‘a0Rd - 30V
'YyesH o1gnd
JO 1032341 Juiof
11BUMQ sy

‘Allenuue

-1q 399w dnoib-qns Bujuued
Adusbuaswa pue Aynuiuos
ssauisng Buisnoy R sInpy
‘Jels

auljIuo4y/ASY 10y 3oeld ul
swiweaboud uoneupdea niyg
asodund 10y 31y

ainsus 03 a2ejd uy s Bunsay
40 swwesboud senbads pue
SyuN sssuisnq ||e 1oy aseyd
ut sue|d AUNURUO) Sssauisng
*IAITS

40 Ayinuiuod sunsus 03 ade|d
Ul ale sueld pue payniuspl
usaq aaey diwepued

ny e Bulnp pautejutew

3( 0} SODIAISS BRI
*SONSS|

pue sys. Aex abeuew pue
AJljuspl 03 siseq Jeinbas e uo
bupesw pue soeld u dnoun
Buiuueld Adusbiawy g sy
434le3Mm 319A3S ‘6

SJUAD D1J103ds 103 ‘sisuned
pue S221AI9S A3) yum

aoe|d ui sdnoub Buuuely
‘N30

Aq panosdde usaq sey

pue ‘(3dy sapuabuniuod D)
sjuswaanbas Aiojniels yum
safjdwod yoiym ‘aeyd ui s
uepd Asuabunuod ajesodion)

‘J4e1s

pue sjuapIsai 03
S3Skt Buiseadu;
sjuoAa Buibiows
10 “1ayiedm
243A3S B3
Aduabiows ue
104 Ajjendosdde
dledaud

0] aunjie4

_ET0d
g3ad




Page 134

umouxun

A0

Buuaep

3ty ybiy

19y

"D 10398417
'SI2UMQ |04u0)
Aypiqeuteisng

swwesboid uonessusbal
ay3 Moddns o] s|qejieae
butpuny} ayl ssiuixew

03} S8WwBYds uonesuadwod
|eueuly buiplebau
sjuawpedsp juswuidAob
[243Udd YypM uosiel
ybnouaoq ayy

J0 spued Jayjo pue peoy YbiH
wieyuanol jo uoljelsusbal
3yl yum buinupuod

Ul ISISSE 0] 59sS3uUIsSNg

{ed0} 03 pasayo poddns
13410 pue |epueuly Bulobup
S2IIUNWWOI SS3UISNY

pue (230} Waly S19pjoyaxels
A2 yum sbungssw

Jenbas ‘aoe|d ul sassadoud

S20UeqINISIP

110
ay3 buimo||oy
saijiunpoddo

pue juswabebus Ajunwwo) uopesauabal
21071 22e]d 40 103031170 awuwesboud a3 Juswdduw
-Ae| ‘oANo8Xx3 8IyD uonetauabad syj 93si3A0 pue Ajguspi 910Y
ac +5 -60 1 IBUMO s | 03 pajulodde asbeue|y 109(0ud Ajny o3 aJnjieq| T awaID
dnoab
puiuueid Aousbiswe pue 3su
uo sway epusbe buipuels
a3yl Jo 3ted se passSnosIp
sanssi buiuueld pue ysiy
uolelussaldal |IDUNod Yum
aoeld ul dnodo AtsAgaq pue
Bujuueld 21dwAjO UopuoT-ued
r_mzogom a2yl uiyum pauueid jes
SIU3A3 ARy yo40yt JidwA|O]| pue sJuspisat 0]
pue 9snOH PueR|oH 3Y3 10| SHySL Buisealdu
sa1poq Busiuebio syl yum 10 ybnoiog
ooe|d ul Sessa204d uosiel| 9] 104 S1Y[USG
JOv| suonesiuebio 103095 diqnd Buiasiyoe
pue s101a11Q]| 19ylo pue sdnoib Ajunwiwod jou ‘so1dwA|Q
IV deumQ yum uosiel pue sbuirssus| 10z uopuol ayl
z10e 1043U0D JeinBad ‘|puno) ayy uiynm| 1oy Ajpjendosdde
-Aept|  DAlINIOX3 Jayd doeld ul dnois bulisals aiedaud S10Y
Lz €9 -60 IBUMQ STy pue buluueld J1dWAIQ Y} oy aunjied| TgW3D




Page 135

Agenda Item 15

Haringey (o oo
Report for: Corporate Committee | Item
28 June 2012 number
Title: Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions

Report authorised
by :

Assistant Chief Executive

(A=

v

Lead Officer:

Ayshe Simsek (Tel. 020 8489 2929)

Ward(s) affected:
Not applicable

Report for Key/Non Key Decision:
For information

1. Describe the issue under consideration

To inform the Corporate Committee of Non Executive delegated
decisions and significant actions taken by Directors.

The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors
under delegated powers. Significant actions (decisions involving
expenditure of more than £100,000) taken during the same period are

also detailed.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

Not applicable

3. Recommendations

That the report be noted.

4. Other options considered

Not applicable

Page 1 of 3



Page 136

Haringey -
5.

Background information

To inform the Corporate Cttee of none executive delegated decisions
and significant actions taken by Directors.

- The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors

under delegated powers. Significant actions) decisions involving
expenditure of more than £100,000) taken during the same period are
also detailed.

Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and financial Implications
Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.
Head of Legal Services and Legal Implications

Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.
Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.
Policy Implications

Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.

10.Use of Appendices

The appendices to the report set out by number and type decisions
taken by Directors under delegated powers. Significant actions
(decisions involving expenditure of more than £100,000) taken during the
same period are also detailed.

11.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Backaground Papers

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this
report;

Delegated Decisions and Significant Action Forms
Those marked with ¢ contain exempt information and are not available
for public inspection.

Page 2 of 3



Page 137

Haringey o
The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High
Road, Wood Green, London N22 8HQ.

Page 3 of 3



Page 138



DIRECTOR OF PLACE AND SUSTAINABILITY

Significant decisions - Delegated Action from January 2012
¢ denotes background papers are Exempt.

No Date approved by | Title Decision
Director
1. 30/5/2012 Community Safety — temporary Prevent Coordinator post PO7 (3 days a week), created for 12 months.
structure change.
2. 14/06/2012 Corporate Landlord - Cleaning | Transfer two area cleaning manager posts to new cleaning provider and draw out the embedded

Services

client functions into the new role of contract monitoring officer created within Corporate Property
Services

D

Delegated Action

Type

. Number

Page 139




Page 140



DIRECTOR OF CYPS

Significant decisions — September 201§ to May 2012
¢ denotes background papers are Exempt.

No Date approved by Title
| Director - o

1. 15941

Establishment n:w:mw - >m8mm to mwnoi two Ié,:m;ﬂ Level Teaching 4>,mmmm~mim

Behaviour Intervention Service

Page 141

2. 30.9.11 Conversion of Alexandra Park To note the decision of the Secretary of State and Alexandra Park School's decision to convert to
. : School to Academy status Academy status to take effect from 1 October 2011.
3. 2.11.11 | Establishment Change - Restructuring agreed
Education Psychology Service
4. 51211 Establishment Change - Restructuring agreed.
Admissions and School
Organisation .
29.2.12 Establishment Change — Restructuring agreed
Children in Care
[ 18.4.12 Establishment Change — Web Agreed deletion of Web Designer post T
Design
5, 25512 Establishment Change — Agreed deletion of Commissioning and Confracts Manager post
Commissioning and Contracts
5. 31.5.2012 Establishment Change - Family Agreed reconfiguration of existing service

Support
L : N




Page 142



Page 143

Delegated Action

Type

Number

8.02

Changes to Methods of Paying Self-Employed Peripatetic Music Instructors
Employment of Local Educational Psychologist

Expansion of 2 year old Programme — appointment of consultant
Appointment of Independent Fostering Panel Chair (for four years)
Troubled Families — appointment of consultant — extension

Strategic Improvement Plan — renewal of term of office

Increasing capacity to support schools

Appointment of Independent chair of Safeguarding Children’s Board -
renewal of appointment

Formulation of and evaluation of deficit recover plans for identified schools
— appointment of consultant

£14,400
£25,000
£95,000

£6,600
£30,000
£35,000
£40,000

(DSG) -

Signed: _L(UK& mv%

Libby Blake
Director, CYPS

wle |1




Page 144



Page 145

on

DIRECTOR OF ADULT AND HOUSING SERVICES

Significant decisions - Delegated Action ~May 2012
¢ denotes background papers are Exempt.

20.05,.12

Community Housing Services / Commissioned Services ~ establishment changes

Delegated Action

28.05.12: CSO 8.02 under CSO 1001 QCF Hamih ol

Care qualifications

31.05.12: CSO 8.02 under CSO 10.01 Dry Goods/Food Supplies ~ Essex Flour and Grain Co Ltd

31.05.12: CSO 8.02 under CSO 10.01 Frozen Foods — Hensons Foodservice

31.05.12: CSO 10.02.1[c] Community Meals — Variation Sodexo Lid

Submission authorised by:

c@/ %&c@? ;
ey

A

Mun Thong Phung - Director of-Aduit and I.Oswmm:m Services

Date:

1 June 2012




Page 146



Page 147

DIRECTOR OF ADULT AND HOUSING SERVICES

Significant decisions - Delegated Action —April 2012
+ denotes background papers are Exempt.

RS RIS ) WA, B O 2085 A
{approved by Delegated authority — Personalisation and Assessment Services establishraent changes Agreed

Lisa Redfern} S . U S

2.
e } e . 3 - S N o
o L . i . § — i - - . . . —
Delegated Action

16.04.12: CSO 10.02.3 Housing Related Su
Service _ S ; ]

16.04.12: SP contract — Christian Action

1 30.04.12: contract LBH and Housing mm,\mmémﬂmm,,m,m‘,‘vﬁosmwo: of ‘wm?womm ﬂozoammmmmzmvwmmsﬁ,\im:! - 1 B - N o
< e \.W&
e \ N M.\NA\.W sm'\\.ﬂ M\Of\fm o
Submission authorised by: L Date: i dune 2012

Mun Thong Phung - Director of Adult-and Housifg Services



Page 148



Page 149 Agenda Item 18

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Protocols Covering  the Corporate Committee
	7 Pension Fund:Transition Cost Summary
	8 Pension Fund:Asset Allocation Advice
	9 Treasury Management 2011/12 Outturn &Quarter 1 2012/13 Update
	10 External Audit Progress update
	11 Financial Resilience
	12 Annual Internal Audit Report and Assurance  Statement 2011/12
	13 Annual Governance statement 2011/12
	14 Corporate Risk Register
	15 Decisions taken under Delegated authority, Significant actions and under urgency
	18 Exempt Minutes

